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PRESS:

ITEM NO. 1:

Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
Ilima Loomis, The Maui News

FY 2006 BUDGET (C.c. Nos. 04-287, 05-19, 05-63, 05-82, 05-120, and 05-131)

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay, Members, I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget
and Finance Committee meeting for April 27th, this is Wednesday, 2005. For the record,
we have Members Carroll, Anderson, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares, Kane
present. Okay, Members, thank you for being here this morning. We have many people
signed up to testify so let's get right to it.
If you have a cell phone or a pager, anybody here in this Chamber, we ask that you tum it
to the off or to the silent mode so that we can avoid unnecessary distractions to these
proceedings. Members, we have several people signed up to testify so for those of you
signed up to testify we are going to provide you with a total of four minutes to provide
you ... provide us with your comments. At three minutes, we will let you know of that
time and that will give you an additional minute to conclude your comments. We ask
that you state your name for the record when you come to the podium, and if you do
represent an organization, we'd like to know that as well. With that, our first testifier is
Tracy Stice will be followed by Janet Shimada.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. STICE: Good morning. My name is Tracy Stice and I'm here as an individual. I've been a
real estate broker on Maui since 1979 and I'm here to talk about real estate deal. The
County has been looking at buying One Main Plaza and I've had a chance to look at it
strictly from is it something I'd buy? I would represent a client to buy it. It makes
sense from a lot of perspectives. The key thing is basically the value of the building. If
you had to start from ground floor and build that building, it probably would be 30 to
35,000 ... 30 to 35 million dollars if you could find somebody to build it. And with
what's proposed to happen on Oahu, if the 1 percent GET goes through, there won't be a
worker in the State available if they start building anywhere on Oahu. So, even if the
money were there, you'd probably couldn't find construction workers or a place to put
'em if they had to start building it from day one.
I think from a value perspective, if the County doesn't go forward with this, you're going
to see private investors step forward and buy it. And I'm pretty certain that the cost will
certainly be a lot more than $10.5 million. Private investors ... I could probably put a
hui together tomorrow and buy it for 15 million, fix it up and tum it for 20. So, the value
is there, and I'm not saying that's my plan. I'm just saying that's a fact.
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I reviewed the study on the condition of the building and just like any other fixer up in
the County there are some things that need to be done. But if you had to do all the
remedial work, a couple million dollars against what's, you know, the value of the
building is now, if you had to start and do it, it's just ... you know you're going to have
to do some rough work, sidewalk work, you know, parking accessibility things but that
part of it makes good sense. And fundamentally what you need to look at is, is it going to
be cheaper to buy a piece of vacant land or another building site? I understand there's a
proposal to possibly buy the post office next door. You're buying negative that way. If
you have to knock down a building, you have to get rid of it. You have to hire somebody
to do that. That adds cost from day one. And then you have to find somebody to build a
comparable building that may be two, you'd be lucky to build it for $200 a square foot
and probably more like 300 to $400 a square foot.
This is simply economics. The County needs the space right now, you know, you're ...
the County is renting stuff all over Woolworth's storage ... the unused space in that
building could be used to consolidate a lot of the rented space immediately, and you
know, I go up to the Planning Department and you can't fit in there side ways. I don't
know how the County guys function. And as a citizen to try to get the services from all
of the departments, you can't have people because you don't have a place to put them.
You know you need so more space, you need it now, you don't need it in two or three
years, and there's no turning back the clock. We're not going to get smaller as a
population. We need for services there.
MS. KAWASAKI: Three minutes.
MR. STICE: I'd say, get it done. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Stice. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank you for
your testimony. Janet Shimada to be followed by Stephanie Ohigashi.
MS. SHIMADA: Good morning. My name is Janet Shimada and I am speaking for the Maui
4-H organization. Maui 4-H organization is a part of CTAHR, the College of Tropical
Agriculture and Human Resources. I would like to speak about the benefits that my
children have reaped from the 4-H program, that I have reaped from the 4-H Program and
that ... and the benefits also that I've seen many young people reap from the 4-H
program. And I didn't want to be redundant but it is a very excellent program. It
provides many services and it is an evolving program also that has moved beyond the
common concept of 4-H being, you know, cows and cooking into the 21st Century. So
we have many juried curriculum. Juried meaning the term used for research based
curriculum that addresses things like computers, web sites and air space and many other
items. I would like to, once again, mention that I fully support this request. I would also
like to mention that I am a member of the 4-H Foundation Board. And as a Board, we
have taken note of Maui being one of the best, if not the best, amongst the different
counties in the State. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Shimada. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank you for
your testimony. Stephanie Ohigashi followed by Alton Watanabe.
MS. OHIGASHI: Good morning, Budget Chair Kane and Chairman Hokama, distinguished
Members of the Maui County Council, and wonderful citizens of the County of Maui. I
am here representing the Maui Redevelopment Agency. I am their newly elected Chair.
I am 10 days old in my job and I'm sorry that I missed the April 11 th meeting when the
Council made some directives to the agency, making some suggestions of budget changes
requests. A suggestion that we ... how would I say it, spread our wings and fly. So we
are most excited to do that. The agency, five commissioners voted on April 15th to make
a change in that budget request and switched it from hiring a Staff Planner, and I'm not
real clear on the technical parts about the Staff Planner to a Manager of the Maui
Redevelopment Agency at the same budgeted item cost of $60,000. In addition, we are
still lobbying you for a special project for $20,000. And I'm here to answer any
questions you have on the agency and its future plans. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Ohigashi. Members, any questions? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good morning, Stephanie.
MS. OHIGASHI: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: In regards to your additional request of $20,000MS. OHIGASHI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --for your special project-MS. OHIGASHI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --can you elaborate on that?
MS.OHIGASHI: Well, if you do approve the hiring of the manager, we would need something
for that person to do. And we would need some monies for brochure, stationery,
travel ... I don't know exactly where you would put all of that. Maybe you would put it
somewhere and I missed it in the deliberations. It would also mean that we could get
started in developing your County property at the muni ... , which has been the focus ofthe
MRA for the past four years. And we would like to work with all County agencies, the
stakeholders, to develop that property into a meaningful economic development project.
And so, we would need funds to do that whether it's getting a consultant, a focus group, a
town meeting, travel, whatever it takes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions? Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you. Ms.Ohigashi.
MS. OHIGASHI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We received a written testimony from you that's dated April
21st.
MS. OHIGASHI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And attached to it is your implementing actions for the WRA
and it lists the Maui Redevelopment Agency manager 60,000; and Improvement District
Ordinances for 80,000. And then you have this lao Community Park for 300,000.
MS. OHIGASHI: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Could you expound a little bit more on that?
MS. OHIGASHI: I'd be glad to. The ... I think everyone is familiar with the lao Theatre and
it's gotten a little seedy over the years but it's really used a lot by the community. It
offers a lot of venues from the children to kupuna. And the lao Theatre's plans, I think,
is to be painted according to the Office of Economic Development. In addition, Lokahi
Pacific is ready to break ground on their 62 Market project really soon. And this whole
parcel was planned as three phases. We've done the first phase, which was the police
research center and restrooms. We've done the parking stalls, and the last piece of it is
the grass lawn area which is the mini park. So it's taking care of business. It's
unfinished and if we can get the money in the budget this year then we could have the
synergy of a beautiful park when the lao Theatre is painted, the 62 Market is up, it won't
be an eyesore and an ugly puka right there in that great little spot that's going to be
redeveloped. So I'd like to see that go back in the budget.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions?
MS. OHIGASHI: Any other questions about ...
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none. Thank you very much.
MS. OHIGASHI: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Alton Watanabe to be followed by John Powley.
MR. WATANABE: Good morning, Chair Kane, and Council members, my name is Alton
Watanabe. I am the H.G.E.A., Maui Division Chief. I'm here this morning to ask you
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for your consideration or reconsideration of the purchase of One Main Plaza. As you
know, our organization represents County employees and we often get calls about the
working conditions, the office space, parking or lack thereof of parking, office space, you
know, numerous kinds of complaints. So, you know, with the purchase of One Main
Plaza that would have a, I guess, not immediate but a short term way to address many of
the issues that come to our desk.
In coming here this morning, I was little bit tom because as you know, we own the David
Trask Building across the street and as the landlords, we have four County offices renting
space from us. So, you know, clearly, if One Main Plaza is purchased then those offices
would very likely move so . .. But you know our main objective is to represent our
employees and clearly by purchasing One Main Plaza, again, that would be a quick way
to address many of the concerns that come to our attention. So I hope you consider or
reconsider the proposal to purchase One Main Plaza. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Watanabe. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony. John Powley to be followed by Brian Klaschka.
MR. POWLEY: Good morning. Good morning, Chair. I'm John Powley with the University of
Hawaii, College of Tropical Agriculture and Human Resources. More specifically with
the Cooperative Extension Service right here on Maui. I've been the livestock, pasture
and range extension agent on Maui for 25 years. There's six or seven of us here today
representing different aspects and specializing in different aspects of agricultural
development on Maui. With your permission, Chairman, I'd like to ask if my
Administrator, Dr. Keyser, could come up along with the other seven of us to save time
and effort and make a short introductory statement?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Powley, all I can say is, first, that we take people in the order that they have
signed up to testify and, by doing that, I'd be allowing other people who have signed up
prior to those in your group to be cut in front of. And so, saying that, Members, you've
heard the request. The Chair would ask the body if you have any objections and the
Chair will yield to the will of this body. Are there any objections to the request by the
testifier?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Powley-MR. POWLEY: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: --you can invite your ...
MR. POWLEY: I'd like to introduce you to Dr. Harold Keyser. He's a County Administrator
for the six or seven of us that are here with the College of Tropical Agriculture.
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MR. KEYSER: Thank you very much for consideration. I didn't realize this morning would be
so crowded. So in order to save time, I believe you all have the documents that I
submitted at the Kula community meeting and things that I've sent you since then by
e-mail. And today, I asked some of my colleagues, Dr. Hu, who is the Associate Dean
for Research from Manoa, to come over, and then we have several of our agents from
Maui. And Glenn Teves, who's our agent from Molokai. We have Kalana Keala who
does intergenerational programs here on Maui. Lynn Nakamura Tengan, who's an agent
in nutrition life skills. Ron Nagata, landscape ornamentals plants. And you met John.
I'm the current, well, I'm interim cooperative extension director and social dean, but my
permanent position is Maui County Administrator. And with that, I believe you have all
the documents regarding our request for funding for our programs and operations in Maui
County. And I'd just like to ask at this time if you have any questions, our concerns
about any of our programs and in a breath we'd be glad to entertain them.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can, please state your name for the record, Dr. Keyser.
MR. KEYSER: Harold Keyser with the College of Tropical Agriculture.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, do you have any questions for Dr. Keyser?
Hearing none. Thank you very much.
MR. KEYSER: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a comment, Chairman, if you will?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Dr. Keyser, I don't think you need to convince the Council of the
benefits your program does. I think you guys need to get the message to the Governor
and the Legislature, not the Council. We understand the benefits of the hard work you do
for our community.
MR. KEYSER: Yes, and we appreciate the Council's past support for some of our ad hoc
activities. The State does provide almost all of our support ... the Federal budget does
provide a little bit for our salaries and operations. The State does supply most of it. And
this request is based on our ability to sustain our efforts in this area. And also, as you've
seen the documentation almost all counties in the United States, the average support to
the extension services is right around 20 percent. But we are lobbying the State as well.
Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Dr. Keyser.
MR. KEYSER: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hu, I'm sorry, were you going to say a word and, excuse me, Mr. Teves, if
you are going to say something, we need you to sign a paper as well.
MR. TEVES: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: If you need to say something, please.
MR. TEVES: Okay. Aloha from Molokai. I didn't want to just fly over and have to stand
against the wall. I do have programs that I wanted to share with everyone specific to
Molokai and not go over the programs, but basically open it up to you folks any concerns
regarding issues on Molokai that we're involved in.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, if you can state your name for the record.
MR. TEVES: Okay. My name is Glenn Teves. I'm with the ... I'm a County Extension Agent
on the Island of Molokai. I've been a County Extension Agent there for the past 24
years. Molokai has gone through some changes but some things never change like no
traffic light, and no youth gangs, and a lot of nothing. But we still have the community
and we're actively involved in agriculture development from infrastructure all the way to
long-range planning such as the enterprise community designation, things like that. So,
we're involved in a lot of areas. Alton Arakaki and Kali Arce also work in the office and
they couldn't be here today, but I just wanted to share the programs. And I know that
we're in touch with the County a lot in a lot of the programs we do.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Teves. Members, any questions? We have written testimony
that will be distributed. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Not a question. I just wanted the Members to be aware that Mr.
Teves and people like Mr. Arakaki, Alton Arakaki, do provide services to Lanai also
through this program so I just wanted that to be part of the record and thank them with
their efforts with Lanai's programs.
MR. TEVES: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TEVES: I think what's important, just in closing, is that eventually about 20 percent of our
funding nationally comes from the counties so we try to get in line with that and, you
know, that way we can fall back on different funding. If the Federal funding cuts back,
we can fall on the State. State funding cuts back, we can fall on the County and make for
a more solid program for our island. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Teves. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank you for
your testimony. And Mr. Teves, again, we need you to sign.
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MR. TEVES: I think someone signed for me as well. Did someone sign for me?
CHAIR KANE: No.
MR. TEVES: Oh, sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Yamamura.

Next to testify, Brian Klaschka to be followed by Kenneth

MR. KLASCHKA: Good morning, Chairman Kane, Members of the Budget Committee. My
name is Brian Klaschka and I'm testifying before you today representing Maui Economic
Opportunity as the Director of Transportation for the organization. I would like to take
the opportunity to provide you with information that this Committee had requested of
Sandy Baz in your meeting of April 26th. I've provided for you a preliminary site plan
and architectural renderings of the project.
The total projected cost for this facility is approximately $8,290,000. This includes: land
acquisition and related costs of $400,000; on-site and off-site improvements of
$2,280,000; and building and parking lot construction $5,610,000. The anticipated
funding streams are: Weinberg Foundation and other private funding of $2,790,000;
State of Hawaii $2,750,000; and County of Maui $2,750,000 which includes the current
request of $400,000.
As has been mentioned in previous testimony by Gladys Baisa, we are expanding, oh,
excuse me, expecting that in the near future the State will wish to regain control over the
land that MEO is now using for its baseyard. This requires that we accelerate the move
to a new central location for our buses, maintenance facilities and operations.
As such, for several months we have had a special committee chaired by Mr. Larry lng,
meeting weekly to explore our options and review site proposals. After careful study, it
is the judgment of this committee and the transportation consultants of the Community
Transportation Association, that the 10-acre site in question will meet our needs right
now and in the future.
We respectfully ask that funding in the amount of $400,000 be placed in the current FY
'06 budget to allow the purchase of the proposed property.
CHAIR KANE: Are you done, Mr. Klaschka?
MR. KLASCHKA: I am, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for our testifier this morning? Hearing
none. Thank you for your testimony.
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MR. KLASCHKA: Aloha.
CHAIR KANE: Kenneth Yamamura followed by Lynn Krieg.
MR. YAMAMURA: Good morning, Chairman Kane, Members of the Committee. I'm here to
testify on behalf of our office, Economic Development, and my testimony concerns the
One Main Plaza purchase project. We have had many discussions about the purchase in
our office and we all feel that this is a project that should be considered or reconsidered at
this point because essentially it solves the space problems at the County Building right
now.
I don't know of other plans to look at in other areas adjacent to the County Building but,
realistically, if you pursue that type of route, probably the ability to develop the project
will not happen for several years. In my job as agricultural specialist, I've tried to bid out
jobs for certain work that I needed done, and I can tell you it's very difficult right now to
not only design a project, but if you had to design to find a contractor that can carry out
the project.
My understanding is One Main Plaza you were given a discount on the purchase of that
property by Alexander & Baldwin. Now, from what I understand, the discount you
should be able to repair the structure if there are defects. One of the important things
about that structure is the fact that it has parking. Now, I was only hired by the County in
last August. And as a person that has to find parking every morning, I can tell you it can
take quite awhile if the spots that you would like to park are already taken.
Any of the projects that involve adjacent properties around this County Building, you
probably will displace some staff members and sometimes many staff members
depending on which parcel that you want to develop. And like I say, those projects will
be down the road. How do you address the space problem today? The purchase of One
Main Plaza would accomplish providing the immediate space today and tomorrow. And
secondly, let's say you want to develop some of the properties adjacent here. For
example, Chair Kane expressed the desire to buy the old Wailuku Post Office site and
develop. If you buy One Main Plaza, you now have a time to develop the project.
MS. KAWASAKI: Three minutes.
MR. YAMAMURA: You also have ... you would probably displace some of the employees
that park there right now. If you move to One Main Plaza, you have a place to park.
You can, you know, essentially, you wouldn't have to be rushed into developing the
project. You can develop it at your pace because you have the existing facility. And if
you adequately develop the projects around the adjacent County Building, at some point
in time maybe you could sell One Main Plaza, if you outgrow that need. But you would
resolve the space issues today, and that's why I think it makes a lot of sense.
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When Florida was hit with those hurricanes last year, they had four hurricanes. Anytime
you have an event like that, the material costs suddenly go up because the demand from
that disaster is going to pull a lot of resources throughout the whole United States. Not to
mention-MS. KAWASAKI: Four minutes.
MR. Y AMAMURA: --like the People's Republic of China, which is pulling a lot of building
materials out of our country right now ifit's not being used. So, the cost to rebuild a new
project will be expensive.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Yamamura. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you for your testimony this morning. Lynn Krieg. She'll be followed by JoAnn Ridao.
MS. KRIEG: Good morning, Chair Kane and Committee Members. Last night when I heard the
news about the vote on One Main Plaza, I was very disappointed and quite surprised.
And I felt that maybe the Committee Members did not know about the true urgency of
the need for more space and that the alternatives that we have before us really do not
meet the time constraints that we have right now. So, I came before you this morning
just to express to you the Department of Personnel Services' needs. And I need to let you
know right off that our needs are not the most urgent needs.
On a comparative basis with some of the other departments, my department is solely
(inaudible) compared to like the Water Department, the Planning Department. I do have
some pictures here to, you know, pictures paint a better picture than words sometimes.
But DPS is currently functioning with a make-shift cubicle for one of the employees, and
I have a picture of the cubicle. And we also have a make-shift pass through that is
propped up with a bookshelf and it's leaning also against one of the pillars in our office.
Our storage and fire space is currently beyond acceptable capacity and it's overflowing as
is our secure examination file room. We're required to keep all of our examination
material under lock and key. And that file room is also overflowing.
Now, I don't know how many of you have been on the sixth floor. If you go up today,
it's rather clear of all the MIS computer material. But there is computer equipment lined
up along side, one side of the hallway and I have a picture of that also. And if we're not
given relief soon, that equipment will soon be joined by my overall of file equipment and
storage equipment. When the decision came down yesterday, Jacob Verkerke came over
to my office and I immediately told him, Jacob, you can only have half of the hallway
because I'm entitled to the other half, okay. So that's one of the other concerns.
Right now, our conference room on the sixth floor is being occupied as a training room
for the HR Payroll Project. I understand that, that is only a temporary use. However, as
soon as that project is over or maybe earlier I will need to make a decision whether to
return that room--
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MS. KAWASAKI: Three minutes.
MS. KRIEG: --to be used as an exam room and training room or to be used as office space. As
all of you are aware, we're currently undergoing a lot of pressure for recruitment and
filling of positions. We have no exam room right now, which is really critical ... (end of
tape . . . we can take in as many applications as come through the door. But we are
stymied in our efforts because we need to look for space right now to give our exams.
Water Department had offered us the use of their boardroom, but that has been down.
We were using the Parks Conference Room down at the War Memorial, but we have
been told that we can't use that room anymore because of a problem down at Parks. We
have no room. We can use this Civil Defense Conference Room, but that is not set up as
an exam room. So we need help, folks, and we need it not four or five years from now,
we need it now. So any help you can give us. We have no money for rent.
MS. KAWASAKI: Four minutes.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Krieg. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing
none. Thank you very much for your testimony. JoAnn Ridao followed by Mike Foley.
Members, he had to leave and asked to be taken out of order when he gets back, so the
Chair will recognize that. So following Ms. Ridao is John Summers.
MS. RIDAO: Good morning, Chair Kane and Committee Members. My name is JoAnn Ridao
and I am the Executive Director of Lokahi Pacific. I am here this morning to testify in
support of the first-time homebuyers' bill that is being proposed by Councilmember Mike
Molina.
As you know, Lokahi Pacific has been operating a first-time home buyers' program since
1998 under the County of Maui' s HUD Home Funding process. Since that time, we have
assisted 70 plus families to realize the dream of owning their own home. And all of these
families are at 80 percent and below of the Maui County median income. If I hadn't
gotten the flu, I would have someone, some of them here today to testify with me.
Our current wait list is about 100 plus. I just got back into the office this morning after a
battle with the flu but I just, you know, quickly asked my staff what is the wait list at, and
I was surprised myself to find out that it's over a hundred people waiting for first-time
homebuyers' money.
I support this fund and I would like to suggest adding just a couple of things. One is, of
course, when we manage a, a program we need to pay staff. So I would like to suggest
that some kind of contingency be put in there for a management fee. And I know, I
believe the CDBG as well as the HUD Home Management Fee amount is around 10
percent of what the fund is. But we can do more research on that if you'd like. And I'd
be happy to answer any questions that you may have this morning.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Ridao. Members, any questions? Ms. Tavares.
- 13 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 27, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have a question. Thank you for being here, Ms. Ridao.
Are you folks able to manage this program if this should be adopted by the Council?
MS. RIDAO: Yes, we are.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. And you're saying that, that typically under the
Federal Program there's a 10 percent management fee or overhead?
MS. RIDAO: I believe. I can do more research on that, but I believe in CDBG there's a 10
percent administrative cost that comes with that as well as home that they pay to the
County to administer the program. So what I'm asking is just that we be or that amount
be considered as the amount for administration of this program.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And the program that you're administering right now is it, is
there an interest rate that's charged or a repayment schedule? How does that work?
MS. RIDAO: Okay. Our program right now is based on a IS-year ... it's $15,000 down
payment. You have a requirement of living in the home for 15 years. If you live in the
home for 15 years, there's no repayment, it's a grant. If you decide to sell within the
IS-year period, you are required to pull back that money with a 3 percent interest
charged.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Mr. Pontanilla followed by Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good morning, JoAnn.
MS. RIDAO: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Your present program of the HOME program, what is
your present funding for that particular program?
MS. RIDAO: The current funding source is HUD monies that is under ... it's under the HOME
program that comes to the County of Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And presently the amount that you receive?
MS. RIDAO: Urn ... you know, it's an annual amount that we get at about $300,000.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chainnan. Good morning, JoAnn.
MS. RIDAO: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for being here. The bill is going to address the
people in the so called gap group. Do you know of, do you have a rough estimate of how
many people, eligible people out there that have made inquiries to your office about
getting some type of assistance?
MS. RIDAO: You know, we get at least three or four calls a day about first-time homebuyers.
And I would say a good amount of those people are probably at the 120 percent and
below. You know and I see those people as, you know, the hardworking people probably
working two jobs, but they don't qualify because now they make a little bit more than 80
percent and with, you know, the USDA maximum amount that you can borrow from
USDA is at 289,000 right now, there is no house on Maui that you can buy for 289,000.
So the down payment part of it is really important to get these people even into a bank
program that can help them make it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
MS. RIDAO: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chainnan. Good morning.
MS. RIDAO: Good morning, Danny.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: How many, how many people, I mean, you've got a hundred
plus on the wait list now?
MS. RIDAO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
program?

How many people are you actually servmg through this

MS. RIDAO: Well, the process for us is when we get an application, we do all of the
preliminary checks, you know, to make sure that they actually qualify. So what I can tell
you is that we serviced 70 in the past five years and we tried to process as many as we
can as funds are available.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And within the last five years you still have the people still
living in these homes and none of them have decided to abandon the home or leave the
home?
MS. RIDAO: I think we've had, I would say about 15 people because the interest rates have
been so attractive and, you know, they've gained equity in their home so about 15 people
have refinanced and paid us off However, this program right now is not a revolving
program. So every time they pay us off the money goes back to the County HOME
funds.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, JoAnn, thanks very much for even offering, you know,
your services to this program. One of the things that you mentioned during your
testimony is about the fact that U. S. Department of Agriculture funds also can
contribute, you know, to this program. But it's my understanding that those funds
because of population increase in Wailuku and Kahului are no longer available. Could
you just expound a little bit more on that issue?
MS. RIDAO: That is true. And I guess we are, we have talked to the State Director about the
possibility of asking for a waiver on that. But HUD funds, I'm sorry, USDA funds are
not, you are not able to use those funds in Kahului-Wailuku area. So those people are at
another disadvantage.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so with this program though and putting this money in
would that help alleviate the situation also for some of those first-time homebuyers in this
particular region because of the unavailability of money in the other Federal programs?
MS. RIDAO: Yes. You know not all people go to USDA. I think it's really interesting to know
that there are some very creative conventional financing out there. Currently, there are
some financing that have extended 30 year mortgages to 40 year mortgages. Or a low
down payment and ... so there are creative ways in the private sector that's trying to help
this market also.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you very much, JoAnn.
MS. RIDAO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair, one last question.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA; Thank you. JoAnn, did your organization ever receive
inquiries about HOME Program where individuals are earning between 121 and 140
percent of the median income? And the reason why I say this, and you mentioned it, that
the people that we want to help, especially for the County of Maui are the policemen, the
teachers, the nurses and whatever, and some of these people are professional people, and
most of them do have spouses, and when you look at the 120 percent criteria, the majority
of these people won't qualify. So do we have any programs or do you know of any
programs that will take care of the 121 percent to the 140 percent median income people?
MS. RIDAO: Like I just mentioned, I think the creative financing in the private industry and if
someone is able to find ... for instance, you're still able to find places like lao Parkside,
Kihei Villages, condominium type ofprojects in Kahana; Betsills are putting up one right
now, where it's, you know, around the 300,000 amount. Those people will probably be
able to get financing for those kinds of projects. It's the single-family housing that goes
over that, that we have to be really creative in helping these people be able to qualify.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning. Thanks for
being here.
MS. RIDAO: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: This HOME funding that you're talking about, is this the
HOME investment partnership funds?
MS. RIDAO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That the County gets a million dollars every year?
MS. RIDAO: Correct. I'm not exactly sure the amount of the HOME portion. Is that split up in
several ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I don't think so.
MS. RIDAO: 'Cause we don't get the full ... (inaudible)
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Obviously.
MS. RIDAO: You need about 300,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Three hundred thousand a year. So, and over the last five
years you've served 70 families?
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MS. RIDAO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the hundred people that are on your waiting list,
they're on the waiting list because there's no more funds available to help them?
MS. RIDAO: No, there are funds available. We're continuing to process them. And, you know,
as we qualify people we move them on, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, it's just a matter of timing?
MS. RIDAO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And they're all 80 percent and below?
MS. RIDAO: All of ... right. Now, the hundred people that are on the wait list we need to
remember we're still processing them so not all of them have been qualified.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MS. RIDAO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you tell me what the average award ...
MS. RIDAO: For a first-time homebuyer?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes.
MS. RIDAO: I would say the average award is probably around $12,000. We have, you know,
people that I would say the smaller awards are probably at 7,000 or 8,000 and the larger
awards are at 15,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you very much.
MS. RIDAO: You're welcome.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Ms. Ridao? And Ms. Ridao, if you can just finally
reiterate or restate the amount that you have annually to provide for this program that you
currently run.
MS. RIDAO: Yeah. It depends on what the home allocation is for Maui County and so I believe
it's around 300,000 a year. Between 250 and 300,000.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Ms. Ridao. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank
you for your testimony this morning.
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MS. RIDAO: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mike Foley will be taken out of order, Members. We have Ms. Ethel Goods
followed by Wayne Boteilho. Also we had John Summers, but he also had to leave, and
we will see ifhe's available at the end of the testimony phase, Members.
MS. GOODS: Good morning, Chair Kane and Members of this Committee. As earlier stated by
H.G.E.A.'s Maui Division Chief, Alton Watanabe, I, too, was tom as to whether to testify
or not on the subject matter of One Main Plaza. One, because we need space. But on the
flip side ... oh, excuse me, I'm sorry. And second is, I did not want to lose my parking
space if we go over to One Main Plaza. But since I am here, office space won.
Therefore, I am here before this fair-minded, unselfish public body that represents all
Maui County citizens. I do not represent an organization, but I do belong to an elite,
hardworking group that is an integral part of government. A group that is often
overlooked that of civil servant.
As a civil servant for the past 20 years, I and my civil servant colleagues work in
sardine-like conditions. We want to breathe. I want to be a lot further than just an arm
length from the person that I'm working next to. We need space. And this happens in
our department, but I've also been to other departments and their conditions are even
worse. So I would request that you reconsider your vote on One Main Plaza, and that it
would be a positive one for us--the professionals, the civil servant group. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Goods. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony. Wayne Boteilho followed by Madelyn D'Enbeau.
MR. BOTEILHO: Good morning, Chair and Members of the Budget and Finance Committee.
I'm Wayne Boteilho, Deputy Planning Director. I'd like to testify in support of the
purchase of One Main Plaza. From the Planning Department's space needs we have
calculated that we need for each employee 151 square feet And just would include office
space, storage space and so on. Right now, our current Planning Division has 18
employees in 1,547 square feet This comes out to only 86 square feet per person. The
ZAE (Zoning Administrative Enforcement) Division has eight employees in 533 square
feet and this comes out to 67 square feet per person. The Long Range Division at the
Trask Building has also has eight employees in 944 square feet and this comes out to 118
square feet per person.
Right now . . . well, I should mention that also at Trask we were fortunate enough to
share space with the DOT Department and, urn, so we have about six employees and
about 600 square feet there. Right now, current planning we are in the process of
recruiting two more planners and we do not have any more room for those people. Long
Range, we are in the process of hiring one more planner and we do not have room for that
person. Our only alternative would be to squeeze in even more.
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And if I may, I would like to end with some personal notes. You know, I was born and
raised in Wailuku town and I've always liked the County seat. I played around here.
You know, I really believe that Wailuku should be the County seat. You know, and I
really think that it would be a good investment to buy that building. Not only would it
help us with our immediate needs, but it would give us more space and room to grow in
the future. I mean, that it is a prime location for the County ofMaui.
And finally, as Deputy Director, you know, I have to oversee the day-to-day affairs from
the Department of Planning and I see the stress on people's faces and the tension that
they have when they're in a small room and there's walk-ins coming in and they have to
answer the question, and I just walk in there and there's so much tension I feel, and I'm
not even the guy answering the question, and, you know, I'm suppose to be the guy
who's suppose to be solving all these problems and it's hard to, hard to say that I cannot.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Boteilho. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Wayne, for being here. All of your employees
at the Trask Building in Long Range Planning they are currently in the process of getting
ready to move over to One Main Plaza. Correct?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And how many square feet will they be occupying?
MR. BOTEILHO: Useable space approximately 1,800.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have you read the engineer's report for One Main Plaza?
MR. BOTEILHO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Hearing none. Thank you for your testimony this
morning. Madelyn D'Enbeau followed by Dr. Clyde Sakamoto.
MS. D'ENBEAU: Good morning, Chair Kane and Members of the County Council, Budget
Committee. My name is Madelyn D'Enbeau and I'm a County employee working for the
Office of Corporation Counsel, and I'm here to support the purchase of One Main Plaza
this morning. I do wear several hats. I'm very interested in urban planning issues and I'd
like to address that briefly since I am speaking as an individual. I think that I echo what
Wayne said a minute ago about the importance of keeping Maui, excuse me, of keeping
Wailuku as the County seat, and revitalizing Wailuku Town I think that's important for
the whole island. And I do support Chair Kane's vision of the purchase of the post office
building on the present parking lot of creating a really lovely County facility that would
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be kind of adjacent, buildings adjacent to each other. I think that's a wonderfullong-tenn
goal, but it is a relatively long-tenn goal, I think, and I see the One Main Plaza purchase
as a, something that can solve what you've heard today are the immediate problems in
space needs of the County. I believe our office would be one of the first to move. We
would be moving into a, urn, the lowest floor there at One Main Plaza and we would have
more space for our staff. We now have six people who share an office. Lawyers would
have to sit side by side and with just a little barrier between them, and phone
conversations and work and stuff which are much more difficult. I did that for a while. I
was fortunate enough to ... some people left the office and I have a very lovely office of
my own now so this isn't a personal problem for me, but I know it is a problem for the
office as a whole.
And I am no expert in real estate values or engineering problems of buildings, but I did
listen to what Tracy Stice said, and I think it makes sense that the County could use this
as a stop gap and, if need be, in the future sell the building when we do, are able to fulfill
Chair Kane's vision and the vision of some of the other Members of building our own
building to the specifications of our needs. So, if anybody has any questions, I'd be
happy to answer them. But yes, we are very crowded. We can't afford to hire another
lawyer. Excuse me, we can't. We don't have the space for another lawyer and that
affects County operations for those of you who have put in requests for opinions from
Corporation Counsel, and I know it's very unfortunate that you often have to wait much
longer than you should for those opinions. Of course, that's a direct relation to the
workload that the present attorneys have which could be alleviated if we could hire
another person, if we had the space. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. D'Enbeau. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Benni, thanks for being here.
MS. D'ENBEAU: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you are lucky you have a very lovely office.
MS. D'ENBEAU: I do, don't I.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are you aware of how long it will be before the County
could have full occupancy of One Main Plaza?
MS. D'ENBEAU: I know that we did some preliminary drawings for our particular office, you
know, architectural drawings of how we could divide up the space and we've gone over
and looked at it. So in that sense of how much time it would take for us to do our own
office, the Corporation Counsel office, it doesn't appear it would be a particularly lengthy
process, but I don't know how long the remediation would take, which is what I assume
you're referring to for the building.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, I mean, if the building was purchased, Corp. Counsel
would be, is planned to be the first office to be moved over there. But you're not aware
of how long it would take for the County to have full use of that building.
MS. D'ENBEAU: Full use, no. I do know that some of the offices or many of the offices are
now rented out. I know that Carlsmith has an office there and I think Morgan Stanley.
So, I'm assuming that that would be awaiting till those leases run out but I'm not
particularly aware of when those leases do run out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, well just so you know, it would be 15 years before,
at least 15 years before, before we could have full occupancy of the building.
MS. D'ENBEAU: Thank you very much. I wasn't aware of that.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions? Hearing none. Thank you, Ms. D'Enbeau, for your
testimony this morning. Dr. Clyde Sakamoto to be followed by Cary Yamashita.
MR. SAKAMOTO: Good morning, Chairman Kane, Members of the County Council. I want to
begin by thanking you first for all of the help you've given higher education in the
County of Maui beginning with the Nursing Program, Student Housing, you've helped
with us Cooperative Education, and the University Center. And most recently, you've
assisted us with our Oral Care Development, and just to let you know of the kind of
leadership you've provided and the impact that that it's had in the community, we've
addressed over 4,000 appointments and changed lives in terms of creating opportunities
for folks who've never had access to oral care services within our community. And so,
we're very grateful for that.
I'm here this morning to appeal for your reconsideration of the Mayor's request to
advance a four-year college on Maui. And in going around the different Council
member's offices, I've clearly heard that there was a concern for the State contribution
and the State leadership in this effort. I am very pleased to report that this morning that
word from the latest Conference Committee summary indicates that for Maui Community
College Higher Education, and this would be in support of our first baccalaureate
program as well, there would be $7 million that would be appropriated for the renovation
of our Student Center Building, crucial for complementing our project that is under
consideration in the application to the Planning Department for a 400-bed student
housing facility. This is a tremendous support for the development of our campus and the
kinds of possibilities we've been discussing. Another 3.448 million for a science facility
that we're in dire need of that will advance the kinds of things we've been talking about
in terms of a four-year college agenda. In terms of positions six positions are in the
first year another ... the six continuing the second year and so it's, uh, not so very
substantial support that's being advanced on the State's part for higher education in the
County of Maui totaling about 11 million or so. And this is on top of the 77 million
that's been committed to infrastructure development for the State and its interest in
advancing higher education as a path to developing opportunities for Maui County
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residents to access the kinds of sustainable livelihoods that are going to be required to
address the serious kinds of challenges that we have before us and we're all aware of
them.
MS. KAWASAKI: Three minutes.
MR. SAKAMOTO: We've been, I've been listening to the costs of the infrastructure that we're
facing as a County community, the kinds of challenges that we've had with respect to all
of the different programs that support human services. Higher education is one that
connects directly with all of the key kinds of requirements in our community. Public
education . . . and I had mentioned before that we had an opportunity to provide a
contribution to teacher preparation in health care to nursing . . . to the nurse field of
nursing, uh, in the field of social work to address sociological challenges on island, the
tremendous challenges with respect to drugs, to family abuse. We want to make a
difference in taking on the most difficult challenging kinds of situations that our County
community faces. We need to do this with the kinds of degrees, baccalaureate programs
that begin to view the kinds of applied research that inform the kinds of decisions that our
community faces and needs to make.
And so we appeal to the Council members for reconsideration. The leadership that we're
talking about as the component of this program includes leadership for the kind of young
people that would be seeking careers on Maui for themselves and their families.
MS. KAWASAKI: Four minutes.
MR. SAKAMOTO: And we would be very grateful for your consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Dr. Sakamoto. Members, any questions for our testifier? Ms.
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh, yes, thank you very much for being here this morning. I
was reading through, albeit it was late when we got this information yesterday. I read
through some of the information that you provided us with the justification for putting
forward the $2 million request. One of the things and maybe you can just expound on it
because I haven't been able to find specifically what the exact use of the money would
be, would it be for physical infrastructure for specific programs? How would you intend
to use this money because that I think would have direct bearing on whether we would
support this or not.
MR. SAKAMOTO: Most of it would be for personnel, for faculty, and for the kinds of positions
that have been described, there's a spreadsheet that gives you an idea of the kinds of
requirements that we'd have to develop a four-year program, that's based on our first
applied business and information technology degree and how we develop that. The kinds
of support that we're asking for the County of Maui would parallel a process ... (end of
tape . .. that replicates the kinds of things that we've done for our first degree bachelor of
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applied science in applied business and information technology. Now, having said that,
we want to be very, very plain in terms of our first degree going before the Commission
in June of this year, and everything looks very, very positive. The feedback so far has
been very positive and so we expect to have that first degree approved. It's upon receipt
of that first degree approval that the whole other development gets launched. And so we
don't want to get too far ahead of ourselves with respect to the Accredited Commission,
but do want to be forthcoming with the County Council and with the County leadership
in terms of the kinds of costs that would be involved. And so, we're having to straddle
on the one hand saying to the Commission that, yes, we're proposing a single degree at
this point and to the County Council that we are seriously contemplating other degrees
pending the approval of the first degree.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And having heard that ... my question would be that
because this step has not yet been approved would it be, let's just say for example we do
not include this money in this budget at this point in time, would it be possible if there
were sufficient revenues through whatever means to Maui County that you would be
willing to, once you got that approval, be willing to bring this back at that point in time if
the Mayor was willing to reintroduce it with maybe a little bit more detail of exactly how
that money would be expended?
MR. SAKAMOTO: We would be pleased to do that. And I think that it's a fair request. We do
realize that we're in an environment where we can't overtly commit because of our
accreditation requirements, but understand what the County Council's requirements may
be as well, and so we would be pleased to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I would really appreciate that and I think that ... I
was at the recent meeting where Work Force Development was one of the biggest
impediments to progress for Maui County. So, I completely appreciate what your request
IS.

MR. SAKAMOTO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I thank you very much for bringing it forward.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Dr. Sakamoto? Hearing none. Thank
you for your testimony this morning.
MR. SAKAMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Cary Yamashita and Chief, Fire Chief Kaupalolo had to leave and he won't be
testifying this morning, Members, so following Mr. Yamashita is Jane Lovell.
MR. YAMASHITA: Good morning, Council Chair Kane and Council members. My name is
Cary Yamashita and I'm not Division Chief for the Engineering Division. I'm here in
support of the purchase of the One Main Plaza. Basically, we did a cost estimate of what
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would be, what it would cost to construct a new office building that would be about
80,000 square feet and also a structure that would accommodate about 200 vehicles. And
we show that, that would cost us about between 40 and $50 million. And also included in
that cost would be cost to do permitting, design, planning and off-site infrastructure
improvements.
In regards to an assessment that was done on the One Main Plaza building, we also found
it to be satisfactory because theirs done usually industry standards where they got a group
of engineers and consultants to evaluate the existing structure, One Main structure. And
even if we did do a rehabilitation repair of that building, we don't' think that the cost
would exceed $5 million. So, if you add everything up, it's way less than what it would
cost to construct a new building.
Also, addressing it from our Division point of view, we were looking forward to moving
to a space that would be vacated by the Wastewater Reclamation Division, which is right
next to us, because we are already in dire need of office space like the other people who
have, other employees have already indicated. And, uh, yeah we would, we do need the
office space.
In closing, I would like to also mention about the impact that a new building would have
to our CIP program and, you know, spending all these monies and, urn, it, it ... it would
probably severely impact our mission as far as for our Engineering Division as far as
implementing ... (inaudible) ... regular improvements in the future, and we're just
hoping that when we do, if you do decide to construct a new office building that it will
not take away funds from our CIP programs. That's all I have to say. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Yamashita. Members, any questions for our testifier? Hearing
none. Thank you for your testimony.
MR. Y AMASHIT A: Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Jane Lovell followed by George Tengan.
MS. LOVELL: Good morning, Chair Kane, and Members of the Committee. My name is Jane
Lovell. I work in the Department of the Corporation Counsel, but I'm here today to
testify as an individual and as a taxpayer. And in those capacities, I urge you to
reconsider your vote on the purchase of One Main Plaza. The Department that I work in
is staffed by hardworking and talented individuals. We're very fortunate to have the staff
that we have as well as to have the attorneys that we have. But we're really hampered in
our ability to provide timely services to our clients, including the Council and its
committees. We desperately need at least one more attorney and one more staff member,
but we literally have no physical place to put them. So we have held off on hiring any
one else. We have one lawyer who works out of a closet. We have another lawyer who
shares what used to be a utility room with two paralegals. The paralegals, in tum, share
one chair and one desk so they can't be there at the same time.
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We have our staff members working so closely together that we can't even put
cubicle-type partitions up around them. There's literally no space. So we would benefit
greatly by being able to move to One Main Plaza where we would have more room and I
think despite the fact that we would be slightly removed distance-wise that we could
actually provide better service to our clients.
Also, moving our department out makes more sense than moving some other departments
because obviously it's better for the public to be able to visit one building such as this
and to get their public services from that source. Whereas we, if we had to move, we
could walk back over here to meet with our clients without too much difficulty.
Finally, I would like to say as a taxpayer that I think the fact that there are other renters in
the building right now whose leases would continue for awhile makes a lot of sense to
me. I know when people are stretched financially and they're trying to buy a horne often
they would look to an ohana unit or renting out a room or something like that to help with
the mortgage. And that's how I see the renters who are in the building now. I see them
as people who would help us with the rent, I mean, with the mortgage. I also see them as
a plus if we are able to build on the post office location or over in the County parking lot
location. I think that's a wonderful goal and if those buildings are built and ready for
occupancy, three, four, five years from now, having some other long-term lessees in One
Main Plaza I think would be a plus if we were to sell that building. So I see it as an
excellent, urn, at least short-term solution to our crunch, and I urge you to reconsider your
vote. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Lovell. Members, any questions for Ms. Lovell? Hearing
none. Thank you for your testimony. George Tengan followed by Henry Spencer.
MR. TENGAN: Good morning, Chair Kane and Members of the Council. I'll make my
testimony very short. You've heard all the reasons why the County should go ahead with
the purchase of One Main Plaza. So I will support the Council when the Budget
Committee reconsider its actions from yesterday_ But before I leave, I would like to
share one story with you.
About six or seven years ago when the Maui County Employees Credit Union built the
new office down in the industrial area, their old facility was up for sale and the price was
very good. I believe it was like ... excuse me ... I think it was like 750 to $800,000.
And the Water Department already needed space. And so we went before the Board to
get a thousand dollar appropriation to have the facility appraised, but the Board at the
time decided, you know, we should do a space study. And the space study cost us
$13,000. And here we are today we're at the same place. We got no space to move into
although we are making arrangements now to move. But what I'm trying to say here is
that I don't think that the Council should lose sight of the opportunity that's available
today and don't repeat what happened to the Water Department about six years ago.
Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Tengan. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony. Henry Spencer followed by ... Darlene Balis [sic] is the name.
MR. SPENCER: Good morning, Chairman Kane, Committee Members, my name is Henry
Spencer. Today, I'm speaking in support of Councilmember Johnson's request to
appropriate funds to initiate work on developing a purchase of development rights and
transfer of development rights program for the County of Maui. One of the funding is
with the Planning Department or with Council Services as Riki suggested yesterday. The
time is now to initiate this program.
Much of the pain and suffering over the struggle to develop certain parcels of land we all
know the ones that we've struggled over, over the past few years could have been
eliminated with an appropriate TDR program. A TDR program would prove to be one of
the most productive planning tools for the County as well as a very useful tools for
developers. Both sides of the process benefit from a TDR program. Without a TDR
program, we'll continue to struggle over future development. The development process
in Maui County can, at best, only be described as adversarial. At worst, it has become a
black hole out of which nothing positive emerges. With an inordinate and an
unnecessary amount of negative energy being expended, we could accomplish so much,
so much more with planners, developers, environmentalists and smart growth proponents
all working together. A sound TDR program is fundamental to the future of Maui. So
wherever the money ends up, whether it's with the Planning Department or whether it's
with Council Services, the time is now to get a program like this going and once we do
have one in place we can save the lands that we're looking to save, development can still
take place in the appropriate places and everybody wins. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Spencer. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony. Darlene Balis [sic] followed by Nina Nino.
MS. BOTEILHO: Good morning, Councilmen. My name is Darlene Boteilho and I go to Hale
o Lanakila Clubhouse. Thank you for your supporting proposal for funds for
transportation today meeting with the staff and Members. Thank you for supporting for
our needs at Hale 0 Lanakila and towards effort to our community. Hale 0 Lanakila
needs shopping and pick up clubhouse members that don't have any way of
transportation. And thank you for your support, urn, Clubhouse on Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. Boteilho. Hearing none. Sorry
for mispronouncing your name.
MS. BOTEILHO: No problem.
CHAIR KANE: Any questions? Hearing none. Thank you very much for your testimony. Nina
Nino followed by Lisa from Hale 0 Lanakila.
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MS. NINO: Hi, Members, good morning. Hi. I, Nina Nino, I'm active, active and involved
in ... oh, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: There you go.
MS. NINO: I, Nina Nino, I'm active and involved in the the community. I have my own car and
I work part-time at the Dunes, and drive my car myself there because of the lack of
transportation on Maui. I often feel obligated to drive my friends to the store, pay bills,
doctor appointments and to the clubhouse events. Please help us to get transportation for
our program. Thank you for supporting our program. Aloha.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Nino. Members, questions? Hearing none. Thank you very
much. Lisa from Hale 0 Lanakila. And we'll get your last name written down as you
identify yourself, ma'am.
MS. DARCY: Thank you. Good morning. My name is Lisa Darcy and I'm here with Nina
Nino and Darlene Boteilho. I understood yesterday that there was some support of some
transportation suggestions for Hale 0 Lanakila and I just wanted to point out that I'd like
the Council to consider that or reconsider that. I may not be up to date on what happened
yesterday but I'd appreciate that.
As many as eight million Americans have serious mental illness and it's not being
treated. And that's according to the National Mental Health Association. Over the past
year that Hale 0 Lanakila Clubhouse program has been open, four members have been
hospitalized out of 46, and this is an approximate reduction of 25 percent from the last
year. I know it sounds like such a small issue comparatively speaking to One Main Plaza
and other issues, however, in our community and especially in Maui, I know that working
with people with mental illnesses is very underreported and the quality of life of people is
very underreported.
I come here to help start a program. There are nine clubhouse programs in the State of

Hawaii and this is the first one to start on Maui. We're running into a lot of challenges
and recovery and that's due to a lack of transportation here on Maui. And in order to
help people get back to work, get people back to school, where we know it reduces the
symptoms and people's illness, we need to be able to work together to help people to gain
some servIces.
Hospitalization on Maui in the Molokini wing runs about a thousand dollars a day. And
admission to a crisis bed is approximately $200, it was actually reduced from last year
from $300. That's a positive. However, if anybody knows anyone in their life who has
bee hospitalized, it's a major setback to anything that you do. And regaining work and
regaining your education, your placement in the community is very difficult.
Hale 0 Lanakila is a program that reduces these incidents significantly. I look forward to
the next year and year, and year, and year coming back and saying we're reducing these
- 28 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 27, 2005

numbers, we're reducing these numbers. Ten out of 32 applicants last year were not able
to come to our program because they didn't have transportation. Ten out of 42 applicants
that's a significant number. We were hoping that over the next year or two that we're
going to be able to gain more support and more resources for transportation to get at
least 40 percent of our membership back to work. There is a number that is a national,
actually international guideline for my program and right now we're at 22 percent, and
with the County's support, I really hope to be here next year saying thank you so much
that we're going to reach at least our 40 percent, we're going to be able to reduce our
hospitalizations, and across the County and the State would be significantly reduced. But
more importantly, the quality of life to the residents of Maui County will be much better.
So I thank you for your time and all of your support and consideration.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Darcy. Members, questions for Ms. Darcy? Hearing none.
Thank you very much for your testimony this morning. Again, we'll call ... John
Summers I believe was unable to return. Seeing that he's not available, Mr. Mike Foley.
MR. FOLEY: Chairman Kane, Members of the Council, thank you for the opportunity to
address you this morning. I'm here to ask you to support the purchase of One Main
Plaza. I'll try not to be too repetitious, but first of all, I wanna mention that my
department like the others you've heard from suffers from severe overcrowding. We
have a lot of employees in very inadequate space and they have a very difficult time
meeting with the public. They use our kitchen, they use our hallways, they use our
library and they use our, uh, they meet with a lot of people outside, which is not always
appropriate or efficient. So we do unfortunately have a severe space problem.
Secondly, I wanted to mention that we strongly support the revitalization of this civic
center property and the implementation of that master plan. We strongly support the
acquisition of the post office and the construction or the remodeling of the building on
that property_ We also think that it would unfortunately take between three and five years
to accomplish that office space on that property and it's unfortunately necessary for a
number of us to relocate its, to other space before three to five years from now. So we
really need space now even though we should proceed with the acquisition of the post
office property.
Number three, I wanted to mention that we already have 14 employees that are renting
space in the Trask Building, expensive space. We also are renting expensive storage
space elsewhere and we have storage stored in all of our offices, including my office. I
have storage boxes under my desk, under my conference table, and it's storage that I
don't need in my office and we have no better place to put it. The 14 employees that I
already have in the Trask Building are in two different divisions--the Long Range
Division, and the Zoning and Enforcement Division. Uh, we, as Wayne mentioned
previously, we're sharing space with the Department of Transportation.
The last thing I wanted to mention is that if the money is taken out of the budget for the
purchase of One Main Plaza, we obviously won't have any money there to move our
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employees. We have recruitment under way to hire a number of additional employees to
fill vacancies that occur, that we now have and we will have an extremely difficult time
completing that, those recruitments. We just got an eligibility list for two positions today
and we're ready to offer positions to these people who are moving to Maui and we need
space for them desperately.
Lastly, I wanted to mention that I understand a question came up during the meeting
yesterday regarding the purchase of property at Olowalu to implement the Pali to
Puamana Parkway. And I'll be glad to furnish the Council with a map that shows the
locations of those three parcels at Olowalu. The three parcels for a total of 33 acres and
my request was for $4.5 million.
MS. KAWASAKI: Three minutes.
MR. FOLEY: And if the Council has any questions regarding either the Planning Department's
space problem or the acquisition at Olowalu, I'll be glad to address those. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Foley. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mike, for coming. One Main Plaza currently
is occupied ... 58 percent of its square footage is currently occupied. And there's very
little contiguous space available for the County's use. What large contiguous space is
available has been earmarked for Corporation Counsel. So, do you have ... excuse me.
MR. FOLEY: I'm sorry. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are you disagreeing with me?
MR. FOLEY: Yeah. We ...
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, Mr. Foley, let the Council member finish her question and then
we'll respond.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, I think I'm not going to even ask the question.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Mr. Foley? Hearing none. Thank you,
Mr. Foley, for your testimony. Anybody here that has not testified that would like to
testify? You have your opportunity to come forward right now. Is there anybody in the
Chamber? Seeing nobody approaching, Members, without objections, we're going to
close testimony for today's meeting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much.
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.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, time now is a little after 10:30. The Chair will call a recess. We'll
reconvene at 10:50, Members. The Chair asks that you be prompt at 10:50 in the
Chamber. We're in recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:32 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:03 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Members, we are reconvened. Thank you for being prompt back
into the Chambers and the Chair apologizes that Staff has taken additional time to get
updated copies for our work this morning. The Chair will ask if Ms. Tavares, if you're
ready to proceed with a discussion on some golf fund proposals? And I think if we get,
start with that this morning that it will provide some time for Staff to get our material to
us to continue our discussion. Ms. Tavares.
COUNClLMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I sort of feel like I'm in the warm up,
the audience position while we wait for things to gel a little more. I think you have in
front of you, Members, a document that's titled "COUNTY OF MAUl REVENUES RATES, FEES AND ASSESSMENTS" and then in bold it says, GOLF FUND.
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you show us what that looks like?
COUNClLMEMBER JOHNSON: Right here. It was just put on our chairs
CHAIR KANE: Member Anderson, we'll get one for you right here, Ms. Anderson.
COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
COUNClLMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
COUNClLMEMBER TAVARES: First of all, I think this was all started partly because the
Parks Department and the Golf Program in the Parks Department had proposed or has
proposed a fee increase in their proposal for this year. That combined and coupled with
the fact that there is a general fund supplemental transfer that was listed in our ordinance.
And the original transfer fund was transferred to the fund was $741,045 which had been
reduced so that the transfer is now 558,045 and I believe we, as a body, went through and
accepted that we would consider a no transfer, a zero transfer from the General Fund to
the Golf Fund.
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Mr. Chainnan, along with the lines of trying to have all of these fund programs
self-sufficient, I sort of played around with the golf fees, and what you see before you is
my proposal for discussion. And let me first say that, first of all, I want you to think
about why is it that the County of Maui operates a golf course in the first place? Think
about that first. And the answer is . . . ding, times up, we wanted something for our
residents, our golfing residents, the people who live in our County to have an affordable
golf opportunity that's why we operate this golf course. So what I have based my fee
proposal on is the fact that we want residents to be available, able to play during the times
that they are available to play. So the gist of what this proposal is, is that I've taken the
weekend and holiday play and made it available for the residents and also made it
available for generating revenues. Now, this is not going to be a very popular decision
for a lot of people, Members, and I just want you to know your phone will probably ring
off the hook about certain things. Let's go down to the bottom part of that proposal first.
So what I am doing first is I am deleting the resident card. Okay. Because a resident
with a card pays, right now, $25 a month and then gets to pay $2 every time they go out
during that month. That's their golf fee, okay. There's a $5 rate for the students of the
State of Hawaii and that's $5 a month. And they get to go out for that $5 a month
because they don't pay a seed fee. You see that below, it says, seed fees. No seed fees
for golfers through the age of 18. So that means they pay $5 a month to play whenever
they want on the golf course.
The only thing I've eliminated is the annual rate for retirees which is currently at $60.
The Administration was proposing $65. I'm proposing doing away with this resident
card. With a resident card for a retiree, when they go out to play, they pay only the seed
fee which is $2. Okay. So they pay the $60 a year currently and every time they play it's
$2. Alright. And it doesn't matter whether it's weekday or weekend. I'm suggesting
that we eliminate that reference to tournament fees because you see there that it pays the
same rates, and just eliminate that line.
I felt that because we're going to change the program and eliminate the monthly rates for
the residents and eliminate the retirees with the resident card rate that I would make an
adjustment and now we can go back up to the top where it says, for retirees with resident
card under daily rates, it's the second entry. It's currently $7 ... (end a/tape . .. and this
is not the guys with the annual card. This is residents who don't have an annual card that
get a residency card. In order to get residency rates here, you have to have a card. To get
that card, you have to prove that you're a resident, driver's license, bills, whatever. So
those are presently paying $7. There was a proposal for no increase in the
Administration's budget. What I am proposing is $3, okay, because we're going to
eliminate ... well, we're going to help the seniors anyway.
The other thing I did eliminate was the thing called the seed fee. We haven't bought
seeds for a golf course for I don't know how long so there's no seed fees anymore. It
should be called registration, if you're going to have it. And that $3 would be kind of
equivalent to a registration fee.
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Going up one more, I guess I should have started from the top, I'm sorry. For residents
with a resident card, that means you're truly a resident of Maui County, it's $8 now and
these are weekdays, but the proposal is at $12; I'm proposing $10. Because what I have
done is taking away the monthly rate and so I thought, well, with the monthly rate we do
residents $10 on the weekday. Okay. Any questions on that section and we should just
stop there on what I've said so far.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions so far? Ms. Tavares, why don't you proceed through it
and then we'll come back for Q and A.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Then the next bunch of highlighted areas is the things
that I did with students 'cause I do believe that we want to take care of our youth and
encourage them to have healthy activities. Maui County students through age 18 would
be $3 each time they went out. The Junior Golf Program and the MIL Golf Team
members in supervised practice at or match would pay $2 a round. The State of Hawaii
students through age 18, and that's anybody who doesn't fit the above, would pay $5 a
round. So, mostly these are off-island students out ofMaui County students.
On the weekends, the rates go up and you'll notice that for the residents with the resident
card it goes up to $15 from presently $9. Administration is proposing $14; I'm proposing
$15. This is the big change here. For retirees with a resident card, it's going from $8 to
$15. For nonresidents, non-Maui County residents with a Hawaii driver's license, I'm
suggesting that we go to $25. It was 15 or is 15. They're proposing 19; I'm proposing
25. For a non-resident, which is currently $30, the Administration was recommending
$35; I'm recommending $50 for weekend, non-resident play.
The Junior, uh, the youth programs go up slightly for the weekend and you can see that
comparison from 3 to $5 for the Maui County, the golf people stay the same, the Junior
Golf Program and the MIL team members stays the same, and the State of Hawaii
resident ... a State of Hawaii non-Maui County resident student would be $10 to play on
the weekends and holidays. So that kind of gives the rough of what this proposal is.
The revenues that will be generated from this sort of thing ... it was a hard, it was kind
of difficult to compare apples to apples, but just in the section not counting students, this
is not counting the students, based on the amount of play we've had, uh, I think last year
which was amounting to $828,000, the increase with just this part would be $382,218
worth of fees as they are now. There are a lot of unknowns in here because we ... I
changed the card play on the noncard now and the annual fee and no annual fee, and it
was based on no growth on the number of rounds. But I think there is going to be a
growth in the number of rounds and particularly on the weekend play. And Members, the
weekend play is where the money comes in to support the golf program. It's a weekend
play. And I think what we have seen in the past is that you can't get a tee time on
Saturday unless you are in line from Thursday night to make a tee time Friday morning.
And if you ever want to see how this works, you go to the golf course at around 11
o'clock at night in that parking lot and you'll think somebody is having a party 'cause
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there are cars lined up there to make tee times. Now, it might have changed. I haven't
checked this out. This process might have changed since I was around, but this was what
happened, and they had quite an interesting honor system and all of that, but I don't think
that that's the way that our residents should have to make a tee time or stand in line for a
tee time. So, I'd be happy to try to answer any questions, Members, at this point.
CHAIR KANE: Members? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh, yes. Thank you so much, Charmaine, for doing the work
on this. I really do appreciate it. One question that I have is on, this would be in the
second, uh, or I guess the third bank of figures with daily rates, weekends and holidays.
The $9 from the residents with a resident card that I can understand. What was the
rationale for keeping the retirees who generally, you know, not always, but sometimes
have reduced incomes at the same level as the regular resident with a resident card?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you for the question, Ms. Johnson. The reason is that,
basically and bluntly, the retirees are on a weekend or holidays seven days a week. And
that if they could play for that very cheap rate of $3 during the weekday, would they
consider playing then rather than playing on the weekend, which is the time that a lot of
other working folks perhaps can't play except on the weekends. So that was the
reasoning behind that. But I would, I would certainly hope that the retirees would
recognize that and kind of cooperate with it. We're not telling them they can't play at all.
If you want to play, you play for the going rate for any resident for the weekends and
holidays.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I'm assuming that, that goes along with the rationale
that, that is the principal income for the golf course and so anything that would be taking
away from that revenue is why it would be, you know, looked at in this manner. Is that
correct?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Thank you, Charmaine, for doing this. You
must be a night owl. I'm not that familiar with this program so I need a little background.
The annual rate, the $60 that you're doing away with entirely, is that like a registration
fee or does that allow a retiree with a resident card to play any time during the year
without paying anything else?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, the only time they would ... they can play any time
during the year but they'd pay $2 the seed fee is all. So they pay the $60 per year, it's
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like an annual pass kind of thing, but then there's a service charge for each time you play
of$2.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So have you done any kind of, I wouldn't expect
you have, but I'm just asking if you've done any kind of analysis to see what the bottom
line difference would be from these changes?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, actually I kind of did, but I didn't want to blur your
minds with it. I have a ... of course you know how I love matrices, but I have one of
those. The only part that's difficult is that I cannot compare it to what's the actual play
because the seed fee is grouped together with the resident monthly cards and the retiree
cards. It can be extrapolated out to see how many cards were purchased and I think there
was 500 something. I can look for that ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
self-sufficient?

Will this change allow this golf course be more

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I believe it will. Ms. Anderson and Members, I believe that
this rate fee, even though I can only kind of extrapolate out that it will be that savings or
create the revenues that I talked about in the categories where I'm sort of changing, it's,
right now it's only at 382,000, but that's not counting any of the student play and it's not
accounting for increased play at the ... just overall increased play at the golf course. But
I think it will get them well underway because actually there was also an increase in the
concession contract so that I think totally what the Administration had been projecting
was like 446,000 or something like that. And mind you, I think they have incorporated, if
I'm not mistaken maybe Ms. Koller knows, I think they incorporated their fee increase
revenue into their budget. She's nodding so I think that's what they did do which
sometimes I wish they wouldn't do until we pass the fees actually but ... I feel confident
that we'll get them well underway to being self-sufficient again.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Questions, Members? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I had the opportunity of
briefly chatting with Member Tavares on the proposal, and I think one of the biggest
concern for myself was the area of the monthly rate that initially when the golf course
was here the figures themselves were just baffling to me to see that we were giving golf
for less than a dollar per day virtually and that had some concerns considering the need to
continuously upkeep the golf course so that it stays competitive. For the retirees with
Member Tavares' proposal, you know, to bring it down to $3 it really gives them the
opportunity to take advantage of the weekday play and allow the course to actually
generate more income during the weekends. I like what I see and this is something that
myself I can support. So, thank you very much, Member Tavares.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Members. Any more questions or comments to Ms. Tavares on the
proposed golf fund rates and fees? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. I can support this. I like the idea
of encouraging the retirees to play even more during the week with the reduced rate
compared to what was originally considered as well as giving our working folks the
opportunity and our youngsters to come out during the weekends as, you know, our
youngsters have to have school to deal with and the working folks most typically are
working Monday through Friday, and the rate increases are basically have to do with the
realities of the cost of doing business for the County as well so, you know, this is a good
proposal, Chairman, I'll support it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions, comments, Members? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I want to thank Member Tavares for
working so hard on this thing. If we're going to say that our golf course is sufficient,
then the numbers that Member Tavares is proposing I think is fair, pretty fair for the local
guy. And for the non-Maui resident ... I think the non-Maui residents bring the most
income for our golf course and not only that we've taken care some of those
non-residents that play on our golf course on the weekday. On the weekend fees, it's
almost comparable to some of the resort courses and the thrust for the weekend is to
make sure that, you know, our local residents have first crack actually when you look at
the pricing in golfing at the Waiehu Golf Course. So, it's a step forward. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Any further discussion in this area, Members?
Hearing none, Members. Ms. Tavares, thank you very much for your proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, could Ijust add a disclaimer?
CHAIR KANE: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Since I came up with this proposal and it was very difficult
to compare apples and apples because of the mixture of those seed fees. I think that this
is a good proposal as a starting point, and I would ask that if they are looking like they're
going to come up short or if we can get better numbers to look at this, you know, more
realistically or more accurately, I guess, then I would ask the Department to come back to
the body should they still not be able to make their budget to the year. Instead of us
giving them a cash advance, let them wait till they actually really need it before we do a
supplemental transfer from the General Fund. But I just like to put the disclaimer that I
did the best I could under the circumstances with the information but I may be, you
know, off couple hundred thousand dollars but I hope not. I would just encourage people
to please try and support our golf course. There's you know I think we heard the golf
course superintendent say that there's been increased play during the weekdays and I
think that's a real healthy sign for the golf course. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any final questions or comments in this area? Hearing none,
Members. Again, Ms. Tavares, thank you very much for your work on this area of our
budget.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry, Chair, one more thing I forgot to mention.
CHAIR KANE: Please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The golf course personnel also helped me with the figures
and the information that they gave me. In fact, they were in my office this morning
trying to do the revenue projection with my proposal so I really appreciate that they're
coming over to work on that too. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, the Chair is going to call for a two-minute recess. Just
very brief and we'll reconvene in a couple of minutes. 11 :27 recess ... .(gavel) . ..
RECESS:

11:25 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:27 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay, Members, thank you very much for that very brief recess.
The Chair just wanted to get some reference points for you so that we can continue our
discussion. I think Member Tavares' proposal to this body will help us nicely into
dovetailing it to the next portion of our discussion. As I've stated to the body last night,
the intention was to follow up with a pass through the rates and fees schedule. So, I'll
ask each of you to please if you can pull out your ordinance book and under ... Page 2 of
Appendix B, Revenues, Rates, Fees and Assessments, the Chair will now take us through
a pass here. And I'll provide you folks a moment to get that information before you.
And while you folks are doing that and ...
On Page number 2, as you know, we've already had our discussion or initial discussion
on the real property tax component, Account No. 3102 on Page 2. So we've established
that. For working numbers at this point, so the Chair is going to start walking you
through. Is everybody on Page 2 of General Fund - Revenues, Rates, Fees and
Assessments under Appendix B? Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, question, please. Just as we talked about the golf
course rates/fees included in their budgets or as revenue, are all of these fees in the
revenue as if we had already approved them?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Morrison, I'll let you respond, please.
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MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, it's my understanding that they were
incorporated in except for those exceptions that we've noted in the Parks Department, for
example, as with water and sewer rate increases that were not included.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you. So they were included as revenues?
MS. MORRISON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. As well as expenses. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And the Chair will skip over once we get through to that, the water
and sewer, since we've already made an initial pass on those areas as well, Members.
Okay. So everybody, again, under Appendix B, Page 2, on account number which is on
the far left-hand side of your page and that will be the Chair's initial reference point for
you Account No. 3102 under taxes, real property tax, Members, we have done our first
pass of that and have established numbers for working numbers.
Moving down, the Chair notes under Account 3210 at the bottom of Page 2 for Licenses:
Peddling Merchandise, there has been an adjustment. The Chair will concur and again
the Chair has concurred with the rate increases and so we'll go through and see if there
are any objections to the concurrence. The change you see bracketed $25 the change has
been made to $50 per year. Okay, and Members, the Chair will keep moving until you ..

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I have a question. And it's with the wording on
the very last part of that 3210 where it says, " ... nor for persons 60 years of age or older."
And does that mean they pay no fee?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct. It says, no license required for and then it lists the exemptions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Urn ...
CHAIR KANE: And that's been existing.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And that's what's in existence and there was no change
proposed for at least implementing a minimal fee?
CHAIR KANE: No. Ms. Johnson, anything that is reflected as bracketed is the existing that is
being changed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I have no problem with increasing the fee, but I do
have a problem with people not even paying just a nominal fee. And would it be possible
to insert, you know, some type of ... even if it was just a nominal fee for this kind of
license? Because the whole purpose of licenses is just even if you're looking at paying
for the costs to actually issue the license.
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CHAIR KANE: Member Johnson, you have the opportunity to make a proposal for this body as
far as adjustments to the proposed item before us. So, if you'd like to make a proposal
and if the body ... and Members, because this is our last day any proposal that's made
I'm going to ask for a majority consensus and we're going to move on that way we don't
have to come back to it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And my proposal would be, I would say, a minimum of $10
for persons 60 years of age or older.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, so we would have a separation here, and a specific note that
persons 60 years of age or older would pay a $10 fee. Members, the proposal is on the
floor.
Any questions or comments before the Chair asks for your consensus
consideration? Mr. .. , excuse me, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES:
required?

Yes, thank you.

This will be before it says no license

CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, so you didn't mean that even if they were ... if they
were 60 years or older and they were selling fruits they had to pay this $10?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, that's not my intention.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because that's an exempt ... those were exempt items that
would be ... that would still be applicable, the exemptions.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But this would just be applicable to the fee for everything
else.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Alright. Mr. Chairman, with that clarification, I can support
this proposal.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, so Ms. Johnson, I need you to and the Chair, I'm sorry, did not I guess
understand or I need, and I think the body needs to be clear on what your intent is here.
So, if you read through ... the $50 per year for a peddling merchandise license or $5 per
month for a period of less than a month. No license required for peddling fish, fresh
fruits, lei's flowers or vegetables, nor for persons 60 years of age or older. So there's no
license required currently for those and your amendment is to what?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm amending it to state that it would, it would be $50 per
year for individuals, you know, in a let's say a standard age classification or, you know,
the next thing would be or $10 for persons age 60 years of age or older. And then I'd be
eliminating that last line but just moving that wording forward.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, so we are creating classifications, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Age classification. Okay, so, currently, 60 years or older does not pay
anything, which is existing $25. The proposal is to bump it up to $50 and that anybody
under the age of 60 will be paying 50. And that anybody 60 or older will be paying 10.
Okay, Members, we have the proposal on the floor. Member Johnson is that clear for
what the Chair ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, that's clear because right now there's an age
classification anyway so, you know, it's ... I just think they should at least pay for the
cost of the issuance of the license.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So there's been a $25 increase for everybody and it will be a $10
increase for those 60 years and older. So they're actually going to end up paying $10
instead of nothing. Okay, Members, the Chair is going to call for a consensus on this.
Any objections to incorporating the amended language proposed by Member Johnson?
Hearing no objections, Members, we will have this incorporated. Okay. So, Staff, if you
can, please, take note. Thank you. Any additional request in this area under Account No.
3210?
Moving on to Page 3, Members, the Chair recognizes a request or proposal under 3214,
about the middle of the page, under Taxicab Drivers, the number of amendments. A
hundred dollars from $10 for initial issuance. There's a bracket for $5 replacement or
renewal. We have underline $50 annual fee. We have addition $100 transfer of taxicab
business permit; $15 replacement of lost, stolen, or mutilated business permit; $15
change of vehicle; $15 replacement of lost, stolen, or mutilated rent service decal. Chair
concurs. Anyadjustments? We're moving forward, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, underneath the 3214 with the Ocean Recreation
Activities Permits, I believe that during our committee meetings that category there was a
suggested increase by the Administration to have an increase to $1,000. I don't believe
that there was consensus within the committee at the time because I know we had wanted
to wait until the Administrative Rules were done. But I just wanted to alert Members that
if they do want to make a change to that because there were only five of us on the
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committee, I would like to hear about that now because we had deferred on the actual
adoption of that fee.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Where is this?
CHAIR KANE: Try hang on one second.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is on 3214 just following ...
CHAIR KANE: This is after taxicabs.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Taxicabs.
CHAIR KANE: And there is, uh, and there is no proposal from the Administration, Members,
and so Member Johnson is just informing us on FYI and she's bringing it to your
attention if you want to take some action at this point in time. Is there any request to take
action? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No, just clarification. The proposal by the Parks
Committee was $1,000 per year for each location or for three locations?
CHAIR KANE: All three.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I really believe that this is an issue that needs to be
discussed in Committee, Mr. Chair. It's too far reaching for us to make any kind of a
decision on it as we're going through the budget. But it's not something that we couldn't
go back and change so I'd appreciate it if we just keep moving.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares, any additional comments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Same thing.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Member Johnson, thank you for the FYI.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Members, we're moving and the Chair will only stop when I see proposals
unless Members alert me to something they want us to consider. And I know Staff will
catch something if I bypass something because I am basically looking for underscores
and brackets.
Members, the Chair is continuing to tum. I'm on Page 6, 7,8,9, 10, 11. I see and maybe
I can get clarification from Staff, under . .. on Page 12, Non-business Licenses and
Permits. And I don't know if that underscore that says "in addition" under Account No.
3242 has any significance and I also see a back end bracket but not a front end bracket,
so ... Ms. Morrison, do you see anything in this area that I need to note for the
Member's consideration?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, as far as I know there were no intended changes to this area. I
don't know if the "in addition" was something that Corp. Counsel added to just clarify or
ifit's intended to be underlined.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Ms. Fujita Villarosa, any comments there?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, that's not an addition. I think that's just the way it
appears.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members, I just want to move cautiously so we
don't miss anything.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think that bracket you talked about is a typographical.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Because it's suppose to be a "k". Septic tank.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Very astute, Member Tavares. Thank you very much. And I can
say that even after passing the age of 40, my eyes are still pretty good. I caught a little
bracket.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Hey, you caught it, man.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, which line was that?
CHAIR KANE: That line was under Account No. 3242, the middle of the page. It goes down
about 15 lines where it reads, For demolish plumbing piping, et cetera, and it ends with
lateral, cesspool, septic tan and that should be a letter "k".
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Members, we're moving to Page 13, 14, 15, 16, 17. Okay, we're coming up. Here we
go. On Page 18, under Account No. 3400, REVENUE FROM USE OF MONEY AND
PROPERTY FOR FEES - DISABLED PERSONS, PARKING PLACARDS. We have
bracketed out various areas. Replacement for lost card $10 deleted. Replacement for
stolen free if police submitted; otherwise, $10 deleted. Replacement for mutilated free if police submitted, otherwise; deleted. Oh, excuse ... (end of tape . .. and then we
have here incorporated, the proposal is to incorporate replacement for lost, stolen or
mutilated so all we're doing is consolidating, Members. So this is just a fix. And the
same thing under the temporary parking placard same thing. Members, any objections or
adjustments? Again, the consolidation.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. We're moving on, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Before you move any farther, much further, on Page 16, you
didn't catch that bracket. The one on the bottom of the page.
CHAIR KANE: I spock 'em right pass Water Supply.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Actually, no, it's including the Department so there's a bracket
before it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, no, but it means that it's taking it out.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. And I, I would guess it's because since the
Department is now under the County of Maui they don't need separate references to the
Water Department.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any objections to the removal ... Page 16, Account No.
3295, Filing Fees, the removal of the Department of Water Supply because now they're
incorporated into the County.
Members, on Page 18 ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Now everybody going look for brackets.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, on 19 at the top, we have a underscore, we have a deletion of $15, the
Charges for Dishonored Negotiable Instruments under Account No. 3423. And it's been
increased to $25. Adjustments? Concurrence. Thank you, Members.
Under Animal Shelter Revenue, Account No. 3430, we have various adjustments. We
have a bracket Impoundment. Five dollar fee for each day of impoundment. And we
have incorporated for our consideration first impound, second impound, third impound,
fourth impound and thereafter, so we have a step fee schedule, Members. Any objections
to the proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, we're moving, Members. The Chair does not see anything under ... on
Page 20. Excuse me, on the top, Service Charge and that would be continuing under the
Animal Shelter Revenue on to the next page. We have a bracket of $5 and we have an
incorporation of $25 for collection service prior to or at the time of collection.
Objections? Adjustments? Concurrence?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Concur.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, moving down.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Of course, it's not collecting animals. That's horrendous.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Morrison, any comments just to ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Collecting checks, right?
MS. MORRISON: I'm not aware.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We'll follow up and see what that ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: She's in the audience if we want to ask her.
CHAIR KANE: It's a service charge and so I believe they're increasing for checks that are
written. No?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: This is for the traps? It's on two different pages so I'm not
sure what the heading goes under.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Fujita Villarosa.
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MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, the Maui County Code citation that goes with this item
is 6.20 in the Maui County Code, which has to do with collection of animals. Prior to or
at the time of collection of a dog or cat, a service charge of $5 shall be paid for the
collection service. It shall be the responsibility of the person requesting the collection
service to deliver the dog or cat in a clean and sanitary manner.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KANE: Chair has one question. So as John Q. Public volunteering because there's cats
hanging out by my house and I catch them and call them to help the person who's doing
that has to pay $25 instead of $5 for that ... for the good of the County?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: The ordinance says that an owner of a dog or cat or any person
authorized in writing to act on behalf of an owner so ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay, great. That answers my question.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, any ...
MS. KOLLER: Mr...
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, if the section of the Code says $5, there will need to be a companion
bill and we don't have that bill. I guess we can still change the rate for the budget, but I
would suggest that the Administration send that companion bill down for revenue by the
appropriate committee.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Ms. Morrison is making that note. Members,
we're moving. Chair does not see any additional proposals on Page 20. The Chair is
going to take his time on the next page since we have all the charges for current services.
I don't believe there were any proposals that were highlighted. Ms. Morrison, there are
no changes, correct, for General Fund under Use of Park Facilities that you're aware of?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, there is one small change on Page 22.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
on 22 ...

We'll get there just in a moment. Members, nothing on 21? So,

MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, on Page 22, the Hula Bowl Maui is down about the middle of the
page indicates $3 for Hula Bowl ticket.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. And that change is ...
MS. MORRISON: That change should be ... that should be bracketed that whole section. We
don't have a contract that includes this as part of their responsibility. Last year, I believe
in the Hula Bowl, the sponsor just paid park fees rather than this fee because it was not in
the contract then either. So, it should just be deleted.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, the Chair's collection back several years was a graduated $1,
$2, $3, $4, $5 and so this is news. And it's not being marked. Thank you for noting that.
Was that something that was accompanied with some sort of letters pointing, uh,
highlighting this since it's not being shown in the actual ordinance proposal?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, it was a question from your Staff to me earlier in the budget
review process. And I checked with the Office of Economic Development to find out the
information in regard to this, and that was their response to me that this was essentially
unused, I guess, would be the best way to describe it because the, there had not been a
contract. It was with the new Hula Bowl Maui provider and last year or this coming year
there is not yet a contract. They had simply operated under the other Parks fee. And this
fee is, has been in the past, included in a contract when they had an actual contract.
CHAIR KANE: Questions, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, that's quite disturbing because part of the Hula Bowl
graduated schedule of charge per ticket was to offset the County's investment in
improving the stadium facilities, I think, and including the jumbo tron. And that this was
one mechanism through a multi-year period that the County would slowly recapture it's
initial outlay of financial resources. And I had thought that it was a multi-year agreement
that we had entered into. And for those of us that have some years on this Council can
recall that there was a great debate about whether or not the County should have fronted
the money instead of the sponsors. So, I find it interesting that the current Administration
feels not to go back and look at the history ofthis subject, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. I do remember in our
discussions, and I guess it was in the Parks Committee, that the Hula Bowl original
contractee was no longer part of the Hula Bowl. That the contract had basically been
abandoned and there was a new group that was coming in to put on the sponsor, uh, put
on the Hula Bowl, and I think it was because the time was so short that when they would
refer the Committee the talk was that they would work on the contract but for this year it
was kind of too late. And so, I think they weren't at that time and the Parks Department
had said that they would be applying the park fees that were appropriate for this event,
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and that the next one, the next two or whatever it was would have contracts. That's kind
of what I recall from the Parks Committee last year. And I think it was toward the end of
the year. Was it October, November or something like that and the Hula Bowl was in
February or ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It was a last minute thing.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, so it was kind of last because they were scrambling
around looking for a new sponsor, a new ... new everythings.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Ms. Tavares, thank you very much. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and that's accurate because they had run out of time.
The contract had actually expired and the only other option was to cancel the Hula Bowl.
So I believe there was also a discussion of a license agreement. That was my
understanding of at some point in time they may consider doing some type of a license
agreement. But that would have had to come to Committee; they had no time to do it.
So, I think also that the new owner of the Hula Bowl wanted to see if he actually could
tum the Hula Bowl around because I think he's seriously considering at this point in time,
if it is not profitable or if he can at least break even, that he will no longer or they will no
longer sponsor the Hula Bowl. It will just be moved somewhere else. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Members. In light of the discussion and the realization of this
situation, the Chair will put on the tao .. ,
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, Ms. Anderson, can I finish? Thank you. The Chair will recommend
a consideration of putting this back in as an incorporation since it is April and not
November, and allow the Economic Development Office in their negotiations for
whatever it is, a contract, or a lease agreement, and if this is a stumbling point, that they
come back and come to this body to request an amendment to have it deleted. Okay.
And that's the Chair's proposal. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I think that we shouldn't just operate
without a contract. And for the Administration just to request that we just delete this kind
of tells us that they don't intend to go forward with the contract. So, that's my question
to Ms. Morrison is are they going to proceed with the contract or are they just going to
use park assessment fees?
MS. MORRISON: If you'll note, this is for 2005. It doesn't say 2006. I think that's why the
recommendation was to delete it. It's unclear exactly what's going to happen going
forward into the FY 2006, urn, fiscal year.
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CHAIR KANE: Members, the Chair's intention is to insert 2006 Hula Bowl, which is going to
be next February, and through their negotiations if this again becomes a stumbling block,
then they can come to this body to request an amendment to what's in our ... in our
ordinance. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I was going to say that I would be happy to take this issue up
in my committee, you know, if you want to at least temporarily take the language out.
But you know it's whatever the will of the body is. I don't have any feeling one way or
the other because you know this ... having it here may be an impediment but if it is an
impediment then I guess what you're saying is correct that they will come back to us and
ask us to remove this if it is an impediment.
CHAIR KANE: And Members, to be fair the Chair would not propose this if it were November,
but we're in April so there provides ample time for this discussion to develop. Members,
the Chair has a proposal on the table for your consideration. Are there any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, Members, we'll have this underscored with the number 2005
changed to 2006. It would read $3 per . . . Hula Bowl Maui tickets sold for the 2006
game.
Okay, we're moving forward, Members. The Chair doesn't recognize any changes on
Page 22,23.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just want to ... since we were under Parks, as Members would
notice on Page 21, for use of County facilities, we have certain rates by categories
whether it be for profit or for nonprofit or even family use. I think one thing that
hopefully in the future, Chairman, if maybe Ms. Johnson under her standing committee
would consider is that we have multiple day, sometimes for the whole week, venues held
at our other facilities such as Ho 'okipa, and we've had Members concerned and looking
at expanding some of our facilities regarding public safety. As you notice, we don't have
a category to charge those events that at times we are asked to shut down the park for
community residential use to allow events to occur. And when we have those large
events at Ho 'okipa, at times over a week, we tell our community not to use their facility.
And yet, these people are bringing in national TV, sportswriters, and journalists from
around the world that is making money on the people's facility and, I think, maybe in the
future we need to have them consider to pay a fee to help offset the cost of us providing
the public safety measures required for any event, including our residential use. Thank
you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Are you, Council Chair Hokama, referring specifically to
hiring the police?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, not necessarily the police. I know, I think some Members would
like to have additional lifeguard towers, additional safety officers. And many times
because the County tends to want to be a co-sponsor, we waive fees. Well, I have a hard
time asking our residents who pay their property taxes and services for our programs that
for a week or ten days you cannot use your facility because we're going to let this entity,
a business entity use your facilities make some money and then not pay the County for
the use of that facility, whether it be a beach park or other amenities.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I do understand, Mr. Chair, what Council Chair
Hokama is speaking about. If you would be kind enough, Council Chair Hokama, to
generate some type of an initial document just listing your concerns then I would be
happy to take this up in my committee. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, Members, we've moving forward. The Chair is on Page 24
and moving, 25. On Page 26, Members, the Chair will not ... that we are with the
original fuel tax proposal from the Mayor, and there have been no other changes there.
Under Non-Business License and Permits, Account No. 3248 to 3297, there have been
adjustments. And as I think explained previously, they had some bracketed out motor
vehicles and that this language is more in line I believe with what HRS read is I think the
explanation was to us prior. So this language more accurately reflects and is consistent
with State law.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If, uh ... when you're done, if we could just quickly go back to ...
are we on Page 26, sir?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, we are.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just would ask if it's appropriate under Franchise Tax that we made
the appropriate adjustment whether it be in regards to Molokai Electric Company or Maui
Electric, Hana. Since the percentage is the same, I think we have just one utility at this
point, Chairman? So if it's just grammatical or non-substantive change, I would ask the
Committee to allow-CHAIR KANE: For deletion?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Corporation Counsel and Staff to maybe just put the correct utility
entity regarding franchise fee, tax, excuse me.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Fujita Villarosa, if you can, please, work with our Staff to
make the appropriate adjustments for consideration at some future point.
Okay, under the Licenses, the adjustments have been made. And, of course, the
additional change for all other motor vehicles in place of such motor vehicles designated
for carrying property for the purposes of, etc. Any objections in this area? Okay, hearing
none, Members, we're moving on. The Chair recognizes the time. When we get to Page
27 under Account No. 20 ... , uh, excuse me, 3470, the Chair has in his proposal identified
sewer rates at a different percentage. However, I did not present to you actual numbers
and that is something that we don't have in front of us but will be more than happy to
provide for discussion. Members, would you at this time would like to take our lunch
and come back, and that way, we can get ready for our afternoon session? Okay,
Members, time now is five after twelve. What is your pleasure? Is 1:30 needed or can
we come back earlier?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: One-thirty.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: One-thirty.
CHAIR KANE: One-thirty, Members, okay, we are in recess until 1:30. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

12:03 p.m.

RECONVENE:

1:35 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. Okay, Members, we are reconvened. I hope you all had a good
lunch break. Let's get to work. Members, we left off on Page ... tum it back ...
MS. KAWASAKI: Twenty-seven.
CHAIR KANE: ... 27, Members, under the Monthly Rates, we have not yet received the
monthly rate schedule to correlate with the 11 percent, which was one of the options that
the Department offered to us for consideration. However, we have made the adjustments
overall in your revenue and expenditure side of your budget document. And so,
Members, without objections, we're going to go ahead and defer on this until we get
those rates specific to the revenue that they described for us (inaudible) And the Chair,
without your objection, will continue with the 11 percent instead of the 17 percent rate
increase for sewer. Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. We're moving forward under Page 28, under Account No. 3471,
Fees Cesspool & Septic Tank Pumping. We have no changes except for Account No.
on Page 29, Members, 3490, the Reclaimed Water Service has been increased from 55
cents to 97 cents per thousand gallons. Chair concurs. Any adjustment requests? Ms.
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just have a question with regard to the cesspools. Because
of the EPA Decree or the rules and regulations regarding the cesspools, is the County still
going to be performing that service or do we not know?
CHAIR KANE: Do we have any response from Administration or from Corporation Counsel on
that?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, is the reference with regards to the EPA new rules
regarding closure?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Okay, I believe that those rules they don't apply to single-family
dwellings. They apply to mostly commercial.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, I just wanted to make sure because I wasn't certain if
we were doing any pumping at all or if that was just going to be totally discontinued
because I know they were trying to phase that out. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chairman, just a comment regarding this. Basing it from past
comments from the prior Public Works Director it's my understanding, if you recall, as a
Member of the Committee, he did state to us that the County's intention is to slowly I
guess gradually reduce the amount of service for cesspool pumping. Just basically either
limit or lower the amount of accounts that they have so to slowly phase out their
participation in this program. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further discussion, Members? Okay, so without objections on the
reclaimed water service, 97 cents changed from 57 cents existing. We're moving on,
Members.
On Page 30, Page 31, Page 32, 33, 34, on Page 35, Members, without objections, I
believe you've already indicated that we would be replacing the fees and making the
necessary adjustments with Member Tavares' proposal, Members. This is a verification
ofthat last action. Objections? Hearing none. Okay, Members, we will be incorporating
the charges for the golf fund in this area. Okay, we're moving on, Page 36 none. On
Page 37, I believe we had a comment ... Ms. Morrison, did you have comments in this
area regarding water?
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MS. MORRISON: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. We had earlier mentioned there were a couple of
small typos on this page. At the top section, the 3 inch where it says bracketed $60 and
then says $70 that should say 74. And then at the bottom, the Ag customers, the same
thing. The 3 inch bracketed 60 and then it says 70; that should be 74 and those were
typos.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. Again, the Chair has concurred with a level of reluctance on
moving forward these numbers. Members, adjustments? We have concurrence. We're
movmgon.
Members, on Page 38, we have on line, uh, excuse me, Account No. 3481, Restoration
Charge for Water Service, as well as installation charges. Again, just following up, we
had bracketed items and adjustments made by Administration. Chair concurs. Any
adjustments here? We have concurrence. Members, we're moving on.
On Page 39, under Account No., towards the bottom, we have bracketed out Laboratory
Charges completely. And then underneath, we have under Account No. 3485, Sewer
Billing Services. We have a bracketed amount 27,877 and a proposal 33,230.
Adjustments?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama. Question, please.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If our Budget Director can tell us is this by new contractual
agreement? And I am assuming HBWS stands for the Honolulu Board of Water Supply?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, I'm not familiar with this. Sorry, that I can't respond in any
informed way.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, you know, I'm happy to continue to have us move
forward, but if we could have that verified, and I have been one of the supporters of
investing our money to get independence from the Honolulu system so that we may make
the appropriate adjustments to the advantage of our, our residential base and business
base. And so, I would be happy if we can get some information before our final decision
regarding this matter, please.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. So, again, Mr. Hokama, just to verify to get verification on
the acronym?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Acronym, the reason for the approximate $5,500 increase, and
whatever terms of the agreement we have with the Honolulu Board of Water Supply.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Morrison, thank you very much. Ms. Anderson, in this area?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It has a reference Attachment B-5, and I have no B-5 in my
ordinance, Attachment B-5. Does anybody else?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Fujita Villarosa, any comments here and that's right above.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: My attachments end at B-4.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller, do you have a comment?
MS. KOLLER: There is an attachment. I can share it. I don't know if anyone has ... if
anybody else needs it. It's at the back of that section on the rates and fees schedule. It's
like, it's about four pages, double-sided.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Members, from ...

It's hourly rate for equipment and other charges with deposits,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I found it. I found it, Mr. Chair. My efficient aide put it in
another section under Water Department.
CHAIR KANE: Dated January 19, 2005-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --from Mr. Tengan. Okay, Members, any additional questions in this area, and
Mr. Hokama, we'll have Ms. Morrison provide a response.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: We're getting that e-mail sent now. Any additional questions in this area,
Members? We're turning to Page 40, 41, and 42. The Chair does not see any other
requests for adjustments. We have reached the end, Members, of rates ... (end a/tape ..

Members, your Chair will direct your attention to the new Exhibit 1, dated today,ll a.m.
And the Chair will take a moment to allow you to get there.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I had a question about the attachment, urn, B-2, which deals
with the recreation area ...
CHAIR KANE: In our ordinance, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, in the ordinance.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Some of us closed their book already. Hang on. One second.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm a little slow.
CHAIR KANE: Either that or we're a little fast.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And I kind of went through this and I couldn't see why we
have this ordinance attached to the ... what was it we're supposed to look at that's
Attachment B-2? Maybe Ms. Villarosa could help me with what page there was a change
or why is it in there?
.CHAIR KANE: Ms. Fujita Villarosa.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I'm not sure why it's attached to the budget ordinance. It's always
been attached. Maybe we need to take a look at that and see if we really need to have it
anymore.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think it was attached before because we were doing rates
and fees, and so there was a reference to the definitions and things like that but ...
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Could be.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Maybe our Staff has figured it out.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I think it relates to Page 297 where it gives, urn, rental of
department equipment. I don't think that's shown elsewhere within our rates and fees
schedule. And I know that oftentimes that there's been a revision during the year, the
document will be attached at the back of the schedule, if it's more detail than what we
can put in to the rates and fees section. You see under 13. 04.140?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
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MS. KOLLER: There's several different fees.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, just because the fees are stated there?
MS. KOLLER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: There's no changes though proposed for those, right?
MS. KOLLER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. Okay. Did we have this discussion before about
moving this to the rates and fee schedule?
MS. KOLLER: Yes. And what we have been trying to do, urn, as there's a revision in the
section of the Code that relates to a rate and fee, we, uh, what happens is we reference the
as set forth in the budget ordinance. But evidently, this section has not come up for
renewal or revision.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, as it's being revised.
MS. KOLLER: As it's being revised, we make those corrections.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Thank you for the clarification, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Sure. Any additional questions in your Appendix B area, Members, Pages 2
through 42 before we close our books? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Different section of the ordinance portion, Chainnan, if you will
allow so.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and before I recognize you then, Mr. Hokama, again, are there any
questions, other questions in Pages 2 through 42? Hearing none. Mr. Hokama, you're
recognized.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chainnan, I would ask if you will please allow the Committee to
look at Page 28 of the Special Purpose Revenue Schedule.
CHAIR KANE: The page again, I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Actually, it's Page 28. It's actually the first page when you go to
Special Purpose Revenues, Chainnan. It lists the various type of funds whether it be
revolving or review fund section. I would ask if ...
CHAIR KANE: Hang on one second, Mr. Hokama. Members are trying to get there. Under
your first section, Members, FY 2006 ordinance, Page 28, Section 2, Special Purpose
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Revenues Scheduling of Revolving Special Funds for FY '06 is your title. Is that it, Mr.
Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Members, are we there? It's on Page 28.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, it's part of Appendix A.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Appendix A.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, go back.
CHAIR KANE: It's under your red tab, I believe, Members ... in the front, the first section.
Thank you, Mr. Hokama, for your patience.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I'm happy to allow the Members to be able to follow me. Yeah,
Appendix A would be the grants itself. And then right after that, Members, would come
the Special Purpose Revenue section.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you, Mr. Hokama, everybody is there.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I just would ask the Members to look at the proposal
under letter K, which is the Animal Management Revolving Fund, Chairman. The
proviso won't match up to the amount of funds in the revolving fund so I guess we need
to make an appropriate adjustment, Chairman.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Staff will be putting together all of the provisos in the
budget ordinance, uh, ones that will be as we've been adding on Exhibit A, oh, Exhibit 1,
excuse me, and also in this area because under Item E there was that second provision
relating to these two equipment personnel and that item is, I think the Committee has
already decided that, that would be deleted. And so, this whole group would be left out
but Council Chair Hokama is correct, this $100,000 had been marked as a tag for us to
reVIew.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, and I would just ask the Members for the future that
maybe . . . I had hoped to consider sunsetting this, all these funds, and having the
departments come back for justification for re-establishing. But I believe, you know,
funds such as Fund A, the internal financing and buy-back revolving fund, which is for
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the FY 2006 would have approximately $600,000 plus, could be a source of how to fund
an initiative such as Mr. Molina's proposal as well as, hopefully, when our standing
committee that Mr. Mateo chairs that the funds from conditions of land use approvals or
have you, would be required to be placed into a fund where Council would then have the
authority through appropriations to fund initiatives like Mr. Molina's. At times,
currently, under the administrative policy, Mr. Chairman, some of those funds do not
come to the County but goes directly to a non-profit and, therefore, Council has no
review or ability to comment whether or not the fee structure and rates that are being paid
to satisfy the County's concerns for housing is actually being met fairly and consistently.
So I just bring that up as alternative ways that we may address some of the pressing
issues facing our community, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any further questions or comments within our
budget ordinance? Hearing none. Oh, I'm sorry, Ms. Morrison, before I close the book.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. On that, that same page, yesterday there was some
discussion about the $300,000 for tree trimming and Chair Hokama had indicated that he
thought it might be a good place to appropriate those funds into the Highway
Beautification Fund. And I was informed by Corporation Counsel, Deputy Corporation
Counsel, that that would be an appropriate mechanism if we wanted to do that. So, I just
wanted to bring that up now while we're looking at this page.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, any additional comments in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I thank the Budget Director for following through on my
request and at this time I'm still thinking, uh, considering whether or not I would like to
make a proposal specific in this area. So, I thank the Budget Director for her comments
this afternoon.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further comments or questions? Clarification? Thank you,
Members. Chair would direct your attention to, again, Exhibit 1 as of 4127/05 as of 11
a.m. Members, you have received your next round or your copy of where we are at. The
Chair will ask you to direct your attention to Page 31, the last page, and at this point we
are showing that we are 963,000, almost $964,000 in the plus. Two points the Chair
would like to point out before we proceed with all the individual requests which the Chair
will ... we will, as a body, entertain for a last time to go through this exhibit. The first
thing is that we've been notified through the grapevine, and we are following up, that at
this point in time the Air Medical Ambulance, according to language that is being worked
on, that the State is going to require $1 million and they're going to do a dollar to dollar
match and that requirement is for two years, per year, a million dollars per year in order
for them to have the service continued. So, to be quite frank, Members, it's not going in
the same direction that it was intended in the first place and it's now the State is basically
saying that the ambulatory service is an incorporated part of this service and that we will
now be paying a dollar for dollar match for this service for it to function. And it's in
writing that it's a million dollars for '05-'06 which for us is Fiscal Year '06, and for
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'06-'07 which is for us Fiscal Year '07. So, the Chair wanted to make that
information ... bring you up to speed on what we're aware of, which Members would
impact our budget if you do support moving forward whether it's reluctant or not. It
would impact it by 200,000 because the Chair has put in 800,000. The Chair's original
proposal was a million. We thought about the 6115, which was what we currently pay,
and we worked with the 800 figure thinking that there was going to be some compromise.
If you recall our discussion with Ms. Maiava and I believe Dr. Rosen, if I'm not
mistaken, and they did give us preliminary figures of around $800,000 that they're
working towards and it doesn't seem that that's materializing. The other point on this,
Members, is that there's no language with reference to the reimbursement and that the
County, at this point in time, will not be receiving any reimbursements as the State is
currently and will continue to receive for that service. So, I bring to your attention,
Members, we are still following up on that so I want you to be aware of that 200,000. So,
as you look at this last number, I'm not asking you to get too excited about that. The
good news is that we're in the plus and not in the minus. But there are two things and
that's the first thing that I wanted to bring to your attention before we get into our final
round of discussion.
Second issue, Members, is with the decision that was made yesterday of One Main Plaza
and if that decision stands, then the Chair intends and wants to work cooperatively with
the Administration to provide the adequate monies for them to find their space needs.
The Chair has no intention of not accommodating Plan B and working with the
Administration through our Chair of the Council and with this body's collaborative
efforts by providing the adequate monies that will be necessary for them to take care of
their needs for space requirements. So, that's another dollar amount that we do have.
Whether various people who have testified this morning and other discussions maybe
they're not fully informed and maybe they are. We did provide, as you recall, we did put
a 500,000 figure plus there was another 350,000 something so there's $800,000
something plus for lease requirements, and ifthere's more that's needed this is something
that I want Members to realize with the decision of One Main that we need to make sure
that we provide the necessary adjustments to take care of our continuing needs.
So, those are the two items, Members, I wanted to point out to you before we begin. Ms.
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That 800,000 does not include
the lease rent for Planning Department's Long-Range Division which is already planning
to move over there?
CHAIR KANE: If 500,000 ... the 500,000 figure that your Chair plugged in was in the initial
proposal not knowing what the final dollars so that was just a number that was plugged
there. The other 300,000 was something that was already included in the Mayor's
proposed budget so the Chair is just identifying for you that there is a total of 800,000
currently in the numbers that reflect the bottom line, and the Chair is just making you
aware that if we need more and we anticipate with the memo that Corporation Counsel
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sent to us yesterday of their requirements, if that move materializes, that they will have
requirements of approximately 1.2 plus another 260 so it's about 1.46 to provide their
overall, and that includes renovations 'cause that's to the raw piece within the One Main
Plaza. So, just to give you as much information as I can, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There's already 100,000 in the budget for ... oh, I see,
I'm sorry. The Department of Water Supply's move to the Hokama Building ... I'm just
wondering if, if the move to One Main Plaza by the Long-Range Planning Division is in
their budget separate from this original 300,000 that was there?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Morrison, are you able to respond?
MS. MORRISON: No, I'm not.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, we'll have that followed up on, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Again, additionally, Members, the 500,000 and the $300,000 somewhat, I don't
have in front of me right now, but they're in separate places. Okay. The 500,000 your
Chair plugged it into Item No. 12, on Line 165, Page 4, and that's where the Chair
plugged in that dollar amount right below the One Main Plaza deletion. So, Members,
Chair again just giving you a heads up on these two areas that the Chair feels are
unnecessary items for your consideration. We will work with Administration to help us
identify as accurately as possible the dollar amounts needed to provide for migration for
their temporary movements. Any questions before we begin with our final round,
Members? Hearing none.
Members, we're going to start off in revenues again and give one final consideration to
revenues. Under real property taxes ... I know that some of you asked us to consider a
final visit in this area so the Chair will recognize that. Member Johnson, I know that you
had made a statement so I want to recognize your additional opportunity in this case.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I really appreciate that, Mr. Chair. I think that because
we are looking really hard at the, I guess a policy statement if you will, with regard to the
time shares, I had many calls in my office that basically supported a higher tax than even
the $16. I still think that even though the $14 is out there, every single dollar that we're
not collecting right now is going to, at some point in time, impact us as a County. We
know the huge expenses that are coming. We know that sewage capacity alone and I'll
just say it, South and West Maui. I mean, even the roadway projects that we have to do,
I just am really, really concerned about this so I'm still proposing the $16 at the minimum
for the time share industry tax rate, and so I would ask the body one final time to consider
the $16 rate that we had spoken about and I'm not going to rehash all the reasons.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we have our final opportunity to secure our rates and Member
Johnson is reducing the original proposal by our Mayor of $16 for the time share
classification. Are there any questions or comments? I know we've had a lot of
discussions here but the Chair will recognize our final opportunity. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I support this. I think ... I
think time share needs to be ... step up to the plate and pay their fair share. And I don't
think that this ... you know the reason they go to time share, Mr. Chair, is because it's
more profitable. So they're making, are making more profit than a hotel would make or
they would be a hotel. And the hotels have to pay their fair share. So I think it's only
fair to ask them to do the same. And, you know, Ms. Johnson decided not to go through
all the reasons why and I think we've discussed it before. I think it's a fair request to ask
them to pay the $16 rate so I support that.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further comments in this area before the Chair
asks for majority consensus? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, as much as I'd like to support as much
as possible in this area, I think that taking this first step at $14 ... at the $14 rate is
reasonable for us. We are looking at more than just what is lost revenues from TAT, and
I think we went through this before about the impacts to the communities, about the
impacts to the economy that also supports the tourist industry. So I think until we have
more definitive information, I would feel comfortable with this rate, and I know we
talked earlier about looking at possibly a two-year incremental increase--some this year
and some next year--and that will give us, I think, the time to gain more information
regarding the impacts that time shares have not just on the hotel industry, but also on the
economy in our communities. And as we pointed out, especially West Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further discussion in this area, Members? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, obviously, this is a hard one since would be for us our
first attempt to try and provide a rate that is fair to other tax categories as well as fair to
our residents of our County. At this time, I will stand by the $14 because what I look
forward in the coming year prior to next budget session, Mr. Chairman, is that hopefully
the standing committees that have jurisdiction over certain subject matters can review
within their parameters whether or not there's some fairness in the rate. I know there's
comments about impact on our other County facilities that the time share industry has ...
and I think one of the comments was regarding our parks and whatnot, and I think that's a
fair comment since at this point they do not pay parks assessments or it's not part of the
formula for them to be considered. But if we look at that, and even under hotel resorts,
there is no parks assessment component. So, to be fair, then I would ask that we also
look at the hotel resort category to see if we need to make adjustments in the parks
assessment program too. And then if we want to look at the housing category that's in
the Code, I would help out Mr. Mateo in his category. Then we also need to look at
besides the hotel resort group and time shares to ante up and provide their fair share just
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as the Land Use Commission is currently viewing an application before them shouldn't
we not also then consider commercial and industrial categories to provide affordable
units or funding to take care of employee needs? So I will ask that the Members consider
this as the good first step and we use the remaining of the year prior to the next session to
work hard and review and be able to provide some fairness in the next budget
consideration as we review once more the annual rates, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Further discussion, Members? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because of the discussion that we had earlier on this too, I
cannot recall if we had sufficient money in the Council Services budget to actually go
through the study that had been requested to do an independent study to perhaps gather
some survey work for actuals rather than depending on industry study. So, if we ... I
don't believe we put in any amount that was earmarked. So if we could though and I
know it's not in the revenue section, but Mr. Chair, I would request that if we're not
going to adopt this, you know, higher rate that we do look at providing some money.
And if there is sufficient money in our Council budget, I would like to earmark a
percentage of that money or at least a set figure and say probably a minimum of $75,000
perhaps a 100,000, because I know that studies are expensive to do, to at least look at the
impacts of the time share industry both pro and con and actually gather the data that we
need.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. The Chair notes that we have some other items there
and the preference would be after we take a vote on this, Member Johnson, that when we
arrive at OCS that we can continue the discussion because we have, Members, if you
recall included two individual studies one without dollars and one with some dollars
proviso. So this would be a third item and I think that's unnecessary discussion that
the ... because our Chair has, you know, the role of working with the body to figure out
ultimately where we're going to go with that type of work. So, any additional comments,
Members, at this time? Sixteen dollars is being requested on the floor. Hearing none.
Members, in favor of the $16 figure say aye, please?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye. Oh, no, I'm sorry. Sixteen you said.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Sixteen dollars since that's the request, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: That's okay, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: She voted for me.
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CHAIR KANE: Oh, okay. So, Members, the Chair sees that we have two ayes. The request
thus fails. Members, we will be working with the $14 rate. Are there any other
adjustments in this area or in any of the classifications that are put forward at this time?
Seeing none. Members, are there any other adjustments under Revenue between 5 and
Number 16, regarding homeowner exemption? We are at 200,000 with a $3.50 rate.
Okay, hearing no further discussion in this area, Members, the number that we will
finalize or work with is 161,701,061. We're moving down.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There was discussion of putting a sunset, a two-year
sunset. Is that something that we'd have to do now like a proviso or anything?
CHAIR KANE: That is something that we've already discussed working towards and that will
be available for us. On this sheet, it won't show the proviso as yet, but we're finalizing
that work.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. That will be incorporated in the actual, uh, it will be the
bill and then, um, and the resolution adopting the rates.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. And that provides Staff to do the language in the
proper way. Okay, Members, any additional request in this area? If not, we're moving
down. Excuse me.
Charges for current services, again we made adjustments. Members, line 23, the net
estimated revenue 70,180,657.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: In regarding, in regards to line 19, which is where the Committee has, was going
to reduce the sewer fee increase from 17 down to 11 percent, the Department had given
us a $1.5 million impact on, um, for revenues. We've had several communications since
then, uh, one saying that there needed to be no adjustment made in the Department's
budget. We have to have a balanced budget so the revenues need to equal the
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expenditures by fund. And since the Department believes that they have sufficient, that
they've, the revenue that they had originally had ... originally estimated-CHAIR KANE: Proposed.
MS. KOLLER: --proposed, is sufficient, and that to reduce anything in the operations would put
them at risk of not being able to address any repairs and maintenance. The suggestion is
made at this time that we remove the reduction from 1.5 million on this line, and that in
the department's expenditure we remove ... and if I can find the right page ... on line
686 that we would remove the .. .(end of tape . .. from the Wastewater Reclamation
Facilities Program. So that keeps it basically that's where it was originally proposed and
if the department doesn't have enough funds and would need to come back, they would
be able to come back in for a supplemental.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Members, two notes. That Line 686, since we did tum there, to note the $1.5
million proposed adjustment, that number is from 17 to 11 percent not 12 percent. And
second, where your Chair through his Staff has been trying to get the department to
correlate their reductions and we've, again, I will reiterate, we have repeated discussions
or communication and they have not been willing to identify specific projects to adjust.
Therefore, that is the recommendation that we ... they basically said they have enough
money there. In other words, it was padded. So, we're going to make the adjustment,
we're going to remove the 1.5 from both sides, revenue as well as expenditure, and if
they run short, they're going to have to come back and justify and clarify their position
that they claim that they are in at this point in time. Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. It was my understanding from the communications
that Ms. Koller shared with me and others that I had seen and conversations I had myself
with the department that essentially we're reducing the rate, leaves them with no
carryover savings. So they can function but they don't have any slack if there is any
problem in the middle of the year, and the rates consultant had recommended a 45-day
cushion. So this doesn't put them in jeopardy because they will have apparently
sufficient funds to operate, but should there be some unexpected operations occurrence,
then that was the reason why the increased rate was proposed.
The other issue is that the revenue projection in the budget was relatively conservative as
compared to what could potentially come from the rate increase. So once we get a better
feel for what the rate increase will produce, and hopefully there aren't any major
unexpected occurrences in their operations this year, then I think this is a good solution to
moving forward with the budget.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Morrison. And again, the Chair will reiterate that we
repeatedly requested them to reduce projects on their expenditure side and they chose not
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to identify any projects worth moving. So this is the ... this is our solution, Members.
Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, at the appropriate time I would ask an opportunity to
bring forth questions regarding the rates and fees on the sewer fund. If you want to wait
'til we go through the Exhibit 1, revised, I'm happy to do so.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Hokama. Chair will take it under advisement and let me
just finalize this component here and then we can open that up and just take care of it
since you have it on your mind and I think that's a serious issue that you have to bring
forward. Members, any opposition or any adjustments needed to the 70 million? We're
gonna adjust that number so can you provide me with an adjusted number, Ms. Caller
[sic] ... Koller since we're gonna remove the reduction so we can balance it out ...
71,680?
MS. KOLLER: Seventy-one six eighty six fifty-seven for Line 23 and on the other line, I don't
know if you want that now ...
CHAIR KANE: And removal on 686, Members.
MS. KOLLER: On 686 on Page 15.
CHAIR KANE: Remove the 1.5 and then adjust the net appropriation figure.
MS. KOLLER: Would be 12,846,911 as proposed.
CHAIR KANE: Nine eleven. Members, got those numbers?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Can you repeat that last ... the 12?
CHAIR KANE: Sure. The adjusted number for the net appropriation would replace on 687
would be 12,846,911.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, Members, hearing ... hearing the consensus on that number.
Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, since, you know, we were talking about the sewer rate
reduction, fee reduction, if maybe the Budget Director, Ms. Morrison, can just give us a
comment. I'm going through the handout that was just recently passed out, Budget
Director. It's on the 11 percent, the monthly base charge has been reduced. I just need to
understand why the monthly meter water usage charge goes higher than the 17 percent
proposal.
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MS. MORRISON: That's a good question. I'll have to check with the Staff that prepared this
and get an answer for you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Again, Chairman, happy to wait for a-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --very good response from the department. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, we'll make a note of that. Any further questions in this area,
Members? Here are the adjusted, by the way, for the sewer funds, these are the adjusted
charge that will be incorporated into the ordinance and we'll make sure that that item that
Member Hokama pointed out will be verified.
Okay, Members, the next item for discussion. Member Johnson, I will again recognize
you. I know you made a point of us revisiting the TAT.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I have not been able to gather any additional information as
to whether it's up or down on this one. So unless, you know, we get to really adding a
whole bunch at the end that puts us back in the red. We may as well leave this one the
way it is and be conservative. So ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Okay, no adjustments, TAT. Public Service Company Tax,
no adjustments. Licenses/Permits/Others, we have a working number, net estimated
revenue. Fuel and Franchise Taxes. Special Assessments, adjusted number. Other give
... excuse me, Other Intergovernmental. Interfund Transfers.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I hate to interrupt you,-CHAIR KANE: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --but I just wanted to double-check on Line 22, Increase for
Golf Fees. Was there any adjustment at all on that one in light of the proposal that
Ms. Tavares had made or was that just a negative revenue generator? I just wanted to
make sure.
CHAIR KANE: The Chair will make brief comment and then have Member Tavares if she
would like to make any additions. We will not be making an adjustment to this number
and the reason being is, as Member Tavares stated in her comments, there are some
components that we're comparing apples and oranges, and so because of the differences
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we weren't able to get a definite figure to provide us with accurate projections. So we're
working with this existing number.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: We understand that all of these numbers are estimates to balance out the budget
and if as we go along, I think Member Tavares mentioned that if there seems to be a
direction that is going to adversely impact the budget during the fiscal year, that we can
go ahead and take care of the necessary adjustments at that time. Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Chair. And that's very close or right on to
what we discussed earlier. Remember the first round, I completely zeroed them out and
this is the amount that would zero them out. Then the calculations from the fee increases
don't equal this that I can prove, but it would I think come close. So it would be a matter
of waiting to see how this actually plays out in the first half of the year. So we would
know by the end of December or January when they get their half a year figures. Then I
think we'd be in a better position to, you know, relate whether or not they'll be able to
make it. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And thank you for that, too, because we never know how the
behavior patterns will change if the play will be shifted to the week ... during the week
for some of the retirees. So, and then with a lot of those memberships I'm not sure when
they each renew. So sometimes when you get that up front money that would give a little
bump to that fund, too. So I'm perfectly fine with that. We'll just see how it works out.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And because this is revenue and a budget item, the Chair will make
sure that Staff provides us a flag for when we get to the end of the year and into January
and we have access to the first half figures that we can at least get a report from the ...
from the golf course to make sure that we're where we're hoping we should be. So we'll
get some sort of flag set up so that way it doesn't slip through the cracks and doesn't
show up and get properly addressed in time. So we'll make that attempt. Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: And, Mr. Chair, I suggest that under the section on the golf course that we put a
proviso that they provide a report after the first half of the year as to the revenue.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. Since we've made significant adjustments to the golf fee
schedule, we'll ask for a report halfway through. Okay, so we'll have that incorporated.
Okay, Members, on the first page, those are our working numbers. Turning to Page 2,
currently we have at this point of the working numbers we have a bond figure of
25,389,500 and a Lapsed Bond of 3.575 for an overall total reduction from the original
proposal of 13,080,500. The working number at this point is 28,964,500 and that again is
including Lapsed Bonds. We are also looking at under that the carryover savings for the
various funds. We did make the necessary adjustment in the Water Supply Fund. We
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have a working number of 21,863,317. Our total estimated revenues have been reduced
at this point by a little over $13 million, Members. Okay, so that's revenues. Members,
we are hoping that we can lock it up here, throwaway the key for a while.
Into the Operating Budget, in Office of Council Services. I know, Member Johnson, this
is again the area that you wanted to provide your point. You have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. And the first proviso that I had just spoken
about was the provision from this particular fund or if we have to add additional money
in would be for the Time Share Study, and I'm just picking a number out of the air
because I have no idea. I guess we would have to develop a request for proposal and
scope so I would say for some type of even just a baseline time share study probably
$75,000. I have no idea if that's sufficient, but if other Members have other
recommendations.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, you hear the proposal for consideration to adjust OCS
Program. Are there any comments in this area? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I'll support that request because I think that this
kind of information helps us and directly impacts our revenue stream and our tax
classifications and tax rates, et cetera. So it has a great impact for us as a County. So I
can support this and just as I'm guessing at the Financial Services Program Audit or
costibenefit ratio analysis, you know, 50 to 75,000. I would also point out that we
probably can get a significant amount of information from DBEDT who has done
different types of information gathering. So it might not be as costly as something where
there is no information about it. So I think that that's a safe figure to put in at this time,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we have the $75,000 figure. Any additional comments? And
Chair will reserve his comments until everybody has their opportunity. Hearing none.
And the Chair just points out that obviously we'll have to set up some parameters or
scope for the use of this money if it is approved. And so the Chair is going to put that on
the table and that's something that has to be discussed at some point in the very near
future outside of this, but this I think sets up the dollar amount,-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --puts it in there, and then we can go ahead and take the next step to get that
appropriated because we may need to deal with procurement and we need to deal with
additional staffing. We don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know.
CHAIR KANE: There's a lot of work that we're putting in here. So we've transferred
development rights and other issues. So, anyway we'll, we'll get to there. Any
- 67 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 27, 2005

objections to the adjustment, Members? Okay. Hearing no objections. Thank you,
Member Johnson. We'll go ahead and incorporate that. New working number,
Members, for the net appropriation will be 455 ... 4,557,596. Thank you, plus 75. Any
additional comments or questions in this area? Yes, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I remember there was one other item which was to look, and
I think we got at least one letter in support of taping 'cause this was the one where I had
deferred because we didn't have consensus, was just taping all ofthe Council meetings.
CHAIR KANE: Additional 90,000.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and I believe that it was Chair Hokama that did not, you
know, support that. So that ... the PDRlTDR stuff is already in there but that was an
additional $90,000, if the body would please consider that. And I did in my earlier
request for this based on a lot of different reasons I put in my justification actually in a
letter to each one of the Council members which you should have all gotten a copy of.
And again, it's looking at just being open in government. I do know that it impacted my
Committee because I had to try and switch around some things that made it very difficult
for me as a Committee Chair. Because of certain taping, I never knew at different times
when I was gonua get a time sensitive issue. And at that point in time with the taping
schedule set in advance, I found it was very unpleasant, let's say, to try and structure my
Committee meetings so that it would meet the taping schedule. So I just found it was a
backwards way of managing my schedule. I don't know what's going to come up at any
given time so to commit that I'm gonua have "X" number of meetings and I'm gonna
tape certain ones, I just find it really not the way that I would like to run my Committee.
And in the spirit of open government, I agree with the letter that we received that there
are many people that would like to come to the Council chambers, they can't. So I'm
asking for this consideration if again this is put out on a request for proposal, which I am
not averse to, I think that we could put the amount in if it ends up being less than the
amount that we were originally quoted because I think we were given that figure from
Akaku because they currently do the taping. I have no problem with putting this out to
any entity whether it's the University or some independent organization or other
non-profit. But I would just ask that additional money be put in. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And before I recognize Ms. Anderson, Ms. Johnson, Ijust wanted
to get a clarification in your April 24th list you have add 90,000, but in your April 18th list
you cite in your very first sentence proposed budget to increase the appropriation and
then you list from 107,000 to 190,000. So that's a net increase of 83,000. So is it 90 or is
it 83?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It is. Because I thought we had originally had 100,000 in
there and so that's where ... 'cause I was doing this again from my home computer.
CHAIR KANE: So what ...
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So it's the 87,000.
CHAIR KANE: Eighty-three thousand?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Eighty-three, that's the correct figure.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. So we're working with a number of $83,000. Ms. Anderson,
thank you for waiting.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks, Mr. Chairman. I support this wholeheartedly. I
think anything we can do to bring the government to the people, we need to do. Council
Committees and County Council, you know, the number of subject matters that we have
to deal with has grown over the years and it's very difficult to be able to pick and choose
what item should be taped for public viewing. And actually, we shouldn't be picking and
choosing at all. We should ... we should have a totally open process so that the public is
completely aware of what we're doing to forward their business, and unless we allow
taping of all of our Committee meetings, they're only getting a piece of the pie. They're
not getting the whole picture. And this is a small amount of money to invest in opening
up our government to our community so that they feel that they're participating just by
sitting horne and watching what we're doing. So I hope the other Members would see the
validity in this and would support this because I know one Member said that he didn't
feel that there was ever a time that a Committee member wasn't able to get their meeting
taped on Akaku. But I can tell you as a fact that for the seven years I worked for
Councilmember Nishiki, there were often times when he wanted to have a meeting taped
and it was not on the schedule and there was no alternative. And in fact, we went out to
non-profit organizations and asked if they would corne in and tape the meeting so the
public could be aware of what we were doing. So if it weren't for various non-profit
organizations or public interest groups who were willing to volunteer their time, many
meetings would not have been taped. So I don't think this is a lot of money, but I think
what we get out of it is big. We'll get a big bang out of our buck if we support this. So I
hope, Members, we'll see the value in this and support the request. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Anderson. Any further discussion in this area, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Question?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla, question?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Maybe from Staff. In regards to taping of the meeting
itself, do we tape our Committee meetings in general for the County?
CHAIR KANE: The answer is the allotment that is currently given we provide I believe per
Committee week two Committees and there's a rotation.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: What I'm saying is our Council Services, do they tape
the meetings in-house in general?
CHAIR KANE: Do we have a response? And I believe the response is yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Can we provide the tape to public television?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Kawasaki, you have a comment?
MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chair, when we tape the meetings it's on a split screen and it's only
done for the purpose of providing the tape to the transcription ... court or court reporter,
and so that's for the purpose of providing minutes. It's not in the proper format for
Akaku to be able to play that to the public.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further comments in this area or questions in this area? We
have a proposal on the table and let me give everybody else an opportunity,
Ms. Anderson. Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you. I happen to be one of the Committee
Chair's that hasn't had a problem taping when I wasn't scheduled to be taped and I'm just
wondering if there was maybe a different way that the allotments are allotted instead of
the rotation of two. Ifwe say the Planning Committee is supposed to have 20 tapings per
year, that I would be able to choose which one of my meetings would be taped. I am, of
course, wanting to have as much public review and information and access to us and I
believe we have probably more than a lot of places. Sometimes I think it's a sad state of
affairs when people tell me that we're more entertaining than the soap operas. But I think
that some of the topics, I mean I can see where the Committee of the Whole when we're
doing settlements and claims most of that, majority of the meeting is in executive session
which can't be televised anyway, that maybe that Committee, you know, would be not a
good use of the money to have that Committee taped all the time. But I think that
something could be worked out. Now, the schedule that I'm planning to be on this year I
think every meeting I'd like to have taped also. But if we, you know, I could support
putting this kind of money in to tape all the meetings for everybody . . . for all the
Committees and yet leave the option to not be taped to the Committee Chair and perhaps
if we can do it by an allotment of hours or something like that. I don't know how we're
set up now ifit's by hours. I know there's a base amount of hours and then a charge for
everything that goes an hour after or something like that. I mean we can look at those
kinds of things, but maybe if we, you know, we put in like 75,000 or 70,000 in addition
'cause I don't know what that, that all would cost. But to tape all the meetings would be
that 83,000, Ms. Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That was the figure that we were given by Akaku but I'm not
sure because if this is done on an RFP basis which I have always, you know, supported I
think that-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, it could be ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --it could be less.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I'm sorry. It's not going to be more than that-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --because it's public what they were going to charge us. I
know that I'm not having all the meetings that I am allowed to have just because of some
schedule conflicts and things like that, but you know, I could support more tapings. I
don't think that part's a problem. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Any further discussion from Members that haven't
spoken yet before I recognize for another round? Hearing none. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In discussing this with some of
our staff and how it might affect them, they said that this would be advantageous to them
because then they don't have to corne up and deal with all the taping, the internal taping
that goes on because the outside videographer or whatever you want to call 'ern, they'll
take care of it. And personally, I'm going to be a little prejudiced and say that I hope that
it's Akaku who would continue to do this. They've served us, you know, really well over
the years and they're suffering some lost of income right now and this might help 'ern
out. This might help keep them viable. And I think the public really wants to know what
we're doing not just when it's, you know, a big ticket item so to speak, but, you know,
what's ... what's the daily business of the County. And they can only get that if we do
this because they're all busy working, and you know, Ms. Tavares I think the reason
people enjoy watching Akaku because it's about them and their community. And maybe
sometimes it is a soap opera but so be it. So be it that we're entertaining as well as
getting the people's business done. So I hope Members see the validity in this and will
support it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Just a thought. Just curious if we were to
have all of our Committee meetings taped, what kind of impact it would have on Akaku
as far as their programming because not to demean the importance of government but
there's also a lot of other things out there that the community likes to see broadcast on
public television. So that for me would be a question because I'd hate to see Akaku
having to sidestep some of the other things that the community like to see on public
television as well. So I'm just tossing that out for consideration to think about as well.
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So I mean in general I support the concept of, you know, beaming as much meetings we
can out there to the community but it becomes a question of what issues are really
important to the community as a whole. I'm just trying to weigh that versus what ...
how it may impact Akaku's programming schedule for covering other community events
as well. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Any further comments? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to briefly address that. I did speak because this
was one of my thoughts, too, like you know, my gosh, are we going to be hogging all the
air space and because we do have a second channel and also because what they'll usually
do is because we have every other week, they'll usually replay and replay and replay the
tapes. But the more interesting meetings they may want to replay more often. So I just
throw that out there, and if the body doesn't want to put in the full 83, then I could
support Ms. Tavares' suggestion of putting in the 75 and maybe looking at some
adjustments for those Committees that do not want to have because of, you know,
executive session type things where there'll be little or nothing discussed on the floor.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Any final comments? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I don't really have a problem
with providing additional monies for, you know, more Council meetings/Committee
meetings. However, some of our Committee meetings are at times housekeeping in
nature and I don't know if we'd like to spend the time, you know, airing a housekeeping
related or mundane type of a meeting. But for Committees like mine on Molokai where
our people don't have the opportunities to drive to the County nor do we have the equal
opportunities of picking up as many Maui News, you know, papers because we really
don't have as many there, um, you know, we depend a lot on Akaku's televised meetings
for our community. However, to think that we would be able to broadcast all meetings
that, that's a little difficult for me considering some of the meetings that, you know, we
do sit in really does not involve as many issues or hot topics. Some just require the
mundane responsibilities of taking care of the day-to-day operations. So I can support an
increase but I still don't know if it will be worth being able to tape all Committee and
Council meetings. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any final comments, Members? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I can support 75,000 more as well as I will continue to support
allowing each Chair of the Committee to make some discretionary decisions on the
agenda item. . .. (end of tape . ..
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Members? Are there any objections to first adjusting the
number to $75,000?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and the Chair will just make some brief comments. I want to concur
with the thought that Member Molina has brought forward. It has been verified that the
channel that the public is able to view us on is dedicated to government. They have a
number of channels and each of 'em are used for different entities within the spectrum of
their services and the one that we're on is dedicated to government so there seems to be
no impact. However, I would make the body aware that it should be ... it should be
followed up on and I think it would be necessary for some level of equal airing and not
allow the station themselves to decide which one is the more popular issue to watch. I
think it's important because one person's mundane, and again, no disrespect to anybody's
comments, but you know, one person's trash is another person's treasure.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: You know, and everybody has their hot points and something could, you know,
a person could give a rip on something but ... and the other person that's like that's the
thing they believe in. So all of your comments are important, Members, and the Chair
especially recognizes because we have a multi-island community as well as with our
sister town of Hana way out where it is, I think this movement provides additional
opportunities for engagement in the public's best interest of their issues right here at
home. So I thank Member Hokama for the adjustment. I thank Member Johnson for
being persistent in bringing this back to the table and the Chair will also be supportive of
this measure. Are there any objections to the request?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Member Johnson. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. So we'll make an adjustment of an additional 75,000.
Sixty-seven seventy-seven eighty-two. Okay, 4,582,596 ... 4,582,596 is your adjusted
number with the additional 75,000. Staff,-MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. ...
CHAIR KANE: --any notes, Ms .... Ms. Kawasaki? Excuse me.
MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chair, I have 4,632,516.
CHAIR KANE: Four six three two.
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MS. KAWASAKI: And add 100,000 for the outside consultant for Transfer of Development
Rights, 75,000 for the increase in the Time Share Study, and 75 for the television
coverage.
CHAIR KANE: So the total number, forgive me, what would be the total net appropriation
figure?
MS. KAWASAKI: Four six three two five nine six.
CHAIR KANE: Four six three two five nine six. Okay, Members, the Chair apologizes. One
hundred plus 150 so 250 to the 4,382. Okay, thank you very much. Okay, Members, any
additional items in the Office of Council Services? Hearing none.
County Clerks Office, we have a working number. Civil Defense, working number.
Corporation Counsel, a working number. Department of Finance, we have working
numbers. Members, the Chair will move fast unless you stop me. So we're on Page 3,
working numbers for the AccountslPurchasing Programs. Under Financial Services. . .
(cough). .. excuse me, we have again adjustments that have been approved by you on the
last go around, working number of over $4 million. Countywide Service Center annual
lease cost, 275. Countywide Costs, Fringe Benefit Reimbursements. Ms. Koller, if you
can provide just a final comment? I believe you did but just for reminder on why this is
with parentheses around them on the Fringe Benefit Reimbursements on Line 124 and
126.
(note: long pause)
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, Ms. Koller. I'm just asking if the parentheses which would be a
deduct, if you can provide just a brief comment on that for the Chair's benefit.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, it's a reimbursement to the General Fund.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. That's Why. Thank you. Okay, Members, next. Bond
IssuancelDebt Service, we've made adjustments and we have that working number of
33,952,309. Members, this next one, we're gonna have some comment here.
Supplemental Transfer to Solid Waste Fund, if you recall the other night or the other
afternoon we did work with or the other night, excuse me, we did work with a proposal
by Member Tavares to have this area zeroed out. In the meantime, Ms. Tavares has
been working with Budget Staff in working with some adjustments, and Ms. Tavares,
I'd like to provide you with any opportunity to make comment.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I think keeping with trying to
have these Special Funds funded programs pay for themselves like they're supposed to,
I was in a slash and bum mode and just decided to slash all these transfers to Special
Funds. However, in looking at the Solid Waste Program, it was a consideration that the
Diversion Program and the Abandoned Vehicle Program really are programs that
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benefit the entire County of Maui and its citizens; and therefore, I personally don't have
a problem with General Funds paying for those two programs. But where I think: the
residential refuse pickup and those kinds of programs where a few people are benefit,
not a few, a specified number of people are benefiting from that program, that they
should pay for that service. So I was willing to put in the total amount of the
Abandoned Vehicle Program and the Recycling or Waste Diversion Program and use
that from General Fund to transfer, and then I would like to tum the show over to the
Staffwho figured out the rest of the story.
CHAIR KANE: Thank: you. Members, the Chair will recognize I believe Ms. Koller. Any
additional comment in this area with regards to the adjustment under the Supplemental
Transfer to the Solid Waste Fund? Are you prepared to respond at this time?
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, I'm sorry, I was working on something else at the time, but just
to ... what we did in this area after talking with Councilmember Tavares and
Councilmember Pontanilla's staff, we looked at the Diversion Fund. A Diversion
Program does receive some of the revenue from I believe the tipping fees and because
of that we felt that, um, that program should really not be moved to the General Fund
because the tipping fees come in through the Solid Waste Fund. So we only utilize the
Abandoned Vehicle Program to have it funded out of the General Fund. We also
looked at what the revenues were for the estimates that were made in the proposal for
the revenues and adjustments that we had made in relation to projects that in the Solid
Waste Fund had been moved to bond, and the total adjustment then was a $1,876,141
adjustment. So the Supplement Transfer would be $2.7 million.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, any questions or additional questions for clarification? We
have made a serious adjustment here from what we originally talked about and I think:
we have the justification by Member Tavares and Staff to explain what we're doing
here. Any additional questions or comments? This is our working number, Members.
We have the Supplemental Transfer to the Golf Fund. As you can see we've zeroed
that out and with the report again that we will request that the mid-year to be provided
to your Budget and Finance Committee for review.
Under Insurance Programs and Self Insurance, Members, we have an adjusted figure
totaling $4.94 million. On Line 145 we have--oh excuse me--147, we have the
adjusted ... (cough) ... excuse me, Open Space, Natural Resources, Scenic Views
Preservation Fund. Page 4 on Number 8, General Costs with salary adjustments.
Number 9, Overhead Reimbursements. Number 10, Members, on Line 158, oh excuse
me, 159, we have maintained the current proposal in addition to the Mayor's proposal
for a total increase of $2.5 million as our working number and that again 'cause this
does not lapse there's a total with this request of $6.5 million with approval of this
number. Any questions or comments on this line? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, there may be some comment about the amount in this
fund that we've established during our last Budget Session. For me and as well as the
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industry standards for government agencies, I will look at approximately 5 percent of
our budget excluding CIP. So I would say that hopefully down the road as we continue
to try and safeguard the County from potential disaster and emergency situations that
we are able to continue to be prepared to respond such as during 9/11. That I would say
the fund should need to go to at least $15 million on the low side and that our continued
efforts will continue to show the solid financial standing of this County through our
Bond Raters, as well as those that purchase the County of Maui bonds, to know that we
are in a very solid, solvent situation and our fiscal policy continues to be maintained as
well as envied by our peers. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any further comments? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The Committee had asked
that question of the Finance Committee and they responded in their response Finance
'06 dated April 15 th for question number one, and what was the desirable goal as a
County? And as Mr. Hokama's pointing out that the 5 percent ... 5 to 15 percent is
what is sort of the industry standard for reserves. And the Finance Department is
making a good point for asking us to look at the higher of that range because of our
debts, and he said, this is Mr. Young, a $30 million unrestricted General Fund balance
is a long-term goal would bring us close to the 15 percent. That's the total of the fund
balance and the Emergency Fund would bring us close to the 15 percent of general
expenditures. So while this fund is growing I would hope, Members, that we would
continue to put sizeable amounts of money in there until we got to a level where we are
really establishing a firm position. And also I think they had made an example in the
State when they established their rainy day fund, you know, albeit, they've been raiding
that fund. They make nominal annual contributions because they have reached their
maximum, but I think there are other, you know, other counties or municipalities do
that, and I believe Mr. Hokama's much more informed about those kinds of things. So
I certainly agree wholeheartedly with him and encourage the Members to continue
putting money in this fund so that we can maintain our good rating and have the funds
should we ever use ... need it for some kind of emergency. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional comments on the total number of $2.5 million here?
Hearing none. Members, that will remain the working number. We've made our
adjustments to Number 11, the One Main Plaza. Here's the Lease Cost item that the
Chair has plugged in of $500,000, and the Chair is open to any comments in this area
regarding a potential increase of funds in this area to provide the Administration with
the necessary means to make adjustments to their space requirements. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, could you give us some information about what
that 500,000 would cover? Is it specifically for that department, Finance?
CHAIR KANE: No. We put it there because Finance usually handles-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The lease rent.
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CHAIR KANE: --the lease rents. So we felt this was the place to put it unless there's a
recommendation for consideration to place it in a better suited area, but at this time
we've placed it there, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. The One Main Plaza, 1.25 million, that as I
understand it was for the renovations of the area regardless of who was going to lease
that space whether we bought the building or not. Are we making a policy decision
here that we are not going to support anybody renting offices at One Main Plaza or is
that still open?
CHAIR KANE: To answer the first part of your question, we'll provide clarity as to the specific
purpose of Line 161, that 1.25 million. Second, as the proposer, as your Chair
proposed for the deletion of One Main Plaza it was not the intent to prevent them from
leasing space there. The idea was simply not supporting the purchase, however,
providing as you can see with the initial amount of 500,000 that we provide additional
monies to continue a lease or make lease arrangements for space requirements with the
idea of pursuing the medium and long-term goals of developing our own facilities for
our needs.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So who ...
CHAIR KANE: So we can verify the 1.2.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: I'm waiting and we're checking on that now.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms .... I guess the question can go to the Budget Director as well on the intent
of Line 161 under the Finance Department's One Main Plaza dollar amount. I don't
know if Ms. Morrison is prepared to respond. Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. It's my understanding that that's operation costs
should the One Main Plaza had been purchased.
CHAIR KANE: Operations.
MS. MORRISON: And the likewise, the almost matching amount of lease rent that was also
deleted, these two numbers were ... it is appropriate to delete them if One Main Plaza
is not purchased.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. I think specific numbers that we got thus far and we're gonna make
an attempt to inquire and we can again consider plugging additional amounts. But
again, I'll restate that Corporation Counsel yesterday did provide us with their numbers
if they move to that spot that they would be looking at $1.2 million to make that raw
piece of space functional for their needs, and then an additional $260,000 to actually
pay the lease rent for the Fiscal Year '06. And I'll ask Ms. Fujita Villarosa to confirm
or provide correction to the Chair's statements. Ms. Fujita Villarosa.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. No, that is correct. The $1.2 million would
be for construction cost as well as the furnishing and equipment for the office, and the
$260,000 would be the annual lease rent.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry. What was the last figure? Two ...
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Two hundred sixty thousand dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Was the lease rent? The annual lease rent for that space?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Correct.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --questions, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No. Not at this time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We are finding out about the other 500,000?
CHAIR KANE: I'm finding out, well, the 500,000, Member Tavares, was just a dollar amount
that we put there as a starting point in the initial proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Understanding that if the proposed One Main Plaza purchase did not go
through, that we would then have to work with the Administration on Plan B III
providing them adequate dollars so that's where we're at right now.
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COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. And Ms. Koller, if we can identify the additional 300 ... I believe it was
391,000, I may be mistaken, but I know we identified that dollar amount as well as the
intention of it going to lease. Do you have that number, Ms. Koller, or where it's
located?
MS. KOLLER: I believe it's in the category of General Costs and it's under Countywide ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: One four nine?
MS. KOLLER: Just a minute, one second, I'm doing a balancing act here. On 5-35 of the
Budget Details under Rentals and Facilities, the total amount is 391,900.
CHAIR KANE: That's close, 391. Five ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Good memory.
CHAIR KANE: What's the page number again?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Five ...
MS. KOLLER: Five dash thirty-five of the Details.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. So, Members, the Chair was made aware of that dollar amount on
Page 5-35 of 391,900 for Rentals and Facilities.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair, clarification?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Isn't that for current rental spaces? 'Cause it's the same
amount for '05 as it is for '06.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller, any comments?
MS. KOLLER: And that's why we're adding the 500 to it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So this is ... this one in here is for existing rentals
wherever we're renting all over the place.
MS. KOLLER: I think that's probably correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
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MS. KOLLER: I would have to verify.
CHAIR KANE: Additional comments, Ms. Morrison?
MS. MORRISON: Yes. Mr. Chair, further down that same page there's $105,000 rental figure
and I believe that is ... was intended to be used for lease payments on the land beneath
One Main Plaza.
CHAIR KANE: I believe 95,000 is the number that's been represented up until February of
2008. So I don't know if ...
MS. MORRISON: This is ... I'm just reading from the Details, Mr. Chair, rather than the
presentation.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MS. MORRISON: There may be more to this.
CHAIR KANE: So Members ...
MS. MORRISON: Ijust was wanting to point it out to you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you for that. Members, so at this time, the Chair
has ... will recognize 500,000 is what we have now. The Chair would not recognize
the other 391 that was the number we identified as additional lease monies, but if it's
currently taken that we currently have $500,000. And the Chair made his opening
remarks after lunch by stating that what you see on Page 31 of 31 that that monies if
anything should be first considered in Plan B since this body as a policy has made a
decision to move on not purchasing; and therefore, catching up with Plan B. Members,
I know we need to take a break right now probably, but before that, Ms. Morrison,
additional comments?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I sure hate to stop having a break, but I just would
like to ask if you could provide additional time for . . . Staff is currently working on
coming up with appropriate, as you call it, Plan B numbers regarding lease rent,
improvements, ADA-related issues, should this be a rental rather than a purchase
situation. So if at all possible, I'd like to have the opportunity to provide that
information later on.
CHAIR KANE: Absolutely. The Chair, without objections from the Members, has no problem
and that's the intention is to get that number as accurate as possible.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me. Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and because so many people have come forward and
asked us to revisit at least the purchase, when we get that information depending on
what that cost is, you know, to move in. I know that everybody wants to put this to
rest, but I really need to see that information. I need to see those figures so that I can
do my own cost analysis. So I'm not going to be making a proposal at this point in
time, but depending on what those figures are for us to make that move anyway, I may
be asking one final time for us to revisit the One Main Plaza purchase because I found
it very interesting. I had not really considered the comments that were made until Mr.
Stice made those comments this morning about the cost if we were to move forward
with the purchase of the land on which the old Post Office sits. I had not really
considered the amount of money that it's going to require just to get to ground zero. So
I would just ask for that opportunity. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: In light of the fact that you voted to support it and that that information seems
to not change your mind, Ms. Johnson, and the fact that yesterday I made it clear that
we would act on this item yesterday and not revisit it. But although the Chair said that,
if this body through a majority consensus vote wants to revisit, the Chair has no
problem with bringing it back to the table, but I will stand by my statements yesterday
that we made the decision yesterday and if there's five Members that want to revisit,
then let's do the job. No problem. Any additional comments before the Chair asks for
a recess? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, under Lease Costs section, please?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: While I am ... I can appreciate and support Corporation Counsel's
need for more space and I will continue to support that department's need for more
space, I view this building as the Administrative center of the County of Maui's
government. I do not want them leaving this building. I can see them maybe at Kalana
Pakui and moving Planning across the street, but I expect our attorneys, this
department, to be next door to us as well as to the administrative head which is the
Mayor's Office. We are not their client. Weare their bosses, period.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Additional comments, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I totally concur with Member Hokama's statements. I
think it's very inappropriate for Corp. Counsel to be separated from the core of this
County which is the Legislative and Executive Branch under this one roof. However,
there are attorneys within Corp. Counsel who do not serve us directly. They're not ...
they deal with civil litigation and it's my understanding that they, they operate pretty
independently or separately from the rest of Corp. Counsel's attorneys. So that is an
option for Corp. Counsel to perhaps have that small branch of their service move out
giving more room for the attorneys that are on the ninth floor right now and I wouldn't
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have a problem with that. But as far as our major advisors, I think it's inappropriate for
them to have such distance between ... between us, and you know, well, I'm just going
to leave it at that for right now. I think it's inappropriate to have them outside the realm
of this building.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Members, without objections, the Chair's
gonna ask your consideration for a recess. Time now is 3:15. We'll reconvene at 3:30.
This Committee is in recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

3:15 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:39 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: '" (gavel). .. Alright, Members, thank you for that recess. Members, as we
closed it up for the recess, the Budget Director did ask for and the Chair acknowledged
the need for some additional time to come back to this particular area of Lease Costs. So,
Members, without objections we'll go ahead and continue with our final pass for this
Exhibit.
Department of Fire and Public Safety, Members, we've made adjustments throughout
their Administrative and Maintenance Program. The Training Program is unchanged.
FirelRescue Operations, also adjustments, as well as Fire Prevention unchanged. Any
final adjustment request?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm sorry I just had the one question because I wasn't sure
when I had requested initially. Because of the Ocean Safety Officers making their
request, one of the things we had talked about was looking at well what's the rationale for
doing that. If they can do an analysis without any cost involved through the Fire
Department, that's wonderful. But I just don't want us to lose sight of that because a lot
of other decisions may ... maybe not in this budget year, but in future budget years come
down depending on that. So is there any way, Mr. Chair, that we could communicate
with the Fire Department and find out if there would be any cost involved with them
looking at at least movement in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No cost.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: There's no cost? Okay, and that I'm getting from
Ms. Tavares. So I just wanted to make mention that. So if there isn't any cost involved
with that, that's fine, and we don't need any provisos. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further discussion? Mr. Hokama, followed by Ms. Anderson.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I believe there was a correspondence from Fire
Department through the Chief stating that he was happy to engage in discussions with the
Parks and Recreation Department. So I would ask the Members to allow them to
continue their dialogue and since this is an initiative from a Division of Parks and Recs I
would feel that the ... (end a/tape . .. follow through is on them since they're trying to
make a change in structure and assignments of departmental responsibilities. So at this
point, Chairman, I would ask the Members to allow the continued dialogue to move on
and that we can await a formal request at a later time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I had a discussion with one of the
Fire Department officer's and he said that they are moving forward at looking at this and
that I believe it's L.A. County has a model that they're working from. As he said there's
no reason to reinvent the wheel and apparently L.A. County has a good model to follow
so I think that they've got it in hand and I'm sure if they need any money, they'll come
see us.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. County of Kauai also has, is functioning rather well. I was just
there this Sunday and had the chance to talk to a couple of their fire people and one of
their water safety officer's, who's a classmate of mine, he says it's working great. So,
yes, I agree, Members, with you. We'll allow them to continue their dialogue and I can
assure you that they will be in touch with, if not one of you, many of you, on the future of
this issue. So rest assured you will have that information before you before next time
around. Members, the Chair recognizes no further discussion in the Department of Fire
and Public Safety. We're moving into the Department of Housing and Human Concerns.
Administrative Program, no adjustments.
Housing Program, we have the add
appropriation and proviso for Affordable Rental Housing Program. Members, any
discussions here?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I have a handout that went out to the
Members. It was distributed this morning. And first of all ... well, I'm going to read it.
An appropriation to a qualified housing developer to build much needed and I left out the
word affordable and I'm sorry. Actually, I left it out just so I could expound on it. It was
intentional. The single-family housing in Hana provided that the development entity
secure a building contract with Hana Ranch Partners, LLC for the donation and
acquisition of a I5-acre parcel in Hana, Hawaii for 225,000, and the one they're looking
at is Habitat for Humanities. They're looking at all ... this is all first-time homebuyers.
They're all Hana people and the ones I looked on the list are definitely on the lower end
of the scale in the 80 percent percentile and a few a little bit more above. But as you
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know, in Hana our economy is not such that we have people making a lot of money. Our
housing is so tight over there we have that one program going up that's going to help, but
I have at least 100 people that need housing. I have people living in tents born and raised
in Hana, in brother's and family's yards. I would hope that this money originally ... was
this project originally was going to be a self-help project like the other one that we
approved earlier. But Claudia Shay of the Self-Help Corporation has withdrawn from
this so it's now going to be a stand alone turnkey, low-income housing project. But I still
need . . . we still need money for the basic surveying and the engineering design for the
property. I would hope that the Members would support this. I'm sorry I don't have a lot
more information, but there are times when things happen quickly and I would hope the
Members can support putting this $225,000 into the budget. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And Members, before the Chair recognizes any of you,
Mr. Carroll, if you can maybe expound a little on why you purposely left out the word
affordable, please?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I would ...
CHAIR KANE: Since you described, you know, you described the situation of most being 80
percent and under with some a little bit above. Why would we move . . . remove
affordable from this since that's the intent to house people in affordable housing?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I can see my humor flew over everybody's head over here.
It was not intentional. It definitely was not intentional.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I ...
CHAIR KANE: Sorry about that.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I didn't notice ... I did not notice that we had left off
affordable until a few moments ago when Ms. Tavares so kindly pointed it out to me. It
was just an error.
But I will expound on affordable. Hana, the people that this is going to serve, almost
everyone over there are working people. The only thing ... way they'll ever have a
house is if it's in the affordable range and if it's a project like this where the land is
donated so there is no cost which really truly brings it down into the affordable range.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Also, Mr. Carroll, the 225,000 because the Habitat provided I
believe Ms. Shay as you described they pulled out so this is a lapsed figure. This is a
dollar amount that will lapse in ... be carryover or savings?
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: This is a dollar amount that will lapse because money was
not encumbered in the last budget because of their pulling out of the project.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Is it also being ... do you know if it's being recognized by this budget
appropriation as carryover? Is it a recognized carryover?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: When I asked, they said it was going to be as carryover since
it was not encumbered. It's already listed as carryover.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, I'll ask when Ms. Morrison comes back, I'll ask her just to
verify that information. But Members, you've heard the request. Any questions?
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Not a question, but I would like to have it considered
maybe more appropriate in the grant section so that it can be grants and disbursements
for, you know, for whatever wording, and I guess it was to replace the much needed with
affordable, and a description similar to what Mr. Carroll has outlined.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I have no objection. I think that would be more appropriate.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional questions for clarification? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Question for Mr. Carroll. The 1S-acre
parcel you're referencing donation and acquisition. Is it a donation in part or an
acquisition in part or ...
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: It is total ... it is a donation. And I wrote this quickly that's
how come I left ... it's the land that is donated and of course when they received the
land, the land is under their control. That's what the acquisition is - under the control of
the entity doing the affordable housing. But the land is donated freely. There is no
charge for the land.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And Mr. Carroll, it's your expectation that the individual that's
going to be involved with this is going to be Claudia Shay with the Self-Help or-COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --another entity?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: She has withdrawn. That's why we have to do this.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Further questions, Members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if you would, please?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would hate for this to fall through the cracks once more, Chairman.
So while I can support it, I would ask maybe that we strike the word in acquisition and
that we be clear what the money is used for, and if it is for the infrastructure to help
subsidize infrastructure cost whereby all the units on the parcel will have equal
distribution of our funding, then I would prefer that type of language. And maybe a final
report back after encumbrance or expenditure of the funds, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you for your comments, Mr. Hokama. Anything else, Members,
before the Chair asks for your consideration? Ms. Morrison, the Chair was going to ask
the $225,000 for the project that currently exists under our appropriations for 200, excuse
me, 225,000 that we understand is going to lapse. Was that identified as monies ... as
carryover in the '06 Budget as revenue?
MS. MORRISON: Fortunately, Mr. Chair, I was asked this question earlier-CHAIR KANE: Great.
MS. MORRISON: --and checked on it, and it was not considered part of carryover savings.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, so it will carryover. So we basically would zero out ... net
out. However, I think Mr. Hokama brings forward some interesting points for us to
consider and it may be worthy for us to look back at this project at its inception when we
had those discussions and what agreements were made and perhaps look at what the
intent was when we provided the 225,000 back then and make sure that we are being
consistent with the request this time around, Mr. Carroll, and the intent is to get language
for that and I have ...
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I have no problem with that. If it wasn't for the rush to get
this because of the circumstances, I would have included that and I thank Mr. Hokama
for bringing it up. And if the Members have no problem with working with Staff, we can
put the appropriate language in.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the Chair will just read for you what it currently is so you
have an idea or to provide a reminder. It reads, provided that the Self-Help Housing
Corporation of Hawaii, which we would change that to what Mr. Carroll has, enters into a
binding contract with Hana Ranch Partners, LLC, for the acquisition as a gift of a IS-acre
parcel in Hana, Hawaii, $225,000. So that was the language there and so the language if
we can just provide the Staff with Mr. Carroll to just work on just fine tuning the
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language so it represents the consistency and then recogmzmg a qualified housing
developer instead ofthe Self-Help Housing Development Group. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Because this was money that wasn't recognized as part
of carryover and basically is it ... if it's still part of, is it part of CIP or was it a grant?
CHAIR KANE: Grant.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So it was a grant and that-CHAIR KANE: That will not be encumbered.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --cannot be encumbered.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, they will not be encumbered.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So it's not gonna be encumbered. And as a result of
that then we would just ... where we would show this then so if we were zeroing this
out?
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Ms .... I'll let Staff-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --reiterate how ... what I meant by zeroing out. Go ahead.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, we would add a line item in the carryover savings to increase the
carryover savings in the General Fund by 225,000 since this was not considered.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. That's all I needed to know because it was already
there so it's not like we're adding new money. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions before the Chair asks for your consideration?
Hearing none. Members, are there ... is there any objection?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's move forward. Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Appreciate you bringing
that forward. Continue on the trek for affordable housing for our residents.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
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MS. KOLLER: We will show that as Grant Number 32 at the end of this Housing Grant List.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, we are instead of putting it under this line, the Housing
Program area, we'll have it incorporated on Line 32 or Group Number, excuse me, Item
Number 32.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thirty-three.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MS. KOLLER: In fact what we currently have is the grant to the Hana Canoe Club. That was in
two places so we'll take it out of here and leave it in the OED where it was a proviso and
then put this new grant in.
CHAIR KANE: And it will be Number 32.
MS. KOLLER: Right.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any additional questions? Line 195, no adjustments,
Housing Human Concerns Program. Turning the page to Page 5 ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Could we back up to Line 192?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, the 400,000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The 400,000 for the Affordable Rental Housing Program.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is that still a go?
CHAIR KANE: The Chair had proposed that and through the first discussion, Member Mateo,
this dollars amount would be put forward. The intent from the Chair's proposal was to
assist the gap group between 80 and 100 percent of those people who don't qualify for
HUD Rental Assistance and that in Member Mateo's Committee which I believe he
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stated on record that he would be more than happy to bring it forward to establish some
level of parameters and work with the Housing Department to get that program moving.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KANE: So we can provide the monies for the persons who need it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: So that was again ... the intent and I thought that and I'm sorry that was as our
previous discussion indicated.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional comments here?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would ask if you would, you know, while there's not much after
the Makawao Highlands Project, we still have $52,000 plus in the Rental Housing
Development Revolving Fund. I would ask if the Committee would consider and you
would consider possibly using this as another source of supplementing the program since
I believe that was the intent of the Chapter by our forefathers in the Council.
CHAIR KANE: The only question I would have is if that item is a revolving fund ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's a revolving fund, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: So how ... this $400,000 I'm trying to figure out how that would apply to the
intent of a revolving fund. I'm just asking to get clarification, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well,one,-CHAIR KANE: Or we can intermingle the two.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --I would say, you know, it hasn't been used for since that Makawao
project, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: As we will notice through the last few years the amount has not
changed. It may be time for us to maybe consider amending the Chapter and expanding
the parameters so that we can take initiatives such as what you are asking the Committee
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this afternoon to possibly utilize these monies here as well as to find out if a revolving
program still makes sense for us to supplement with additional funding resources. So I
just bring the Committee's attention to this that this is something already in Chapter 3.34
of the Maui County Code and that it may be another option for us to address the
long-term rental problem issue that we have in this County, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. And that may be our vehicle, if you will, for us to
move forward with this program.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, that particular section of the Code relates to County rental housing
project rent monies in excess of expenses. You know, it's possible that this area could be
revised but in order to incorporate it with our budget ... with the bills that we will be
taking forward with with this budget we would not have time ... we would not be able to
do that at this point in time because of posting, but it is something that we could do
subsequent to the budget.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. That's the intention. Thank you very much for verifying that. Okay,
Members ... I'm sorry, Member Tavares, anything further in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Anything else, Members? Moving, Page 5. We are under
Grants and Disbursements. I believe we have a total of 32 with the adjustment to the
Hana Canoe Club being redundant so we crossed that one out and replaced it with the
previous item that was discussed. Mr. Carroll, it's your walk through. Members,
Number 1, Alu Like; Big Brothers, Big Sisters, Number 2; Coalition Drug Free Lanai.
Members, the Chair's gonna dispense with walking through and gonna ask are there any
errors on this page with existing items that you would like an adjustment consideration?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Anywhere on the page?
CHAIR KANE: On this page, yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Number 12.
CHAIR KANE: Number 12, Hui No 'eau Art Center. Your adjustment, ma'am.

- 90 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

April 27, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I'd like the funding restored to the full $150,000
with a proviso that this be a onetime grant to assist with their land acquisition project.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members,-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Support.
CHAIR KANE: --you've heard the request. Are there any objections to this?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a concern, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, if it's for the land acquisition period, not for the
supplemental of their operations and that's very clear, I will support that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, it's very clear, Mr. Chairman, because I do not want
this to be a line item every year for their operations because they have been receiving
assistance when it comes to their at risk students or at risk youth program in art and they
have been I think receiving grant monies under the competition or the application process
for those other programs. But I think they made a point, we've seen it in the paper all
year long about trying to buy the place that they're at. So I think if we tum this in to
helping their capital program to acquire the land, then they can continue to do what they
have always done before with operational monies.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Hearing that and if that would be the language, I would be in
support. But if it was for operation, I would not support their financial request.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, you've heard ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, any objections? Hearing none. Members, we will restore this
area to full funding as proposed by the Mayor, $150,000 with the proviso onetime for
assistance for land acquisition, okay, and we'll make sure we'll work out the language for
it to be acceptable.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, any other items on Page 5? We're moving. Lane ... lane six,
Page 6.
MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Kawasaki.
MS. KAWASAKI: Pardon the interruption, but the following grant under Number 13 for Light
Bringers, we've inserted a proviso that is similar to the one that appeared in the Fiscal
Year 2005 Budget regarding a restriction on recruitment or converting a person to a new
faith which legally they're not allowed to do and you'll see a similar proviso and both of
these will appear in grayed out text on your ... your copy under Grant Number 24 for the
Salvation Army.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, thank you, and at this time I would like to propose
a deletion of this item to Light Bringers. I have received information from the
department that Light Bringers has not submitted any of their quarterly reports. We
didn't hear from them during any of the meetings that we had and for this amount of
money, if they have a program, it really should go under the homeless programs or
whatever they qualify for in the general ... in those other grants, the pots of money. So I
would ask for consideration to delete this line item.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Morrison, you have comments?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, I'm glad Councilmember Tavares brought this
up. I also had a conversation with the department and the Director would concur with
deleting this line item at this time.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, you've heard the comments of the Budget Director. Any
additional comments before the Chair recognizes the request for the deletion?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would support this being given then to some other program
that provides food whether it's Community Food Bank or another line item because one
of the reasons why this particular non-profit was trying to provide food was in West
Maui. There has been a lot of problems. I know Salvation Army was doing it for a while
but there is still a need in particularly the West Maui area to provide some kind of meals
for the homeless. And whether you put it under a homeless program, whether you give it
to Ka Hale A Ke Ola, you know, whatever it's, it is providing nourishment to the people
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in the West Maui area because it is still identified as one of the worst places in the entire
State in terms of the ability to provide food for the people there. So it's identified as a
site of hunger. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we have the request for the deletion of Line ... Item 13.
Additional questions/comments? Okay, the request is to delete 50,000. Do we have
concurrence?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Should I put that in another program then if it's going away
in this area?
CHAIR KANE: If you can identify on this page-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --in a place where it can be put into and substantiated that it's gonna feed your
West Maui populace that needs it, then I think it deserves merit, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, on this page we have made a couple of adjustments but other
than that the Chair will leave it open. Are there any request for adjustments on Page 6?
I'll provide you a moment to take a look at the list.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, in Grant Number 15 for Maui Community Food
Bank, I would add $50,000 and I would put a proviso in that it go for some type of food
distribution program in the West Maui area to offset the loss of the other food program.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, you've heard the request. Ms. Tavares, comments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I know what Ms. Johnson, you
know, wants to do and I think her intentions are admirable. However, we put the money
into this particular line item and we did not reduce the other line item for self-sufficiency
programs or homeless programs. So I think that they should be able or whoever's going
to provide stuff should be able to do their grant applications through these funds that are
already existing. And I think that where we have especially, you know, some smaller
items and in light of the fact that their performance has been not up to the standard that
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we have here, I would just delete it. And you know Members were adding things and
adding things still and we have ... if we can find places where we can reduce some of
these, I mean I'd much rather have us worried about our big balance than worrying about
trying to use it all up. And I think this is an opportunity for us to just reduce a line item,
get rid of it, or delete it, and put it into the programs that we established some years ago
to have a pot of money which specialized people or specialized programs could apply.
So I think that that is enough money to meet the needs of West Maui in conjunction with
the other programs that maybe the Salvation Army runs or the Food Bank runs.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Any further comments before I recognize Ms. Johnson as the
maker of the request? Seeing none. Member Johnson, final comment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think that, you know, one of the difficulties I have here is
because I do know that the feeding program that goes on with Light Bringers they may
not be rocket scientists at keeping paperwork and doing the accounting, but because they
do significant outreach into areas where most of and because they work with the other
homeless programs, I know personally what they have done in trying to go into the fields
where people are living by Wainee Pump Camp where no one will go. They do work
with some of the other groups. There are many people who are too embarrassed to come
and ask for any kind of assistance particularly when the programs that used to exist at
Salvation Army where they were actually feeding on site, a lot of those things are not
being done anymore. I know Harvest Chapel also does a program to feed people in West
Maui. So while I can understand why there's a need to be compliant and also to be
responsible when you're asking for a grant, I think that ultimately because the people that
are running the program may not be as skilled at being accountable for these funds as
some of these other entities are-CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --people will end up suffering. So I'm just gonna leave it at
that. Ifpeople don't want to support it, that's fine.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and Member Johnson, I'm sorry. The only reason I was gonna inteIject
is because we've already voted on the Light Bringers and you were commenting on Light
Bringers and we've already finished that area and that the request was for the Maui
Community Food Bank proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I realized that and I think that because of the fact that
I'm just trying to make a case for why we need, instead of taking away the money, to put
it somewhere where these people will have access to it. That was my point, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, Members, are there any other areas? But before recognizing
any other request, on Line 287 on Grant Number 23, the word in capital letters, MEO,
should be inserted between the word for and Molokai. Okay, so just the adjustment there.
Are there any adjustments in this area, Members? Okay, we're moving, Members, on to
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Page 7. Okay, again noting on Number 24, the proviso that was added for Salvation
Army. We have other areas listed, Members. Are there any adjustments requested in this
area? ... {end a/tape . .. which has been replaced with the appropriation for housing in
East Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry I missed one. Back on Page 6, Grants and
Disbursements for the Maui Farm, Line 279. I would like to reduce their grant by
$10,000. I went through the testimonies that were given at the ... those community
meetings and the Executive Director stated at the time that they had received a grant of
$10,000 and it was after they submitted their request for the 150,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, no objections/support?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Back to Page 7, up to Item 32, any
adjustments? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. Just a follow-up
to the proposal that I discussed with the Committee on Monday for the First-Time Home
Buyers Fund. I'd like to just preface my comments on this first by thanking my assistant,
Mr. Saldana, who's assisted me and worked very hard on this matter.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry. Excuse me, Mr. Molina. Are you adding to ... between 24 and 32
first?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, is that where ... okay, I'm sorry. I thought we were
gonna go ...
CHAIR KANE: Let me ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Let me finish the 24 through 32 ifthere's any additions there.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have another, on Number 27, the Grants and Disbursements
for Youth Centers.
- 95 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

April 27, 2005

CHAIR KANE: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The Mayor's proposal was 15 ... 1.5 million. Your proposal
has an increase of 250,000 and it was stated that you did realize that it was already raised
from 1.3 last year to 1.5 this year.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: I had asked a question and I just got the answer yesterday I
guess it was and we got this on the youth, how this money is being distributed to the
youth centers, the balance of the money because they're on a two-year cycle. Members, I
don't know if you have had a chance to read this, but let me just tell you that the formula
that they used is to me a formula that is an accountant's formula. It's taking the $200,000
divided by the 1.3 million which equals 15.38 percent and across the board they have
increased each youth program, each youth center, by that 15.38 percent. I personally do
not like this kind of formula application for increasing funds because it does not take into
consideration the program needs. Members, if we want to let it go this year, that's fine,
but there needs to be a different way to allot funds to the youth centers. It's just like you
have basic cost for the staff and for operating your center if you're a fixed cost, and then
you have a cost associated with the number of clients or the number of kids that you
serve. This does not take that into consideration. I think that what we heard in all of ...
every single district that we were in is that each program has grown. Now some are
growing by more than others. So I thought that this was an opportunity with the
increased funds to help those programs that have grown beyond what their normal growth
rate would have been and I don't see that being addressed here. I just bring that to your
attention, Members. I'm perfectly willing to support the increase, but I sure would like to
see a different allocation done in the next round ofRFPs. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for that comment. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I have a question. Because we have put provisos in other
grants, I personally know the success that the Boys and Girls Club has had because
they've been running phenomenal numbers. I can't speak for any of the other youth
centers, but actually their success has resulted in penalty to them, I believe. Is there any
way that we could put a provision in that would say provided that the $250,000 goes to
directly to the Boys and Girls Club Program. Is that possible?
CHAIR KANE: Members, the Chair will state that because the $250,000 was the Chair's
proposal, it was not intended for Boys and Girls Club, it was intended for the use by all
the youth centers. The Chair will also take into account and have some concurrence with
Member Tavares' comments. I think there could be a better way and perhaps this is
again something that through ordinance or somehow us providing some more specific
guidance via the Code to have that money more properly disbursed. It could be a hybrid
of the accountant, as Member Tavares called it, and the per-- 96-
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Per kid.
CHAIR KANE: --per child, you know, and have a blend of that to identify the needs. But to get
to your point, Member Johnson, that the Chair would not be supportive of just giving it to
Boys and Girls Club because that would take away any incentive for other youth centers
and it actually would penalize them because they're getting gains as well.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: You know, and for us to say you can't have but we're gonna give it to some
other group that shows favoritism of one group over another and the Chair has a problem
with that with respects to the 250 in your request.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and the only reason I bring that up is because that
oftentimes you should reward success as opposed to punishing success. And I believe
that because the Boys and Girls Club over the years have gradually reduced, and reduced,
and reduced, what has ended up happening as a result of their consolidation, they have
really not received in proportion to the number that their membership has grown. So
that's the way that I look at it, and you know, unfortunately because of inefficiency
sometimes in the way people operate, I guess that's just one of the inequities. I would be
willing to put a proviso in, however, stating that the additional increase in the 250,000 be
distributed on a membership formula basis.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I think that we're all heading for the right idea except
we're the wrong people to make this decision. The right people to make the decision are
actually Youth Center Directors. I think they can come up with the formula to do it just
as the model for the Department of Education is you get a flat rate depending on your
school, whether it's intermediate, elementary, whatever, and then you get a per pupil
allotment also that takes care of the increases and the differences in enrollment. But I
believe that the Youth Center Directors themselves working with the Department of
Housing and Human Concerns can come up with a better formula for distribution of these
funds. There are ... I can tell you about inherent problems with using membership and
padding your membership and kid signs up once and comes once. So the better thing to
do would be to use a daily average attendance kind of a number. I mean we face this
with trying to do our allocations for the PALS Program and that's things we wrestle with.
But I would say I would support what's in the budget now and thank the Chair for putting
in more money than what the Mayor had put in, but I would leave that distribution really
up to the Directors or to the Department. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further comments in this area? Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, while I continue to support the additional funding for the
Youth Center Program, I did recall one of the requirements that I believe would be
helpful for this Committee in the future to be able to make the right adjustments. And so
I'm sure Ms. Tavares is well aware that in Chapter 3.36, Chairman, there is a monitoring
and evaluation requirement whereby the Grants Review Committee at the end of the
fiscal year, specifically within eight weeks, shall transmit to the Council an evaluation of
every grant that was requested ongoing during the fiscal year which report shall contain a
summary of whether each grant obtained the intended results in the manner
contemplated, and violation of this grant agreement denies the entity to come forward for
five years for public or County funding. It is something that we have not received. I
think that is something that Mr. Mateo, as our subject matter Chairman, could utilize in
helping to improve possibly a future funding request to achieve the results that Council
has always anticipated by supporting the Grants Review Committee. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any additional comments in this area? Okay,
Members, the request has been made to keep the number the same. Ms. Johnson has
provided us with a consideration to proviso these monies. Ms. Johnson, final comment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I withdraw my request, but I really believe that
Councilmember Hokama brings up a really excellent point if the Grants Review
Committee did not convene this year and it's my understanding that may have been the
case. There were no grants review this year. Then I believe that we should resub ... ,
reward people based on attainable goals or based on anticipated goals. There are
sometimes when youth centers or even youth programs, I know Big Brothers and Big
Sisters had some challenges, I think those are unusual circumstances in those
organizations and the children that they serve should not be penalized. But I still believe
that people should be held accountable and responsible at least in this area for what
they're trying to achieve and because this is one pot of money that seems to just, you
know, get equally divided regardless of the performance, I think that is a problem for me.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any other areas on this page up to Number 32? Hearing
none. Mr. Molina, thank you very much and I apologize for interjecting in your
comments.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no. No apologies needed. Let me just restart my engine
here. You know, regarding the responses to the issues brought up by the Committee on
Monday, I want to thank again my assistant, Mr. Saldana, who worked very hard on this
bill and assisted me in getting the information requested by some of the Committee
Members. Just to recap, the First-Time Home Buyers Fund is a first-time home buyers
fund to, one, assist families up to the 120 percent of median income with low interest
loans with the intentions of purchasing a home, and also authorizing the Department of
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Housing and Human Concerns to administer the fund and adopt Administrative Rules for
implementation of the First-Time Home Buyers Program.
Issues that were brought up as noted by a transmittal that I forwarded . . . gave to the
Committee today, dated April 26th , one issue had to deal with income requirements for
the proposed First-Time Home Buyers Program, and I believe one Member had some
questions regarding the eligibility. It goes up to 120 percent. I believe on Monday I
stated it would be ... the loan eligibility would be only for people from 80 percent up to
120. In theory, in looking at the bill, it can ... anybody below 80 percent can qualify up
to 120 percent of the median income.
There's another issue regarding the calculation for the potential purchase price. The sales
price amounts provided that I have attached here to the transmittal, which is courtesy of
HCDCH and HUD, are based on a ratio of 33 percent. However, there is a high ratio that
is considered by the County of Maui with Lokahi Pacific. They are currently
administering a Federal program similar to this for the group up to the 80 percent with a
ratio of 36 percent on the low and 43 percent on the high. We've been told that market
rate sales, some lenders have indicated that the high end ratio could increase to 55 percent
based on the high prices that we have here on Maui for housing, and the County has the
flexibility to consider establishing adjusted sales price and guidelines to more accurately
reflect the median sales prices that we have here in the County. A Member brought up
the issue of residency requirements. According to the Department of Corporation
Counsel, residency requirement as a condition of the loan approval is permitted, but you
know, I am supportive of this. However, I would note that if, for example, an individual
is raised here on Maui, then departs to either further their education or serve in the
military, and as we have seen with what's happening over in the Middle East, a lot of our
citizens in the reserves have been called up, there should be some special consideration
for that. And if, when appropriate, Mr. Chair, I'd like to ask maybe Corporation Counsel
if they care to further elaborate on this residency issue?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Fujita Villarosa, are you prepared to respond to the question?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I have nothing further more to add other than what Councilmember
Molina stated. It is possible to include a residency requirement, but I would just caution
Council as to look at what other consequences that could lead to.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman. You know, I am open to any
provisos that if any Members wants to add. However, I would like to also emphasize that
the intention here in the Budget Committee or during the Budget Session is to first
establish the fund. Any types of parameters that the Committee would like to establish or
the Council itself, we could have it addressed in the appropriate Committees such as
Mr. Mateo's Committee, the Affordable Housing Committee, where under his leadership
we can begin the process of establishing the criteria and also the implementation of the
program.
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One final issue that was brought up was the repayment of the loan. As noted, the loan or
how ... whether it should be paid back is an issue that I think again could be addressed
in Committee. The initial proposal was if we decide to let a recipient of the loan stay in
Maui County for ten years, the loan would be forgiven, or if the Committee wants to
extend the parameters up to 15 years, or decide that the loan should be repaid back to
replenish the fund over the long term.
So anyway just to, you know, just cut right to the chase, I would hope the Committee
considers this $400,000 consideration to start the fund. As we heard from Ms. Ridao
today from Lokahi Pacific, there's a waiting list of families who are having a tough time
either coming up with the down or maybe having . . . needing the resources to get the
closing cost to get their foot in the door. The way I see this is a win-win situation for the
County. We give people the opportunity to own a home and then in tum, they become
part of the real property tax system and contribute revenue to our County to address some
of the many needs that we have here in the community. And the gap group, of course,
are the people who make up our teachers, firemen, police. One of the concerns I've
heard from people who are in these types of industries is why they don't stay is because
they have a lack of housing opportunity. We see it just right in our Police Department, as
a matter of fact, some of the issues, not only because of pay, but it's because of a lack of
housing opportunity our policemen are moving away to other places because of an
opportunity for homes. So I think this is one way to stem the tide or the exodus of our
citizens leaving Maui County because of no affordable home opportunities here. And
recently with the Focus Maui Nui I guess program that happened I guess last year, one of
the major issues was affordable housing to keep people here working in Maui County.
And so that, Mr. Chairman, is part of the nexus why I am proposing this for consideration
by your Committee. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Members, the Chair takes from that presentation from
Mr. Molina that this ... 400,000, Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That is correct.
CHAIR KANE: Is to be a fund to be established and that some parameters will be developed
prior to handing it off to the Department of Housing and Human Concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That is correct, if it is the will of the Committee to do it that
way, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: So it's simply to establish the fund in that Mr. Mateo most likely the
appropriate Committee to have this discussion, if that is the appropriate Committee, and
I'm assuming it would be. Mr. Mateo, I think in the last discussion provided us some
feedback that he would be taking this up as one of the things on his priority. Is that
correct, Mr. Mateo?
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chainnan, yes I will. I am fully in support of this particular
proposal because the crisis is not going away until we start to address it creatively. And
you know, this is what it's all about, being able to provide the opportunity for first-time
horne buyers to really get that opportunity. And as we heard from Lokahi Pacific this
morning, the program she runs similar in nature is successful. It has been successful and
it continues to be successful because there is a definite need. The wait list is long and for
us this is just another opportunity to continue to help our people to, you know, at least get
closer to the American dream of having and owning their own homes. So as the
Committee Chair for the respective item I would be more than anxious to take this up in
Committee work.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I had a question about if we put it in this section here, it
would still be able to be, ifit's so decided, granted to a non-profit agency.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller, do you see any restriction by us putting it in this area that it could
be granted to a non-profit for this tenn or is that something that would be detennined
within the Committee when they set at least some initial parameters?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: But my understanding is that we have the flexibility to either
the Housing Department ... no, the housing section of Human Concerns can handle this
or it could be a grant and I think that's why there's the two words, grants and
disbursements. So that it could be either or.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, what we have is a proposed bill to establish a fund. So this would be
establishing a fund and appropriating the funds for that ... for a First-Time Horne Buyers
Fund and that would be . . . I think we would set it aside like our appropriation in the
Countywide cost like we do for the Emergency Fund and the Open Space Fund. And
then there could be let's see how much ... you might want to add something in here that,
you know, we could work on language that the Administration would need to enact
appropriate legislation in establishing the criteria for the fund, the review on, you know,
how the applicants are selected, you know, all the details similar to the Open Space Fund
when it was set up by Charter, there was an initial bill that established the fund, and then
subsequent to that, the item went into Committee with a more detailed bill as to how that
fund would be established ... oh, be implemented.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I'm asking if Mr. Molina would consider it being a
grant to Lokahi Pacific with some provisos as to what we intended. That whole process
that she's just talking about, I didn't realize that that was what we had to go through, that
would be a lengthy process. And if we wanted to get in there and help as many people as
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we could right now, Lokahi Pacific already has a system set up. They already have some
guidelines. Maybe we can review them. If Mr. Molina is open to that, I certainly would
support it. I think we need to get this money out there and this is the fastest way to do it
is to get it to a non-profit who already is doing this. It's just a percentage of the guideline
that they're dealing with and we're going above that, including and above that particular
percentage. Ifhe's open to it, then I'll discuss it further. Ifhe's not, then I'll zip my lips .
. . .(laughter). ..
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Is there further discussion in this area? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I had thought from the presentation from Mr. Molina, the gentleman
from Paiai1Iaiku, that expenditures would await enabling legislation that set the
parameters. But if the Members would want to get the funds out to our people faster,
then I'll state again on the record, I will support a revolving fund program-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --but I will not support a non-loan repayment option.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further comments ... oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, Chairman, yeah, my thing is that the intent as I
understood it was the gap group, the professionals. I'm not talking about the below 80
percent. My understanding is we're looking at professionals, the teachers, fire fighters,
enforcement personnel, and whether it be zero interest or what, I would like to be able to
have the fund replenish itself so it can be a continuing basis of helping the next person in
line for such a program. So that will be my position, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional comment? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Like I stated this morning in regards to gap
groups and what Member Hokama just mentioned, the professional people, the young
people, we need to take a look at the median income and I don't know if 120 is the proper
median income on the high side. So if Mr. Molina can take a look at that so that we
include those of working class, professional people into the gap group. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further comments before I recognize Mr. Molina again?
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Members, as you noticed there is a bill
attached to my letter. Maybe my question would be for Corporation Counsel. Being that
this is an amendment to Title 3, uh, I guess establishing a Chapter on the First-Time
Home Buyers Fund, do we, if it's decided that we want to create this fund, do we have to
vote on this bill today in Committee or can you share some insight?
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CHAIR KANE: Ms. Fujita Villarosa.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I thought that the intent would be that it would be a
companion bill to the budget ... to the budget ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So in other words we wouldn't have to take a formal
vote on it. I mean because this is an amendment or an addition to the Title 3 of the Code?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:
Well, it wasn't submitted as a companion bill by the
Administration because this was done at your request-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --but it could be added. I mean it would have to be added by
tomorrow I believe.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Mr. Molina, Staff has additional comments to respond to your question
because we have posting requirements.
MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Because we had received this bill from Councilmember
Molina, this was posted on our last agenda and it is ... would be treated as a companion
bill to all the budget documents that were submitted by the Mayor and any other bills that
the Committee has received. These bills will all be voted upon once we go through this
process and have them come back for corrections. At that point in time, the Committee
will vote on all the bills, you know, that we have received including new resolutions.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you very much for that clarification. So at this
point whatever the will of the body is my goal is to establish a fund here of some kind
whether it be administered by the County or a private entity. I think we need to
get ... establish some type of fund and have the parameters set so we can address the
needs of our families out there. And I guess my understanding is if we don't do it via the
grant process, then it's basically in essence a longer wait. It's a longer process that we
must have to go through. Am I correct with that? Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Molina, I'm sorry I'm unable to respond to your question.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: I don't ... I can't answer that right now.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Fujita Villarosa.
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MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yes, Mr. Chair. The bill was originally drafted, as Councilmember
Molina knows, with provisions in it for the Administration to administer the fund. But I
believe there were some concerns about the ability for the Administration to administer
the fund so the bill was revised, and if it passes as it is in its current form, it anticipates
that the Housing Department will award grants on a competitive basis. So there's not this
option of the Administration of the County administering the fund itself. This bill
anticipates some other entity actually, you know, administering the fund.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Could I ask you a question? On the second page of the bill
under the heading of Administration, letter B, where it states the Director of Housing and
Human Concerns shall administer the fund and shall by competitive selection award
grants for the implementation and administration of First-Time Home Buyers Loan
Program. If we were to change the word shall into may, does that give us more
flexibility? For example, the Director of Housing and Human Concerns shall administer
the fund and may by competitive selection. Would that make a difference in how it's ...
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yeah. We could do that. However, if you recall in the first draft
ofthe bill there were a lot more provisions about how, you know, how the loans would be
made and so forth, so we may have to look at maybe reinserting some of that language or
perhaps authorizing the Director to establish Administrative Rules to set up the program.
But the bill, the way that it is drafted now, was done in a way that it anticipated the
program being done through an outside entity. So that's why there's no provisions, no
details about, you know, how the loans would be made.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Molina, and before we go any further, to Staff and Members, this is what's
on the Chair's mind and so I'm just going to speak it. If we merely provide a dollar
amount and park that money somewhere with the intent that we have the discussion
outside of this process that we're going through because quite frankly I think we need
to ... I think this needs to go to a Committee and it needs to have Committee work done
to make it clean. Because by deleting and adding and changing words now in this
mindset I don't think is to the ... in the best interest quite frankly. And so I would ask
Mr. Molina if simply asking us to consider the monies that you'd like to see made
available for this for the intent and that the bill actually be forwarded over to the
appropriate Committee and then have that discussion there. Hammer out what we want
and how it's gonna be intended to be used and it can pick up all the issues that I think
many Members have different issues which were explained in the previous discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
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CHAIR KANE: I think that may be again in the best interest although it will take a little longer
it will be done more cleanly so to speak. So Member Molina, the Chair, and Members I
apologize, but to keep this thing moving because we spent a lot of time here and I think
we can do a better job of spending our time on this focused on this. . . .{end of
tape . .. our minds as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yep, I just wanted to-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Molina, any objections to that?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no, objections. I think the cleaner the better as they say
and so we can get out something that's, uh, you know, appropriate and very workable.
So, uh, my main request is just we can, if we can set aside the monies for now the
400,000-CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --which is a start to get the ball rolling so to speak.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --and to Staff is there some preference for us to put this money in and this
would be the appropriate area to put it as far as to, uh, later access it for whatever intent is
finally developed? Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, it would be in the--where are we--Countywide cost.
CHAIR KANE: Line?
MS. KOLLER: Urn ... our lines aren't gonna match. Somewhere around line 120, 122 and
we'll ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, it'll be around Page 3 how's that? Under Countywide cost is
that where you were at?
MS. KOLLER: I think it actually probably would be on Page 4 in the Countywide cost where
we have-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Four hundred thousand.
MS. KOLLER: No, we have a category for transfer to the emergency fund. I think we just
would make like number 13 a transfer to a home buyers fund.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members ...
MS. KOLLER: First time homes buyers fund and then we can work with the Committee in
revising this bill.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, are there any objections, urn, by Mr. Molina's request for the
400,000? We're just gonna deal with the dollar amount now within the budget docket to
be placed under a separate item, uh, line item and then we can have I believe some
relevant communication being transmitted over with the attached bill to, urn, the
appropriate committee for further discussion outside of this budget process. Any
objections to that or, urn, any additional comments before we have, uh, discussion, uh, or
vote on this? Okay, Members, are there any objections to the request?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none. Mr. Molina, thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you as well.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, any other items on this page? Members, under Animal
Management Program, the Chair recognizes the extensive discussion that we've had in
this area and so as your . . . because your Chair is the one who proposed this language
with respect to the proviso, talking about successful completion of minimum hours, and
in this case 250 hours of equivalent training required of police recruits. This number
technically came out to 246 hours and so we came ... we just rounded it for an additional
four hours of 250. We heard the comments from Ms. Bouchard with some of the
challenges that they may, uh, encounter. However, the Chair would also like to note that
this would not exclude any previous training that they have already taken that would be
considered equivalent training to be included into the minimum requirements, and this is
again for them to get them on their way to being trained adequately for this type of
money that's being provided so the Chair just wanted to explain where he was coming
from with this, why would be ... the Chair feels it's necessary and the floor is open on
this item. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and, and I know that we had spoken about looking at
not everybody getting certified at once, but at least adding language into the provision
that would give them certification for let's say at least half or their staff that would be,
uh, you know, by the March 15 th , 2006 date and this I believe would give them sufficient
time. So in other words if we added in language to say that certification of training shall
be provided to no less than 50 percent of enforcement staff by March 15,2006, and then
let's say something to the effect and the remaining staff by March 15, 2007, if that's
possible so that in other words it would give them that additional time to have everyone
in compliance.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, any further request?
Anderson. Go ahead.

Ms. Tavares.

Comment by Ms.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I'm sorry. I thought-CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, followed by. Oh, thank you. Yeah, I'm concerned
about the number of hours that we're expecting people to get certified in a short,
seemingly a short period of time. Would you consider having the Humane Society
provide a status report regarding certification of their employees on like a quarterly basis,
and if they not performing up to what we think they should be ... I mean, we still got the
power of the appropriation, you know, for the following year, and what happens if they
aren't able to get all these people certified? What is the ... we withhold the next draw or
ask the department to withhold it? I'm, I'm not sure, but I think to, to get them started in
the right direction, I know that they wanna do this anyway, but if they provided us a
status report to the Council then we can keep track of their progress and their
accomplishments in the area on a quarterly basis if that would be something to consider.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your comments and the Chair will comment after everybody has
had their chance to comment. Ms. Anderson you're next.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm in agreement with Ms. Tavares. I was gonna address
another topic. So I'll wait until you're done with this.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further comments here? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Um, yeah. When I (inaudible) the Director for the
animal management area, she indicated that because of the size of her staff that March 6
or March 15, 2006 is a very stretch date, and in order for her to train her six employees
and, you know, given two years, um, she's hopefully, hopefully that she can complete
their training for all of the employees, but I like the idea as far as giving quarterly reports
on the progress as far as their training, but we need to give her some flexibility because of
her manpower work size.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional comments in this area before the Chair comments?
Okay, Members, taking this into consideration your comments, we can provide request or
requirements for quarterly reports starting off with a status of where they're at as far as
whatever they have completed in training with the hope that they have and we assuming
that we, they have completed some level of training, and we can lower the minimum
number of hours of training by half if that's what works to 125, understanding that next
fiscal year that we're gonna require them to have the step up progress up to the 250 by
the end of March 15 t\ 2007. So, Members, the Chair's re ... , adjustment would be to
reduce the hours for this fiscal year approaching to 125, and then proviso that they shall
provide initially a status report at the beginning of the Fiscal Year 2006, and that they
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shall provide quarterly reports to demonstrate progress of their training, uh, progression.
Any objections to the request, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. We'll make the adjustments then. I wanna thank Ms.
Bouchard. She did come up yesterday and say that they intend to do this, they want this
done, they agree with it, they have no objections, and so we'll provide them with a
workable schedule for them to accomplish their, their job and have a good relationship
with the public with this training, thank you. Before we move into Department of Liquor
Control, Ms. Anderson, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks, Mr. Chairman. I'm gonna throw out a request
here that basically I think addresses, addresses a safety concern, and that is the increasing
number of teenagers who unfortunately are caught up in drinking and traffic-related
fatalities due to that. We have a program called Project Graduation that addresses this,
encourages graduating seniors all across the County to get involve in this, it's a drug-free,
alcohol-free adult chaperoned all-night event that provides a safe environment for our
graduating seniors and allows them to celebrate the highlight of their life with all of their
friends in a manner that is safe and special, urn, that highlights the occasion in a way that
is memorable for all of them. I'm hoping that I can convince Members to allocate
$12,000 for Project Graduation Countywide. We have 12 high schools in our County.
Currently Project Graduation is, urn, organized through Maui County's Volunteer Center.
Some high schools are not participating at this time, many have, but this would be a token
of our support towards that, encouraging our youth to participate and help fund the
events, give them a running start so to speak. There's lots of expenses involved in
graduation, and the subsequent college expenses that we hope most of our young people
go on onto. So I'm just hoping that in the theme of safety that I've sort of taken on this
budget session, I'd like to see the County boost this, this program with $12,000 to be
given to the Volunteer Center, and I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, I know it's within Housing and
Human Concerns, but I can't find where in here it would be appropriate to put it.
CHAIR KANE: No apology needed, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So I need some Staff assistance for that but ...
CHAIR KANE: Let's take care of the request first and then we'll figure out ... if it goes
through then we'll figure out where to put it. Members ... I'm sorry, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I just gonna say, Mr. Chair, we're putting a lot of
money towards youth programs, uh, helping the youth of our County but, you know, this
is a way to say job well done seniors. Go out into the world and celebrate safe and, and,
urn, we support that as a County. So I'm, you know, it's not a lot of money, it's $12,000,
and I'm sure that the Volunteer Center would find a way to use that money to help setup
Project Graduation for the various high schools that are participating, and that money
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would also help those high schools who haven't started a Project Graduation Program yet
to do so. All of these, all of these project rep ... , project graduation events are insured,
they are required to be insured. I have infonnation on which high schools have been
participating, and if anyone wants further infonnation I'd be happy to share it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Members. The request is, the request has been made $12,000. I
think the first attempt to see if there's some place that we could squeeze out of instead of
adding knew monies but taking out of an existing. Mr. Hokama followed by Ms.
Tavares.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say, Chainnan, I don't know if it would be better under
Liquor Control, but under Special Revenue we have Liquor Education Fund established
by Hawaii Revised Statutes, and I feel that this might be the worthy funding source,
uh ... so I would ask the ... well, first I would ask Corporation Counsel if use from this
fund is, first, appropriate; and if so, then I would enter ... move forward with a fonnal
request, Chainnan.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. We'll have Corp. Counsel take a look at that. In the
mean time, Ms. Tavares, any additional comment?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, thank you. I was looking for a place where
it could go anyway, and on line 26 there are grants and disbursements for substance abuse
programs $750,000. There are line 28 grants and disbursements for youth programs. So
I think we can park it there for now, and then kind of figure out where else it might go. If
you don't mind, Mr. Chair, I can share about the Liquor Commission since I had asked
for the Legislature to consider expanding the use of the funds from the Liquor Control,
and I believe that when Mr. Silva came to talk with us, and was verified through the
Staffs work through preparing the documents for our HSAC package I believe, that the
only education part of the Liquor Control funds eligibility is to train and educate their
own employees and there was not funding to do programs like this as I had wanted to try
to get funding to the, you know, Aloha House and some of these other places, and I still
think we should pursue that as a body, but unless something has changed that was my
understanding and I certainly would love to be corrected on that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Staff, any additional comment. Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: The comment regarding the youth programs, that's one of the program areas
that's reviewed by the GR ... , GRC, urn, the Grants Review Committees so I'm not
certain that that would be an appropriate place but-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
MS. KOLLER: --we could put a separate line item in and call it, urn, I guess it's number 32
would be called Grants and Disbursements for Project Graduation Programs.
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CHAIR KANE: It would be actually line 33 because 32 is the East Maui Affordable Housing
Project for 225.
MS. KOLLER: Oh. Mr. Chair, we were ... I'm sorry, we were gonna suggest that that number
32, the Affordable Housing for East Maui, come up under, be moved up under the
Department, uh, the Housing-CHAIR KANE: Okay, we'll deal with that later, okay. So, Members, $12,000 the request has
been made. I'm sorry, Member Anderson, we need to move so we'll see if there's
support for it and then we'll go 'cause you've made, you made a very strong argument
and I think the Members are trying to look for a way to do it so, urn, I've very ... like I
stated in the beginning we are running out of time. We only have 'til tonight and we
have almost 30 more pages to go through so we need to, we need to keep moving along.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If I may, uh, I just want the Members to be aware that
Project Graduation is a national program. The Volunteer Center of Maui County is
already setup as an advisory resource for this program and is currently assisting parents.
So where we can find a place to put it I appreciate it, but I just wanted people to realize
that this program is already being administered so to speak through the Volunteer Center
and they're assisting parents in a variety of ways right now. So I just wanna make sure
that the funds are directed in that direction should they be approved.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Ms ... , Members. Ms. Johnson, any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'll support-CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we have a request for $12,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would cut substance abuse by 12,000 and place it to that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Concur.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, is substance abuse under grants and disbursements from GR ... , the
Grants Review?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Db-huh. Yes, it is.
CHAIR KANE: So has that money been ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.

- 110-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 27, 2005

MS. KOLLER: No.
CHAIR KANE: '" accounted for? Again, I'm just getting clarity. Ms., Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, that program is not reviewed by the Grants Review Committee.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Members, proviso we can cut 12,000 and make an additional
line by itself for $12,000 for Project Graduation, urn, and in your presentation Ms.
Anderson you said that each school would get equal amount. I think to use the same
argument Member Tavares talked about in the youth centers you have ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, I didn't say that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, I thought I heard you say that it would be given 12,000 for 12 high
schools 'cause that's-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, No.
CHAIR KANE: --that was your rationale.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. It just so happens that there's 12 high schools and ...
I mean, we could go for money, but there are some high schools that are not participating.
Lanai does not participate currently. 1-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Lanai does.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Pardon me.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: They do.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Lanai does.
CHAIR KANE: Anyway, we'll-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, anyway, I, what I would like is for the Volunteer
Center to distribute the money in, uh, you know, fair and equal way.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 'Cause of course each school is different size.
CHAIR KANE: Exactly. So that was the Chair to just get clarity on the disbursement of the
funds since in this case we have the control to do that and not change the system that's
already been in place. Okay, Members, without objection we will delete 12,000 from the
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substance abuse programs and then we will incorporate that additional 12,000 on a
separate line. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much, Members, and thank you Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: I think that's a very good program that you brought forward and we all receive
the 12 flyers from all the schools asking for help every year and that's great. I think this
is something that benefits everybody, get our high school seniors on the right foot, thank
you. I wish I had it when, in my day. Ms. Koller, comments.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, I just like to give an update for the Committee.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. KOLLER: The bottom line now we have 393 ... , roughly $394,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we have finished up in this area. We are under the
Department of Liquor Control. The Chair is aware of the time. When ... would you like
to go to 5:30? Break for an hour and come back at 6:30?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, we're gonna keep rolling, Members, we need to keep moving.
Department of Liquor Control. We have a working number as well as the administrative
overhead charge working number. Department of Management--again, we're on Page 8,
Members, Department of Management. We have the Management Program, Energy
Program with no changes. Under Management Information Systems Program (MIS)
adjustments that were, uh, were made at the last pass. Any additional adjustment
requests? Under GIS working number 319838.
Moving on to Office of the Mayor, under the Administrative Program Economic
Development Program, any adjustments to these two areas?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Economic Development Program?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. And this, we're not gonna get in ... we're gonna get into the grants part,
but first the, uh, the Economic Development Program, Mr. Carroll, you had a grant and
disbursement item you wanted to discuss? And if it is, then if you can defer on that.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I'll wait until we reach the one for Hana, Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, thank you. Any adjustments here? Hearing none, Members, the
first four grants that are listed on Page 8--Agriculture Promotion, Aloha Festivals,
Aquaculture/Marine Resource Development, and Business Research Libraries--these
numbers were passed through on second number will be our final working numbers.
Turning to Page 9, any adjustments? And we'll go halfway, Members. Number five, six,
seven, eight, nine, ten. We have Centennial 20,000; East Maui Cultural/Economic
Development total 55,000 with the request for the Hana Canoe Club Trailer;
Environmental Protection 600,000; Filipino Centennial Celebration 25,000; Film Industry
Promotion 85,000; and finally, number ten, Market Development Section zero. Ms.
Johnson-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --followed by Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: On Film Industry Promotion, I had requested to add
additional, uh, Ms. Tavares objected to the addition of any more money to the 85,000 and
I'll just defer to her to put out why she objects to it.
CHAIR KANE: What was your request for-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My request was to add 15,000 because originally this area
had been--actually, there were two areas, and there were substantially more money going
into Film Industry Promotion. There were also I think, urn, the, urn, University of
California there was another program that had been incorporated. Everything was
incorporated into this one because I guess, I guess it was UCC Film School. What it-CHAIR KANE: USC.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: USC Film School that's what it use to be. Anyway, I'm
adding in 15,000 just simply because this category is something that I think our economic
development really could use assistance in and so, uh ... it, it was no other reason other
than just to try to keep pace with a lot of the costs, and we do receive very good benefits
from the efforts of economic development.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much, Ms. Johnson. We have a $100,000 request, the
addition of 15,000. Ms. Tavares, comments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I, I had objected to it the last time and it
was because we were just adding things and adding things, and where they weren't dire
requests for things, urn, I thought that we could wait and we have not had any indication
of a request from Economic Development to up this f. .. , this amount, and in our previous
discussions couple years ago when we reduced the amount or kept it the same, it was a
discussion that they also do work with the Maui Visitors Bureau and in some of their
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projects so this amount of money was sufficient for them. So will not support any ... , an
addition at this time for, uh, this particular line item.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional comments? Members, 15,000 . . . it's on the table.
there ... in favor say aye for an additional 15,000.

Are

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Sorry, about that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No problem.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Carroll, you're recognized.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. The Members have before them that
original handout that, uh, that I passed out several days ago, and number two and three on
that handout I have the Kipahulu Ohana, and the Hana High carpentry program-CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, Mr. Carroll, uh, let's get through the, uh, one's that we have listed
already and then ifthere are new adds then we'll take care of 'em after we finish what we
have here.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay. Members, any, any adjustments on lines five through ten or
numbers five through ten? Hearing none, number 11 we have the MACC with the
additional 150 for capital campaign which was recognized by the Mayor's office and
Chair has concurred with that request for the capital campaign, total 400 working
number. Any adjustments? Number 12, the Chair did not concur with the Mayor's
request, the number is zero. Are there any requests for adjustments? Number 13, Maui
County Farm Bureau addition of 75,000, proviso made for farmer education and training
and for use of technology in marketing farm products 150,000. Any adjustments?
Number 14, MEDB, Chair concurred with the Chair's, uh, with the Mayor's proposal of
285,000 and have added the 250 for the building construction which was moved from
CIP provided that 250 shall be matched by non-County contributions I believe was added
by one of you Members, and we have a total of 535. Adjustments? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, Chairman, more just a comment. Earlier in our
proceedings I'd mentioned the possible reduction in the additional appropriation.
However, upon further review I think that reduction would be very detrimental to their
goal towards constructing a new building that will help their program and MEDB has
been a very proven entity here in the County of Maui so I'm more than happy to fully
support the additional $250,000 request. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Further, uh, requests for adjustments in this area? Ms.
Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I was wondering about the proviso, is this
where we're gonna address provisos or will we have one meeting just on provisos, or
we'll go through that all at once?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Shall we do it now?
CHAIR KANE: We're gonna find out. Hang on Ms ... ,
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, we need to do it now. When you do your voting we'll have a list of
all of 'em but we need to have all the language worked out.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you, Ms. Koller. After hearing that, I wanted to
ask the explanation for the proviso to be matched with non-County contributions.
CHAIR KANE: Uh ... if my, if I, my memory serves me, on the previous discussion I believe
Member Hokama-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --made some remarks and I think the body agreed with moving this forward.
So Mr. Hokama you are recognized.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, the intent was to, uh ... provide it in a manner that it would be
challenged as well as, uh ... was to show in the County's good faith in providing funding
that it would be a, uh ... a challenge to the other funding agencies to match the County.
You know in the past I can tell you that the agency has worked hard to get more than
dollar for dollar matching in their fundraising efforts, and so I'd be willing to remove this
proviso 'cause for one, uh ... this agency is not gonna just disappear on us next year, and
if they do not perform to the levels that we expect then of course we control
appropriations of what we decide to give or not give. Second, I would say that I am a big
supporter of continuing to expand another leg of the economic engine of this County and
reduce the dependency on the visitor industry as well as the fluctuations in our
agricultural component so I'm ... I will be happy to ask the Members to consider
removing this proviso and continue to help grow this component of our economic engine.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, I know you asked the question. Any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I'm very happy to support Mr. Hokama's removal
of the proviso and for the same reasons I looked to the 250,000 (end of tape . ..
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demonstrated how aggressive and how successful they have been and at leveraging funds,
uh, public and private so I will support Mr. Hokama's deletion.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further comments? Before calling for the concurrence, Members,
the Chair recalls that Ms. Skog did come up and a question was asked and I believe she
responded that this type of proviso would actually help them, and so that is what I recall
in her comments that this would be something that could be a benefit to them. So I
understand, you know, what the logic is behind the explanations of the Members, uh, so I
just wanted to remind the Members that that was the comments that were made by Ms.
Skog.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama followed by Ms. Anderson.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Chairman, thank you for that reminder, that is very accurate
on the previous meeting, Mr. Chairman. Of course Ms. Skog being the type of leader she
is reviewed this language provision with her professional in her organization, uh, Ms.
Leslie ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Wilkinson.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Wilkins, thank you, Members. And Ms. Wilkins comments to me
was that it may not be viewed in the positive manner that we had anticipated and she has
continually reassured me that the track record of MEDB ... and her current efforts is that
the County will be able to be . . . more than pleasantly surprised by the more than
one-to-one ability of matching and fundraising efforts by their organization. So, again,
Mr. Chairman, their performance record has shown that they deserve the support and I
would ask that the Members still support my request to remove the proviso.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Anderson thank you for your yield.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, thank, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think there's a bit
of a misunderstanding. I think Ms. Skog said that yes, the proviso does reflect the
intended use of the funds, but not necessarily that it would help them in any way. So I
would support Mr. Hokama's request to remove it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, the Chair call for the vote or is there concurrence in this
area to remove the proviso in line 421 ?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much, Members. The working number remains at 535
without a proviso.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Just, just for clarification, line 409.
CHAIR KANE: Four zero nine, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Was, was part of the, the language also that, uh, to
reflect that this was just a onetime, a onetime request for these funds?
CHAIR KANE: The Chair does not recall ifthat was specified in any previous discussion, but if
other Members recalled if it was then I'd be glad to, to hear it.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think the Budget Director can comment on that, but my
recollection that this is the second year of the 150,000-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: --and that they said that it would be a two year thing last
year, and it, it's not like they come regularly for the campaign but this is the expansion of
the program, uh, the buildings or the build out and that's what I remember of it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms., uh, Kawasaki you have additional comment?
MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chairman, my comment would just be that although on occasion when
the Committee has indicated to include language that this is a onetime request, that
language is not binding on future budgets. The proviso only applies to Fiscal Year 2006
budget so it's used as a guide in terms of if you were to go back to that budget ordinance
and look at it you could see that that was what your intent was, but it would not prohibit
the organization in the future or future Councils from appropriating funds for that
purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: It'll discourage them from trying to come forward and saying something
different though. Ms. Morrison, you have any additional comments before we move on?
MS. MORRISON: Yes, Mr. Chair, I, I can't find the document, but it's my understanding that,
urn, this was one second year of a three year commitment, but I would, urn, appreciate the
opportunity to check on that.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Mateo, thank you very much for that question, and we will follow-up
and make note of that in our, uh, somewhere along the line, but it would be noted so
thank you.
Members, the next one would be Maui Nui Botanical Gardens. The working number is
125. On to Page 10, Members, and I appreciate the pace we're going. We have line 16
adjustment made 38,870 working number for the Maui Soil Water Conservation District.
Line 17 Grant disbursements Maui Visitor Bureau $3.5 million. Chair's amount is
concurrent. Any adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, on, on the previous-CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --item, which was the grants and disbursements for Maui
Soil Water Conservation District-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --was this the one where we had some I guess questions
regarding a combination or was that another Soil and Water Conservation grant within
Water Department? I'm trying to recall because I know we had a discussion about
whether it was the district or whether we could combine two grants into one. It may have
been actually under water I believe.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Yes, I believe that was in the Water Department that had to do with the Nature
Conservancy.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
MS. KOLLER: One was a partnership grant and-CHAIR KANE: Watershed.
MS. KOLLER: --one was for preservation watershed.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to make sure because we're going through
these kind of rapidly and it was late in the evening when we had gone through the other
one. And, Mr. Chair, with regard to grant number 17-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --I'Ujust put my proposal out there again and I'm just gonna
read it right from my sheet, which was to reallocate $500,000 from the Maui Visitors
Bureau to wherever, expand funds for a complete independent financial/performance
audit, as well as a carrying capacity study relating to the impacts on our resources and on
our public infrastructure from the visitor industry. This is in direct response to repeated
demands from the public that the Council conduct such studies. This should be done to
put to rest any concerns that the public may have on the subjects covered in these two
areas and it would still leave three, three million in their budget. I brought it forward
before and Members were not supportive, but I'm saying it again on the public's behalf.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional comments before the Chair ask for your, uh,
concurrence, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I'll make some comments. The Maui Visitors Bureau
is already audited quite considerably and they're required to have an audit by both the
State and the County because they receive State and County funds so I don't think there's
a question of, of the audits. The other, the other question about overwhelming asking for
these audits it's overwhelming because of a couple of people keep saying it over and over
again. I don't think that we're representing the best interest of our community by
reducing the amount of money to this organization. The reason that we've been enjoying
the successes that we enjoy on Maui is directly due to this and, urn ... the carrying
capacity we control that by the number of hotel rooms. We also control it by enforcing or
not enforcing vacation rentals. So I, I don't see a need for that study because we have
remained pretty constant as to what our hotel room supply is and I don't think we have
visitors coming here or the types of visitors that we attract will not just come here jump
on a plane and hope to find something. They plan in advance. So I don't believe that the
justification is there to move the money into that kind of study, and I know that we heard
the Visitors Bureau say that their costs are running up, are increasing just like anybody
else's costs. A lot of their money is in advertising, and advertising to a very targeted
population that we're trying to get here the, the, you know, the visitor, the upscale visitor
is who we want, not necessarily the great numbers. So I think we as a County have done
well in looking at things that actually preserve our climate, our environment here rather
than just getting great numbers of people here. We're getting quality spending type
people here which I think helps a lot of us in the economy. I believe I read it was one out
of three jobs is related to the, to the industry and that's just counting I think it was just the
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hotels and the restaurants. So until we have something that takes the place of our visitor
industry, I don't believe that we should be lessening our support for the thing that keeps
the majority or a great number of our families working and providing for their families.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Any additional comments before I ask for your
concurrence? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I don't think an audit is
necessary frankly. I think they are a professional organization. I think they do their job
very well and, um, I, I trust what they're doing. However, I do think that we need to take
a look in the future about weaning the Maui Visitor Bureau from, from requiring
taxpayers to pay over half of their funding. Their primary market is the high-end market.
The high-end market are people who stay at our high-end hotels or any of our hotels for
that matter and so that's quite a niche market, and as Ms. Tavares says we control that by
the number of hotel rooms, the growth of our visitor is controlled by the number of hotel
rooms we allow, but we're also allowing vacation rentals to proIif... , proliferate, excuse
me, unabated. Many, uh, very expensive shorefront home are dedicated to vacation
rentals. The Visitor Bureau is spending 230 some thousand dollars a year from Maui
money, not State money, to promote the wedding business on Maui. You know I think
the wedding business can, can promote themselves just like I think hotels can promote
themselves and ... you know we've got 85,000 weddings a year in Maui County most of
which are on our beaches. So there are impacts associated with the promotion of Maui,
and I think there needs to be a balance, and so you know while I appreciate what they do,
um, we're suppose to limit visitor industry growth. Our general plan says that, our
community plan says that in our visitor industry areas, and yet we continue to give the
same amount of money, if not more, to the marketing arm of the visitor industry. So I
think it's something that we need to look at, and I hope other Members would have an
open mind to do that. I admire Ms. _ _ what she's done in promoting Maui, but I
don't think that we should provide taxpayer dollars to, to afford a tax free marketing arm
for the hotel industry which is basically what the Maui Visitor Industry or Maui Visitor
Bureau is being a nonprofit organization. So I do have my concerns. I have no, no
question about doing an audit, performance audit. They obviously done their job,
probably done it a little too well, but I am concerned because we are suppose to be
diversifying our economy and that's a lot of money that's going to promote an industry.
Yes, it does, it does supply employment for a lot of our people, but we're suppose to be
focusing on other ways of finding employment for our resident population. So that's all
I'm gonna say on the issue and thank you for the time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Very briefly I just wanna add my
comments. For me a proposed cut like this, uh, while I appreciate Member Johnson's
attempt at looking at some further analysis regarding MVB, I think this proposed cut
would have a significant impact on the MVB' s goal and vision of not only getting visitors
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here, but also keeping our number one industry strong. To me it's not only about catering
to the visitors or bringing them here, it's about sustaining employment for our local
citizens who sometimes we don't see them come out here because they're working.
They're trying to maintain a lifestyle, put food on the table, put their kids through
college, and you have generations of family here that have benefited from the visitor
industry and, you know, when you look at business all successful industries or entity
should not rest on their laurels. You can't take anything for granted. I remember years
ago about Swiss Watches. Swiss Watches many, many years ago while a lot of the
industry executives felt, well, we cornered the market, we're in, but then as the years
progressed then the, um, I believe the Japanese started coming out with the digital
watches and Swiss Watches went down in terms of revenue, but my point is we should
not rest on our laurels and we should do whatever we can to enhance our number one
industry, and the Maui Visitors Bureau serves as a vehicle for that so for me, Chair, I'm
satisfied with keeping their funding at 3.5 million, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional comments? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just quickly, Chairman. I understand your desire for us to keep a, a
pace going. So let me just speak from a different perspective regarding this funding,
Chairman. You know we have the advantages, disadvantages of this funding request, but
coming from an island that is dependent because of our economic situation on Lanai,
funding for this Bureau is critical for our island's economy, and the ability of our
residents to be employed and be able to participate within our community's needs.
Further, you know, our visitor plan is one of the top ten property taxpayers ofthis County
and, you know, we need the help to get the marketing message across. It's not easy to be
accessed to our resorts. We have great transportation difficulties, but we are dependent
upon the industry. We do not grow pineapple anymore. I wish we did, but the realities
of what Lanai faces, Mr. Chairman, is dependent upon the success of this marketing arm
to bring a level of visitor numbers to allow our community to sustain itself and to provide
some opportunities for our community until we can provide another engine on that island.
So for me this is not a luxury, it's a necessity to maintain Lanai's economy and I would
ask the Members to take that into consideration besides just what we see on the main
island ofMaui. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. And I echo the same sentiments as
Member Hokama. For our, for our island of Molokai this is the economic engine for us,
this is the number one employer for us, and we support their efforts. I've had the
opportunity to see their promotions of Molokai and Maui and it's, uh, exciting
opportunity if none of you have had that opportunity to see it. MVB and their services to
Molokai has provided us with that link, that connection that helps us to draw and to be
able to promote our island that we ourselves would not necessarily have that opportunity
so I strongly support the 3.5 as, as indicated.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, any additional comments. Okay, Member Johnson I prefer not to
provide additional comments from those who have spoke already. Again, we gotta keep
going and every Member has made extensive comments on this one item so the Chair
needs us to make a decision right now. At this point everybody has stated their point that
wishes to speak. Members, is there concurrence say aye for the reduction of $500,000.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, there's one aye. Ms. Johnson, thank you very much for your proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You welcome.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, the Chair recognizes the time. We're gonna go ahead and take
our dinner break. Members, you have a preference? I would say 6:45,6:45 but I ask you
to be prompt and I'll make sure that we are as well. Okay, Members, we are in recess for
dinner until six. Excuse me 6:45, thank you ... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

5:34 p.m.

RECONVENE:

6:47 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. .(gavel). .. Members we are reconvened. We ended at the Maui Visitors
Bureau. Members, from this point forward, in order for us to have a discussion on
something the Chair's gonna recognize a motion with a second and that way we can keep
this thing moving if we have a legitimate motion and second and then we'll have our
discussion. The Chair's gonna re ... , provide you with one time to speak so we all know
the rules upfront because we're already at seven o'clock and we're not even a third of the
way through. You need a recess. Okay, Staff, Members, is requesting a recess subject to
the call of the Chair which is . . . you know what a couple of minutes. Recess .
. . .(gavel) . ..
RECESS:

6:48 p.m.

RECONVENE:

6:49 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Members, the Chair apologizes. Thank you for that brief recess.
Members, the Chair apologizes. You know what? I'm gonna retract what I just opened
up with as far as motions and seconds. The Chair's intent was to make a point to you that
we are moving too slow, and the Chair cannot in good conscience allow you to have
extensive discussion on these items. We've had many rounds and I would like you folks
to please be aware that the clock is ticking, and if we're not able to get to the end then
we're gonna have some serious problems with our, with regards to our requirement. So
with that being said, Members, the adjustments that the Chair is gonna make and ask for
your consideration is if there are any changes that are gonna be made, the Chair will
recognize you, you can put forward what the change is, you can make an opening remark.
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We'll have ... if any other Member wants to support or questions you can do that, but as
far as supporting it or opposing it, Members, the Chair is gonna ask you that you keep
your marks to within a minute or less, okay. I'm not gonna run a clock, but if, if
Members if you continue to go beyond the scope of what we're trying to set up the Chair
will have no choice but to interject and ask you to conclude your comments so we can
move on, but again, Members, I just ask for your cooperation so that we can get our job
done. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, yes, Chair, thank you. I definitely concur with the way
you wanna proceed for the rest of the evening. The clock is ticking so we'll just ... for
me I just wanna keep it short and keep it moving. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, and the intent, and I'll recognize you just a second Member
Johnson, the intent is not to stop you from making your proposal and I don't think I've
ever stopped you from doing so, but I'm just asking you to be concise with your remarks
and understand that we've, uh, if the attempt was made in the past and you've got the
sense of where you're at, then please recognize where you were at, and when you come
back again, realize where you're at. Ms. Johnson. (laughter)
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: What I was gonna suggest because you know most of this
we've had consensus. I think the Members already know where they're going to insert
because I've already made my notes except for one item that I don't know where to put it,
which I'll just leave to the end or wherever, if you could just go through them just the
pages. I ... frankly, I think that would be easier.
CHAIR KANE: Well, that's what I've been doing. If you recall, I've been going we're on Page
10 and I said everything on this page and I've opened it up for remarks so we've, we've
started to do that ever since we got into grants that's how the Chair has been proceeding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and all I was meaning don't state every single one.
Just say is there anything on Page 11 or anything on Page 10 'cause we've been reading
each single one, and that's why Ijust thought it might expedite things.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And the Chair's reason for doing that is because we have the public
watching as well so they wanna know what we're doing. So the Chair is doing his best to
make sure that we're doing our job but the public knows what job we're doing so thank
you very much for that comment and I appreciate it.
Okay, Members, we are under, uh, on Page 10 we finished up with the Maui Visitors
Bureau. We have additional grants that we've already had concurrence with some
changes. Are there any adjustments to any of the items, uh, from items 18 through 26?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: For 26 I would just ask that we be more specific in the proviso. I
would like the, urn, the expenditure to note that 50,000 was for the chief administrative or
managers position. You know we did provide the other rationale for the additional 30,
but I wanted to make sure that they understood what the $50,000 was for, Chairman. So
if we could, with no objections, have that inserted in the proviso.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Staff, you folks clear on the clarification on the proviso? Okay, thank
you. Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much. Any additional, uh, proposed adjustments?
Again, Members, we are under the Office of the Mayor under grants and disbursements
for the Economic Development Program.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: May I ask Mr. Hokama a question.
CHAIR KANE: Please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: On that MRA one, the 50,000 for the manager position and
then the balance would be for their-CHAIR KANE: Support.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --operations and support staff?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support staff and the need of their national organizational fees I
guess.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Which is broken down the 20,000, 10,000 ... so 50, 20, 10 breakdown.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Fifty, 20, 1O?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, it's on, uh, line ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, so we'll just include the 50,000 for their manager.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: All right, got it. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Any additional options on, uh, excuse me, items on this? Ms. Johnson, I'm
sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mine is at the end after grant 27.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, okay, thank you. Members, we're turning the page. Page 11 we have the
final grant. This is USGS, urn, was there an adjustment request here, Staff? No, we're
gonna leave it here Na Wai Eha? Ms. Koller, was this the place that we wanted it to be?
Okay, so the Chair is making sure. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, in the first round I had taken into account the comments
made by Councilmember Hokama and others, and so I'm proposing that their be a new
line 28 added with a onetime grant for the Maui Long Term Care Partnership Caregiver
Pilot Project which is a workforce development project. It does not qualify for Title 3E
monies underneath the Housing and Human Concerns, and it would be a onetime thing of
$20,000 and I would not be putting this as an annual line which I had originally proposed.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What was that?
CHAIR KANE: Is there a place ... Member Johnson have you tried to identify if there's
another place that has existing monies that we'd be able to proviso that fund like a larger
fund-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR KANE: --to accommodate this?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I did not because it was a single item and I didn't wanna
mess with anybody else's money at this point in time because most of these grants, uh, I
just don't know what I would be taking away from what's already budgeted so.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, you heard the request. Is there any questions or clarification?
Any additional comments? We have a $20,000 request?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: This is for the van, right?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson please restate your point, please.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is for the Maui Long Term Care Partnership Caregiver
Pilot Project for the development of the people that will be working in this career field,
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and any monies under Housing and Human Concerns under Title 3E can only be used for
services. This is for the actual education and the development of the program and this is
tied to Robert Withnson(?) Foundation grant money and will be able to be used to
increase the amount of money that they get and it has nothing to do with the other item
which is a separate grant underneath transportation.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any questions for additional clarification? Members, we have a
request for $20,000 onetime. Question, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I have, uh, I had a nice talk with Mr. David Ching, Chairman,
regarding the E-Tech program, and the $200,000 for the asset management of the, on line
476, uh, Mr. Ching assured me that, you know, he did, uh, ensure that the amount of
money for asset management, which is the next portion of GASB-34, uh, had sufficient
funds, and I more than happy to reduce that by $20,000 to fund the pilot project, and I
don't believe it will in any way hamper the ability of Mr. Ching to move the E-Tech
program forward.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that would be my proposal in addition to Ms. Johnson. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, you've heard the comments. The reduction would take place
on line 478 minus 20,000 and would be plugged in to number 28 on, uh, following the Na
Wai Eha request. Concurrence?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Concur.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. And my last item underneath this
and this would be with regard to the restoration of the historical as it been suggested by
Councilmember Anderson, uh, historical and culture preservation category for . . . and
I'm making it not the 100,000 which it use to be, but I would do 50,000 and I would
propose to take the 50,000 from our self-insurance, just reduce that by 50,000 under our
insurance fund.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and restate the title again, please.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, it would be the historicaVcultural preservation
category and it would be a new . . . well, it would be reinstatement of a former grant
category and a re-titling because cultural and the arts is basically having to do more with
events. This would be specific projects and one of the things that I had actually looked at
would've been a project coming forward such as the restoration, for example, of the old
Maui High School because it is a preservation type thing so that was one of the areas that
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I would look at this, but it's 50,000 that I'm requesting (end of tape ... and reinstate that
category.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, you've heard the request. Any comments or questions for
clarity? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chairman, I'll go ahead and support this. I think being that we
have a lot of historic projects that's been coming up, for example the hale in Lahaina, and
I can see other I guess opportunities for the community to put together projects like this
so I think it serves the purpose re-establishing this category. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Member Johnson, the Chair apologizes. We're trying to look, to suggest an
alternative area because we increased this area specifically for additional request from
Corp. Counsel-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KANE: --for so we're trying not to touch that because we still haven't got a final
number to work with and we wanna make sure that we have adequate source of money
there to take care of the, our settlement needs.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: So sorry for the distraction.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, no problem and, you know, perhaps even just from the
rainy fund or whatever, you know, but the one thing I wanted to clarify too based on
something Councilmember Molina said, this would be, and I was very specific in my
wording of this, this would be for new projects. This would not be for projects that are
getting funding from other sources. This would be for something that would be a
onetime thing and so people can't be coming back to the same well every year because
there's many worthy projects, but many times when various Council members make
request from their districts this is what I would intend that money to come out from. It
could be ten, five, urn, thousand dollars amounts, but it would be a one shot deal.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Members, additional questions for clarifications. Proposal is
on the floor. We would, at this time it's gonna be an add and then we'll just deal with it
on the afterwards.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, I'll try and look for mine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Clarification on the title of this.
CHAIR KANE: Please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is it historical/cultural preservation projects, is that the title?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Members, do we have concurrence?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Concur.
CHAIR KANE: This is for $50,000. Okay, that is a new working number. We'll have that
incorporated. Any additional requests in this area? Thank you, Members. We're
moving on to the E-Tech Program which has been adjusted by 20,000. We have a
working number now of 410,225. Okay, Members, let's move forward under Parks and
Recreation.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I did have, uh, two in that area that you asked me to wait 'til
the end of, uh ...
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Members, the handout that I handed out earlier there were
items two and three, uh, Kipahulu Ohana, that's the organization for environmental and
cultural restoration education Kipahulu area. That's a living farm that we have above
Oheo, sometimes referred to as the seven pools area, and we have the Hana High
carpentry program and the Council has before honored them. It's one of the things that
we have been so successful with in retaining our youth and keeping them in school, and I
have put down for it $10,000 each. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Members, you've heard the request.
Tavares.

Any questions or clarification? Ms.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: My clarification may I suggest that this be put under line
388, grants and disbursements for East Maui Cultural/Economic Development 'cause I
think we both or I spoke with the Economic Development. She outlined what was in the
present grant and all of those were gonna end so this, uh, it's not anything continuing in
that program.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Carroll, we have-COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: What I would like to, uh ... thank you, Chair. What I would
hope to do was add $20,000. It is 55,000 now. I was hoping to make it $75,000 with two
provisos for these two programs.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, you've heard the request. Are there any request for
clarification? Other than that the request is on the floor. Any comments? Member
Tavares followed by Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I think that it's fine the way it is. These
two grants could fit under the 55,000. Five thousand is for the Hana Canoe Club,
Kipahulu Ohana 10,000, and the carpentry program at 10,000. That would still leave
25,000 for other programs to come under this.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
question. Thank you.

Thank you.

I think Member Tavares answered my

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional questions or comments in this area, Members? Mr.
Carroll I'm gonna try and move it along for a vote on this point.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Ten words or less.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Carroll, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. The reason I wanted to add that is that the
balance of that money we do have another project in Kipahulu that we're hoping to
finish, uh, that's Kipahulu community kitchen under the Pohaku and that's what most of
the balance ofthat money was for. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, we have a request on the floor. Those favoring an
additional $20,000 for a total of $75,000 for number six grants and disbursements for
East Maui Cultural/Economic Development. Concur.
PONTANILLA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Is there opposition?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, oppose.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, I need a raise of hands for opposition. First opposition, please. Okay,
we have a majority. Let's incorporate $75,000. Okay, we have a new working number.
Thank you, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we're back to the Parks and Recreation area. Are there any
items under the operations of the Parks Department that need to be adjusted?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I had requested last night that
we add six new ocean safety officers, urn ... I'll leave it at that. Well, I won't. I'll
(inaudible) my whole ten words. I think it's necessary. It's a safety issue. I'm hoping
that I can also get support for a lifeguard stand at Hookipa and these officers would be
needed to man that stand, and we know that they're underserved, and I'd like to give
them the flexibility to be able to go to a ten-hour four day a week program so that we can,
we can provide lifeguard services for people after three thirty in the afternoon, three or
four o'clock in the afternoon when our beaches still get a lot of use particularly by
visitors at that hour. So I think it's a safety issue, and I would request the Members
support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we have the request on the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry I didn't say, Mr. Chair, that's for 85,000 for six
months.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Eighty five ... my recollection was we had a 190 for 12 months so
I thought it was 95,000, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could've been. Must have been around ten o'clock when
we figured this last night.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, the request, the original request for 12 months was 190,000-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --so the request for six months would be $95,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: This Members would be an item under Aquatics line 498 as far as an increase.
Members, any clarification? Any comments? Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm still concerned about whether ocean safety is gonna go
underneath Fire or if it's gonna go still underneath Parks. So I would really like to have
that discussion first and I'm willing to revisit it during the year but not right now.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you, Ms. Johnson. Any further comments? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I would prefer that we wait until the
department has had time--excuse me--to sort through this and the request because moving
to the ten-hour day is going to take some negotiations with the Union and I think that will
take a lot of time, but I believe with all of the discussion we've had here that the
department does know what we're concerned about, and hopeful1y when Ms. Feenstra
returns she'll be able to sort through the water safety section and know what's happened.
So I won't support it at this time, but I would certainly consider it at a future date.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, any further comments from any of the Members? Hearing none,
Members, is there support? Okay, Ms. Anderson thank: you for your ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for that. Any additional requests under any of the areas located on
Page 11?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Line 487. The request is for another additional workline crew under
Parks. I brought up the consideration that this be also used to assist the white goods
program under Public Works. We are aware of the situation. We hear the concern about
whether it be for refrigerators or air conditioning. I think this is one area that we can
utilize to help support some of those needs besides Parks requirements. The 52,000 is for
the additional workline crew and 31,000 is for the County to buy a brand new one ton
4x2 Crew Cab pickUp truck with rack with the transportation of the crew. So as we've
done in the past, Chairman, we pay for the truck and transportation, we pay for the labor.
I think we should be able to redirect some of the resources to appropriate places of need.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, you heard the request. I'll just throw in an additional
question, Mr. Hokama. We also pay for lunch I believe.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So that would be incorporated into the 83,000 addition.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So I would just ask that we put language that would make it possible
for, uh, for this new crew to take care of our white goods program also, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And that would be a total adjustment, uh, we would have a number-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, further adjustment, Chairman. There's no financial impact. I
just would like the, the direction of where this crew is gonna work.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, Ms. Fujita Villarosa.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I'm not sure about the details, but I do recall in the past there was
some discussion about other departments doing work outside of their, their area. So in
hearing Council Chair's proposal of utilizing funds under Parks for Public Works, I'm,
I'm not sure but it could be an issue whether or not-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Chairman.

Then I'm wiling to move the whole program to Public Works,

CHAIR KANE: Okay. And that may be the cleaner way to go, Members. So in this case we
need to make an adjustment. If that's the request, Members, then we'll get to that point,
Mr. Hokama, we'll make the request there for the adjustment of the work line and then
this area will need to be adjusted. Ms. Morrison, comments?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, I was asking did you intend for the entire 83,000 to go to, to Solid
Waste, or the 207,000 taking all of it out of Parks and all of it would go to Solid Waste?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm just looking at the one crew, Chairman, so you know-MS. MORRISON: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --if Parks wants it halftime they can pay half of the 83,000 and
Public Works will take half of the money from Public Works to take care of their white
goods program.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Morrison, you have any additional question or comment just to be clear?
MS. MORRISON: I think that's clear.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much. Mr. Hokama, you like to make the adjustment
here that way we could just take care of it right now and then make the adjustments in the
appropriate area under Public Works Solid Waste?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be fine, Chairman.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we have an $83,000 request. We have a $31,000 truck and the
balance goes towards the workline and that will be to apply towards the white goods
program. Anyobjections? We have concurrence?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Concurrent.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we're gonna move this and make the necessary adjustments.
Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Staff just needs clarification. Would you just go through this again so we're
clear as to whether we're moving 83,000 in one workline to the abandon . . . I'm
assuming it's gonna be the ... the way you're talking would be the abandoned vehicle
and white, white goods program.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. KOLLER: Is that what is requested?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: So the adjustment would be on Page 16, Members, Abandoned Vehicles Scrap
Metal Program, general fund we would have an addition, and then as far as the
equipment, Members, Mr. Hokama any, uh ... keep this in operations for the truck?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The truck is included in the $83,000, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: So I'm just recognizing, uh, because you broke it down, did you want that truck
included in that number, uh, one place right here, or did you want it be considered within
bold inclusion?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'd rather move everything in the general fund program, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, let's make the necessary adjustments. Staff, you folks are clear on that?
Okay. Members, any other request for adjustments in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Move the Aquatics Program 13-42 are we there yet?
CHAIR KANE: Db, we're on this page so you are recognized.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. I had made a proposal earlier, urn, regarding a pool,
pool mechanic helper or pump mechanic helper for the Parks Department. A six-month
salary would be $15,000 and Chairman-CHAIR KANE: Members ... I'm sorry. Go ahead, go ahead, please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Sorry.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I draw Members attention to the responses that we received
from the Parks Department. One of the question, questions was provide a number of
personnel responsible for servicing, maintaining and repairing swimming pool heating
systems, etcetera, and they said there's no, no personnel assigned to this responsibility.
The aquatics, electric pump mechanic with the assistance of various lifeguards, and the
aquatic specialist works on, on these, and I think that the lifeguard should be watching
the pool and its people and not messing around with the pool heaters. I think that we
have heard a lot of talk about the pool pumps and the heating pumps and the heaters
going down in the various pools, and they provided quite a bit of information in their
communication about the types of heaters and things like that. I just think that this, this
program needs to have at least this helper to help get our things, and I think they also
would be the one's responsible for doing the assessment of all the heating systems and
provide that for our consideration next budget session. I think they need the help. We've
got many pools all over the place and we need to have a maintenance schedule. I think
part of the problem is that there is not a maintenance schedule for each of these pools and
their equipment so I ask the Members to consider that and support it if they feel they can.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, the number again, Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's on, uh ... $15,000 for a ...
CHAIR KANE: Fifteen even.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Fifteen even for a six months for a pump mechanic helper
and that's just an estimate, Mr. Chair. I don't know what the classification will end up be
for that.
CHAIR KANE: Members, you've heard the request.
concurrence?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Support.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, let's move that working number forward. Any additional
adjustments? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
I direct Members attention to line 504 under Park
Maintenance, uh, 20,000 for Kamaole Point. I had recalled reading the, urn, I guess the
figure was 26,000 that the Kalima contract had actually called for. Our allotment is for
20,000. So, you know, that's what they said before they start going in the red again that's
what they would need. So I have no problem. I'm just reiterating what was stated by
that, urn, particular entity. So the request would be if the Members want it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, and just so you note the Chair put forward this, uh, this
amount. I will state that we did receive her communication and there were two figures
actually and the two numbers ... and the Chair is gonna maintain this 20,000-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --but just so you understand 26,000 was the adjustment because of the rubbish,
they're gonna redistribute the rubbish as far as instead of having big cans they're gonna
have a lot of small cans along the linear area of the Kihei-Makena coast, and Kalima will
be responsible for that. The other was a $9,000 figure as far as for the general
maintenance of Kamaole Point so I would suggest that we can revise this language and
hopefully we don't have a problem from a contractual standpoint and I'll make sure that
Ms. Fujita-Villarosa is apprised of what we're trying to do, and if we have any issues
with the contract that's upcoming for the Fiscal Year '06, we can get some adjustments
made there, but the total of 34,000 Chair put in 20,000 to help accommodate that request
for the additional funds, and that is on top of the 90 that I believe was the original
contract amount.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, thank you for the extended time on that explanation. Thank
you for bringing that forward Ms. Johnson. Any additional adjustments in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: One more adjustment in Recreation and Support Services
Program, uh, line 511. I had put forward a, the thought of adding a parks maintenance
superintendent for six months for $25,000, and I think that we have heard all over the
County about the condition of our parks, and how they are not maintained and I
would ... I know you guys aren't gonna dive into this, but if you want to look at the
budget details regarding this section, parks, urn, recreation and support services is a big
program that is not only in charge of the recreation programs, it's also in charge of the
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daily maintenance of the parks. This is different from the program that is the parks
maintenance program. So we have a division chief who's Tamara Horcajo who's a
recreation specialist. The district supervisors are also recreation people. We don't have
people, one person in e ... , one person in the division to handle this, uh, the maintenance.
Each district has a maintenance supervisor who works in their district, but there is no one
person that coordinates that, that responsibility falls also on the division chief. This is a
really weird animal as far as trying to separate maintenance from recreation, but it's
together because of the districts, and I would ask for your support in this area 'cause I
think this is a way that we can impact the usability of the parks for, for our people. This
person would be responsible to be looking at schedules, schedule maintenance,
inspections, especially of facilities, and I think in one case the (inaudible) came up was
that Haiku field house was a piece blew off and then they found it's, you know, falling
apart and we gotta do things with it, but something like that should be reviewed on an
annual basis, and there are no schedule set up like that, and I think to expect the chief of
recreation to also do those things is an awful lot. I think she needs some help in this area,
and I, I'll leave it at that if there's any more questions or comments I'm happy to answer
questions.
CHAIR KANE: Dollar amount again 25 even.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Twenty-five even. This is another case where that's an
estimate 'cause I'm not sure what level this will be classified at.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, six months.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Six months, yes, sir.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, you have heard the request. Any questions to get
clarification? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can we go LTA for the, for this year to, to see if the Department can
implement and see how the operation will be adjusted before we make a final decision. I
would ask my colleague from Up country if that might be a workable interim solution.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think that might be workable, Mr. Chair. I think with all
LTA positions, however, if you just keep in mind that it's sometimes hard to find people
who know it's gonna be a limited term. However, because of the importance of this kind
of position, I think that we need to give it a try. This is one area where I failed when I
was in that Department. I couldn't get this person, but I think there's a lot that can be
done and a lot of support from the national association in this area. They've got all kinds
of standards and guidelines and things like that, but just have not had a chance to be
implemented. So I would not mind, Members, if LTA would be the way to go. I think
we could try it and see what happens.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, you've heard the request.
Any clarification? Is there consensus.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, we have an LTA for six months 25,000. Okay, any additional requests in
this areas? Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Earlier I had made a request for some type of an evaluation
for the Kamaole Point building. I have not been able to get a figure on what the actual
cost would be to evaluate that. I will try to work on something and perhaps may be even
from any, any monies that we have in other areas I will try and see what I can do to work
with Mr. Matsui to evaluate that building and see if we can come up with some other
options because the community desperately wants to utilize the area, but the building is
falling apart. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Any further requests in this area? Members, we're
turning the page. Page 12, we're still in Parks. Anyadjustments? We're, uh, up to the
end of Parks. So Administrative Overhead Charges, Debt Service. Adjustments,
Members? Hearing no adjustments ... Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, just a question. Was the Budget Director able to
check on the debt service for those equipment, pieces of equipment in the Waiehu Golf
Course? If that goes to the equipment bond what should be the proper amount? I mean,
we, I threw in 6 percent at the time for that hundred thousand or whatever it came out to
be. I'm not sure if she's had a chance to check on that yet.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Morrison, any comments?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, I must say that, that, uh, I have not followed through on that. In
fact it's the first time I was aware of! was suppose to do that so I apologize not, uh, not
following through. I, I really didn't realize I was suppose to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm not sure, Mr. Chair. I thought we just brought it up. It
might have been the Staff that we asked or ... but I think it's a, more a decision about
when that bond would be going out as to whether or not it would be 3 percent or 6
percent.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional comments in this area? Okay, we have no comment at this time
Ms. Tavares for Staff. Ms. Morrison, any additional comment? Okay, thank you.
Members, any adjustments? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Question.
personnel these figures will be adjusted.

Automatically when we've added the new
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CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: When we added the additional personnel these figures will
then be adjusted.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, we were gonna make adjustments and that's gonna take place and we will
review the adjustments on Monday.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, any additional requests for adjustments, Members?
Personnel is our next item. Okay, concurrence, thank you, Members.

Department of

Under Department of Planning, as our last round, uh, excuse me, at our last round we
deleted the lump sum and itemized, and is there any request for changes here, Members,
or adjustments? The Chair will bring forward that the Chair objects to the Pali to
Puamana Park for $80,000. Again, I'm informed that there is no cooperation going on
between what the State's jurisdiction and what plans they're going for in the Pali to
Puamana Parkway work, which I think is not consistent with what the State plans are
working towards. And so although I see all the other line items being general items, I see
this one as a specific item, and I am not willing to support this at this time. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I can support the deletion of this because that item
just came to my Planning Committee, uh, last, either last Council meeting or the one
before that so we will be discussing it in our Committee, and I think maybe at that time
we can kind of look at where we're going and perhaps look at inclusion of this if we want
to or wish to in next year's budget.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson, comments?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm not sure because I have not been able to visit with Mr.
Foley, but I believe that part of this was actually to enable ... there's actually an
implementation committee that's been working, and so I don't know where they're gonna
get the staffing, and I think that was the reason for this request because they're continuing
on with their work. So in spite of the fact that there's some lack of cooperation, it's not
just solely on the part of the Department of Planning. There's some difficulty on, it's not
all one-sided so I would ask that, you know, until we actually get something definite, uh,
I would say leave the money in there ... if you wanna reduce the amount fine, but just
leave the category in there because otherwise they're not gonna have the money to be
able to continue and we did support the work that's been done, you know, underneath this
program. So I'm just asking that you consider even ifit's a reduced amount leave it in.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, the Chair will stick to what I stated as rules and I won't get in,
I won't go back and forth on it, but again, um, just to acknowledge Member Johnson's
comments, um, she's correct that it's not just one-sided but that's the point, there isn't
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cooperation going on at various levels--landowner, State, and Planning Department--and
therefore until that is clarified, and I think Ms. Tavares again has stated she's having that
in her committee, the Chair's not willing to support a specific project unless we see that
there's gonna be some progress. Back in January the previous task force was abruptly
ended without any explanation and people were dismantled without any explanation as to
why it was being dismantled, and then we formed a new one which is called an
acquisition task force, which is tied into I believe Ms. Johnson your $4.5 million request
that Mr. Foley has provided us with information on.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, so, urn, in this care I am not gonna be supporting it and so that's on the
table. Any additional comments? Ms. Molina-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I support your recommendation.
CHAIR KANE: --Mr. Molina. I'm sorry, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I support your recommendation.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, is there support for the deletion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I don't support it, but that's fine.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, is there a delete?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Delete.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Delete.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, do we have a majority consensus? Can I have a show of hands, please,
of deletion?
(Council members raised their hands in consensus to delete line item for Pali to Puamana Parkway)

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, it will be deleted, $80,000. Thank you very much.
Members moving on. We have two grants on Page 12, Tri-Isle Main Street as well as for
Molokai Island Main Street. One for 200; the other deletion. No changes.
Moving on to Page 13, grants three and four (end of tape . .. made that adjustment as
well as the Sea Grant no change.
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Department of Police, Members, any adjustments within the Department? Any requests?
Hearing none, Members, we're moving to the Department of Prosecuting Attorney. Any
requests for adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Nope.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, hearing none, Members, we're moving to the Department of Public
Works and Environmental Management. The first two programs administrative and
engineering under general funds. Adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Nope.
CHAIR KANE: Seeing none. Page 14 and we have special maintenance, development services.
Two items we had adjustments. Any adjustments additional? Okay, Members, we're
moving on to highway funds.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One, one question.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Regarding line 619, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Are we planning to use any of the plan review fees to support this as
we have done in the past, or you just want it straight general fund appropriation?
CHAIR KANE: Staff, do you have any comments? Mr. Hokama, the Chair apologizes I'm not
prepared to respond to your question.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I can wait. I just ask that, you know, if the impact to general
fund is such that as we've used the special revenue monies, uh, in previous budgets,
Chairman, that that would then may be one source of potential revenue to take care of the
needs.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Member Hokama, then I'll have Staff look into that and try to provide a
response before the evenings end.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And again, the Chair apologizes for not being able to respond at
this time. Any additional considerations for adjustments in this area?
Okay, we're under highways, Members. We'll take it up about halfWay down the page
up to Bikeway Funds. We had adjustments for administrative (pause) down to bikeway
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general, uh, contributions health fund areas--FICA general fund, bikeway fund. Debt
Service. Continuing down, Members, any adjustments? Thank you. These will be our
working numbers.
Page 15, Wastewater Fund. Anyadjustments? We've made the necessary adjustment for
line 686. Again, that was a removal of the 50 ... , 1.5 million which we adjusted on the
other side on revenues.
Okay, Members, we're moving into Solid Waste. Any adjustments on this section?
Again, these are contributions, debt service, overhead, administrative.
Hearing none, let's move to Page 16, landfill disposal, residential collection, diversion.
Any adjustments? Hearing none.
Members, under the abandoned vehicle/scrap metal program, the Chair's been informed
that there may be an issue with respects to our recent, uh, addition of the workline
assigned to residential white goods. We may have an, uh, Union issue here.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well, and then, uh, I'm happy that-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm happy that if we can work it out that's fine, Chairman, but for
me it's a zero impact on general fund-CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --we just shifting the Department, but I'm happy that you brought
that to our attention so I think maybe if we should wait for a official comment regarding
collective bargaining issues or not, and then we can make the appropriate adjustment if
have to be on Monday.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Quite frankly the Chair's preference is that we put it back where it was,
and if we do get, uh, a positive response to the change then we'll make the change on
Monday, okay, Members. So the Chair's gonna request that we put it back to where it
originally was. Member Hokama, thank you for ... I appreciate your, your willingness
to allow that to occur. Okay, Members, so we're gonna bring it back to where it was, uh,
and the Chair doesn't have the line but it's going back into Parks.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Before you move onto the next division of Public Works--
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CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm sorry. I was checking with Staff regarding one item. I just
wanted to ask you if regarding the wastewater fund on Page 15, Chairman, line 686.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, 686.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think that was the one. Yes, you proposed 11 percent, correct,
Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we had asked that question on the rate-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --some adjustments whether we had an accurate revision-CHAIR KANE: The dollar ninety versus dollar ninety-five.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: There was an increase although we're dropping the rate. Ms. Morrison, are you
prepared to respond?
MS. MORRISON: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. I had some communication with Public Works
Department and the response that I received from them indicated that the numbers on that
page are not increased equally in the sense that you wouldn't, couldn't just start from
where they are currently and increase them by 17 percent across the board or 11 percent
to come out with what the final number is; that there were ... that it ... the result is the
total of 11 percent increase or a total of 17 percent, but not on anyone line, it's a
combination, and the adjustment upward was because they did not want to adjust some of
the other numbers upward as much as they needed to be adjusted so they, there's a
combination of numbers there. I'm sorry I can't explain it more specifically than that,
but that was the response that I got that it's a total of 17 or 11.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's a good comment, Chairman. If it's hard for the Budget
Director to communicate what Sewer Division is trying to ask us with this rate increase,
what do we tell the consumer, our residents?
MS. MORRISON: ... (laughter) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We cannot even explain it to them either. I just hope that they, the
division can appreciate the predicament that they put us in in trying to explain an increase
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that when they calculate they're gonna go can't be 11 percent, they're charging more.
Just my frustration with how we do things, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And, Members, the Chair will confirm to you that this discussion
was brought to their attention at least seven days ago because this is part of your Chair's
proposal that occurred on Thursday afternoon last week. This is Wednesday night and I
had the discussion with them prior to my propo ... , for your Chair's proposal so this is not
something ... and confirmed with them that the 11 percent increase was the way that the
Chair was gonna move forward. So the Chair apologizes we didn't get more specific
responses and in a more timely fashion for these rate changes.
Members, because we are moving quickly, urn, perhaps too quickly, the Chair is gonna
ask that we take ten minutes recess and let the Staff catch-up and make their adjustments
and so we can make sure that we don't leave them too far behind and end up taking an
extended break to help them catch-up. So we're just gonna take ten minutes. Ms.
Morrison, comments before you ... ask for the recess or take the recess with us?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. These were just a couple of items you had asked me
to follow-up on earlier in the meeting and one, uh, they were both about rates and fees,
and since we were talking about them, urn . .. one was in regard to the water rates and
the Chair Hokama had asked about the sewer billing services, sewer billings and
collections, where the HPWS was mentioned, and we confirmed that that does refer to
Honolulu Board of Water Supply, and that they provide software for customer accounts,
they generate the invoices and they mail the invoices for water and sewer billing. They,
Honolulu Board of Water Supply increased their rates which is why our rates and fees
section was increased. There is a plan in, uh, the future years to pursue billing on Maui
and there's $100,000 in professional services in the Water Supply budget to work on that
to, to move the billing, to pursue moving the billing to Maui.
The other issue is easier to explain, and that is there are some fees in relation to the Maui
Invitational Basketball Tournament that for some reason didn't get inserted in Appendix
B that we need to insert and that they were passed by the Council, urn ... or I believe in
2004, urn, it's still in FY 2005, but the $2,400 annual rental fee, a $1,000 custodial
deposit fee, and a $25 key deposit in relation to the Maui Invitational Basketball
Tournament should be inserted in the charges for current services section, and I have the
ordinance that I can provide staff.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members ... is that a proposed change or it's just ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We adopted it.
MS. MORRISON: The Council has already adopted the change in an ordinance.
CHAIR KANE: The Chair was gonna ask if we had to vote now I'd do it before we go into
recess so ... Okay, so, Members, any questions on Ms. Morrison's responses to earlier
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issues? Hearing none, Members, the Chair's gonna call for about a ten-minute recess.
We will come back at 7:50, 7:50. Recess ... (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

7:42 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:54 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: '" (gavel) . .. Okay, Members, we are reconvened. Thank you for the break,
uh, Staff appreciates it. We were able to get back to sea level here. So we're, our head is
above the water. Unfortunately, our numbers are not going in the right direction. We are
now in the negative, and the Chair just wants you to be aware of the position that we are
in now. Keep in mind that we have still to make adjustments for additional lease as well
as for the helicopter cost which is why I opened it up in the first place. Okay, so,
Members, I know we're in a generous mood. We need to start balancing it out, please.
Okay, here we go, transportation, Members. Before I get into transportation, any
additional under Solid Waste? Thank you, Members.
Under Department of Transportation we made our adjustments, uh, on the go around last
night-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, please.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One quick one under Solid Waster, sir.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Were we able to get any additional comments regarding the MRF we
funded previously?
(silence)
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Under diversion program?
CHAIR KANE: We did not receive, uh, budget Staff did not receive comment back from the
Department with respects to the updated MRF situation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Department of Transportation, Members, on Page 16. I think we
had some extensive discussions in yesterday's round. Additional considerations?
Hearing none, thank you.
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Members, 17 continuing. Members, on line 761, it has been told to us that we will not be
receiving the pro rata share of insurance reimbursement. It is silent in the language that
we are aware of, and that at this point we've been told that the dollar amount will be up to
one million dollar, dollar for dollar match otherwise ... and do we have that I believe,
Staff, that language, uh ... if we can just read the highlighted language of the latest bill.
Members, we'll provide that for you so you have the most updated information that your
Chair and Committee Staff has, uh, acquired from our State Legislature. Ms., Ms.
Espeleta.
MS. ESPELETA: The proposed bill states provided further that no funds shall be expended
under this part unless the County of Maui provides matching funds on a dollar for dollar
basis of up to a million dollars for Fiscal Year 2005 to 2006 and up to a million dollars
for Fiscal Year 2006 to 2007 for the purpose for which these funds are appropriated and
provided further that any unexpended funds shall lapse into the general fund.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, that's the relevant language for the current disbursements for
Air Ambulance Program. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, Mr. Chairman, ifit says up to a million dollars, dollar for
dollar match, why couldn't we leave the $800,000 there? Because ... you know the
Department of Health should know what that contract is now already. I mean they had,
you know, we had a note that they got the bid open and they were doing something, and I
think we know who the provider is, it's the same one, but the only thing missing was the
amount. So I don't see ... I mean I can see if we could leave it at the 800,000 so it's a
dollar for dollar up to one million, and then if we get too close to that $800,000 thing is,
is go back and do a supplemental to replenish that fund if we need it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, you've heard the comment. The Chair has no problem with
looking at it that way. Mr. Pontanilla, comment.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member, Tavares. I wouldn't mind going
that way, leaving in the $800,00. We know that they gonna match up to a million dollars,
and if they go a million dollars then like Member Tavares said come in for one
supplemental on the, on the other 200.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members ... Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just a quick. When you, when you, you asked Staff to
give us the current language of the bill, is that a conference draft language?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Espeieta, did we get the latest status of where we're at with that-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that the Senate draft-CHAIR KANE: She does, she have lang ... , she has a comment for you.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What is it, please?
MS. ESPELETA: Yes, this is the latest draft as per ... I checked with Representative Carroll
and she concurred that that was the latest draft of this bill.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Which means what though, Chairman? Is it the Senate draft? Is this
the conference draft?
MS. ESPELETA: It's a House Bill. It's a House Draft 1.
CHAIR KANE: One hundred-MS. ESPELETA: House Bill 100, correct.
CHAIR KANE: Members, we'll go and . . . we'll follow-up. Again, this is the latest
information we got. We don't know if it has come out of conference. So we're just
letting you know with the latest information we got, and it got initiated from
Representative Mele Carroll's office back towards us indirectly. It didn't come to us but
we got hold of it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: So we're, we're doing our best to follow-up on this and the Chair just wanted to
make you aware of where we're at with this and their using language, and Member
Tavares, thank you for pointing out it is up to one million dollars and so we'll make sure
that we follow-up with this, and if you'd like to leave the 800,000--and this was your
Chair's proposal--the Chair has no problem with moving forward with that, Members, so
leaving the number as is. Is there any objection to leaving the number as is?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. The removal of the proviso, Members. Because this proviso will
basically say that if we don't get this then we are not paying a dime.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Comment, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Please, Mr. Hokama
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, here we go taking (inaudible) for a State responsibility,
Chairman. And interesting in one year from $611,000, same service provider, you're
looking at a million dollars. Something is not right. I don't know why I feel we're
getting ripped off again, Chairman. Something is not right in one year from 611 to one
million dollars. Who's making the profit?
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, additional comments? Hearing none, Members, we're gonua move
forward under Department of Transportation - Highway Funds. Let me back up
Members. Under grants and disbursements for Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.
Transportation Services we made adjustments. We have the working number, and that
included the most recent addition last night 400,000 for land acquisition and related
activities. Following that we have the Hale 0 Lanakila transportation 20,000. Any
adjustments? Hearing none.
Members, Highway Funds Department of Transportation. Again, extensive discussion
last night in this area. Any additional considerations?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much, Members. Under the Department of Water
Supply, any adjustments in this area under Administration?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just one quick question overall.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, please.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Are we balanced on our restricted funds?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That would make it simple for us.
MS. KOLLER: Yes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: The answer is yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, on Page 17 we're moving. Eighteen. We reduced the line
item and we made the lump and we made line items. Okay, total operations for, uh, total
operations, operating appropriations on Page 19 with the adjusted figures for the
Department of Water Supply. Members, any considerations here for adjustments?
Seeing none.
Okay, Members, we're gonua go into Capital Improvement Projects. Page 19 of 31
general fund. Any additional considerations for adjustments? We're on Page 20,
Members. Any adjustments? Hearing none. Page 21.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, one quick question under-CHAIR KANE: Member Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Parks and Recreation for the various regions. Have your Staff
incorporated some of the adjustments from Ms. Tavares's regarding park assessment?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller, and I'm sorry, what page are you on 'cause I know I moved
forward, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say I would start from 20, starts on line 926, Chairman, we
have from park assessment moved.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Yes, Mr. Chair, we did make an adjustment, and if you go back to Page 1 on
line 43, the reduction and the special assessments of 1,151,000 was what was moved out
of the parks assessment.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: One one five one zero zero zero, over one million dollars.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Chairman, just to be real fast so we can-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --continue our pace, you can either ask Ms. Tavares our colleague
from Upcountry or Staff, uh, just make the appropriate comments regarding the park
assessments, pluses or minuses, in the each region.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Ms. Tavares any comments--oh, excuse me, Ms. Koller, go ahead.
MS. KOLLER: Okay, urn, on Page 20 we had already, urn, on line 926 we had already moved
the 100,000 for the Velma M. Santos Community Center. When you go down to lines
943 through 945, this is in South Maui, the park assessments we had several items that
were moved in here into the general fund.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. KOLLER: And then the corresponding ... these are all the items that are coming in on
Page 21 on line 962 it's 75,000 there, uh, 50,000 for this lifeguard storage, Lahaina Civic
158,000. (pause) Oh, I'm sorry the traditional Hawaiian building was not park
assessment. That was ... it's only that, what is, which is underlined.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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MS. KOLLER: And then, um, also in counting, um ... no, I think ... then when you get back
on to the, a section in park assessment you'll see the reductions from park assessment.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Hokama, any additional questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that assistance.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Ms. Koller mentioned the, urn . . . the canoe hale at
Kamehameha Iki Park or Palaka Park ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pakala.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That, urn, building to me would be eligible for park
assessment funds. It's a new facility in an existing park. I know this one is a, is it a
grant ... no, it's not a grant. It's in the Parks Department, right?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's a grant.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: This was a grant originally and we moved it in here to park, uh, Parks and
Recreation. The changes we made last night were only those that we were moving out of
park assessment that were not appropriate. If you, uh, I believe that, um ... this West
Maui district did have money in the park assessment-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
MS. KOLLER: --and so we could move this particular one, the 75,000 into the park assessment
ifthat's what the Committee so desires.
CHAIR KANE: Are there any objections, Members, if there is available monies to have this
moved into park assessment?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, so Staff we can make the necessary adjustments. Members, we'll pick
up from there. General fund Lanai Community Plan. We're on Page 21 and so-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me, real quickly.
CHAIR KANE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Given that determination, I'm wondering if the, urn,
oceanfront baseball field at Kalama Park, which is only useable until three or four in the
afternoon, would be eligible for park assessment improvements? You don't think so.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: If you're asking my opinion, I would say no because it's a
reconstruction of an existing ball field.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It' not new.
CHAIR KANE: It's not a new facility.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's not a new facility going into a park.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, well, I hope that we can do something about this in
next year's budget, Mr. Chair, because Kihei Little League is going to be hosting the
State Little League Championships and we need this field, and I did speak with the Little
League President. There are no lights on the field to interfere with the realignment so
I'm hoping that with the money that we have already allocated towards this park that
maybe we can find a way to use some of that money to take care of this ball field so that
all the kids can use it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Okay, Members-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Last evening I had stated that I would also and I believe this
is the category out of general funds on government facilities that I would look into what it
would cost to do the retrofitting for the Lahaina Civic Center, uh, for an emergency
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shelter since we have none and, uh, I got some figures but they're not ... they're just
ballpark. So I am not gonna be moving that proposal forward at this time. If anything we
can take up item such as Ms. Anderson's and this item in my committee and look at
maybe some firm recommendations coming out of our committees as to how to resolve
these issues. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Members, any additional items under West Maui?
We're moving to Lanai. We have government facilities, parks and recreation, and other.
Any additional requests for adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I may be so bold as to assist my colleague in Lanai. The
Lanai Youth Center Plan and Design for $100,000 to me that would qualify for park
assessment since it would be a new facility in our existing park. The balance in the Lanai
park assessment is 113,460.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller, we have that information? Just one moment, yeah, Members, we're
just doing a follow-up, and while Staff is checking if that is available, and we just need to
confirm, does the Member from Lanai have any comments? And if we have any
objections from the body on the request to move? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, no, I think that is appropriate use of the fees paid, uh, by,
by the developments on Lanai for this new center, and I'm happy to assist my colleagues
in reducing the general fund overage.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Members. Staff.
(long pause)
CHAIR KANE: If you're not ready, Staff, we can come back. Okay, that's fine. We're gonna
come back on this, Members. Okay, we'll have Staff again confirm. Any other items in
the Lanai community plan district?
Members, we're moving to Molokai. Government facilities, parks and recreation ... Mr.
Mateo, forgive me. I'm trying to remember where we added the parking lot. I think we
did do that, that was approved, so I'm sorry for rehashing something that was acted on.
Any addi ... , any adjustments here, Members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Nope.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, we're moving on to Page 22 Countywide. Government facilities we've
made adjustments in both parks and rec., and government facilities. Any additional
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request for adjustments? We're moving, Members, to Hana. Highway funds Paia-Haiku
and Makawao-Pukalani-Kula. Highway funds we've done . . . we did some pretty
extensive work yesterday evening in this area.
Members, we're moving Page 23 highway funds (end aftape . .. West Maui, Lanai and
Molokai. Any additional requests? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This would be just with the proviso, urn, district road
resurfacing, Lower Honoapiilani Road, sidewalks on Shaw. I had also included, because
there are two separate areas for Lower Honoapiilani Road, one was the roadway that
moves, uh, that's just to the north of its intersection with Napilihau that's not part of the
Phase IV, and then if they could resolve the issues with regard to Puukolii Road as to
who owns it, to put those down, and those were in the areas of priority. So I don't know
if, urn, I guess I would request additional language in the proviso that also states, uh, you
know, the Lower Honoapiilani Road Phase IV as well as the area to the north of
Napilihau Street, and also include Puukolii Road provided ownership issues are resolved.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Member, urn, Johnson, first Members any objections to additional
language for the proviso and then I'll have Member Johnson work with Staff to, urn, nail
that down for us. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we have consensus. Ms. Johnson-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --thank you for working with Staff on that one.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, so we have all nine members supporting that. Thank you. Any other
adjustment considerations on Page 23? We're moving. Members, Page 24, Highway
Fund Countywide. Any additional adjustments? We made some considerable changes
last evening in the Kihei and Paia area, as well as Kealaloa A venue. Any additional
requests?
Bikeway Countywide. Bond Fund. Members, we're into Bond. Hana, Paia-Haiku,
Wailuku-Kahului. Any additional adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Is this the area ... because I know I waited on the discussion
or at least my, uh, the acquisition information that I handed out, it would be under West
Maui Community Plan because I was asking to take a portion from the ... would be the
open space fund, and then the remainder would probably have to be bought. That's the
only thing that I could imagine.
CHAIR KANE: And that would be on the next page so we're just about there Ms. Johnson, and
I'll recognize it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, all right. I just wanted to double-check so I didn't
miss it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we have Hana, Paia-Haiku, Wailuku-Kahului for bond fund.
Anyadjustments? The bond discussions should be pretty fresh 'cause we were here last
night doing this. Okay, Members, sanitation from Wailuku-Kahului any adjustments?
Okay, bond fund under West Maui Community Plan District. Ms., uh, before I recognize
you Ms. Johnson, under sewer fund any adjustments? Hearing none. Ms. Johnson, thank
you for waiting.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and I'm not sure how to split this up because a portion
of it would not be coming from the bond fund. It would be coming from the open space
fund, and I did provide as I had promised the handout which is including the parcels that
are in Olowalu totaling roughly 33 acres. As most of you will recall this is an ongoing
project, and in my opinion it's a legacy project because it is part of, and I'll just hold this
up because it's the Pali to Puamana Parkway Master Plan, and the whole project
really ... it's dependent upon on what we can get now. My biggest concern and I totally
respect Mr. Chair the fact that not all parties are in agreement with what should be done,
this is difficult, and my fear is that like so many other times we have a project on the
lower road, Lower Honoapiilani Road, in a space of less than a mile, there were 30
different owners, very few of which agree with the amount that's being offered for the
rights of way, that is one of the reasons why that project has come to a screeching halt.
My fear is that with an owner that is not cooperative we have one thing at our disposal,
eminent domain. I'm looking at a total of four and a half million dollars, two of which
would come from the open space fund; 2.5 at this point would come from bond. There
may be other areas that we could get money. I have been working with Ed Case and he is
of the belief, and I don't wanna speak for him, but he is certainly encouraging us to do
eminent domain and trying to access Federal funds. So what I'm looking for at this point
in time, uh, would be the acquisition of these three parcels. I really believe that we have
to cease the moment. We may never have another chance. Once these parcels are sold,
and it could be sold to a multitude of owners, my fear is that it will be gone, and the
discussion will end and all the plans that we have, which all of you ... and even though
Ms. Anderson was not on the Council, all of us support this concept. So I would just
very strongly if we're not going to move on One Main Plaza, we may not have this
opportunity again. I realize it involves eminent domain. It's not just something that
we're gonna do lightly, and I think if we make a very strong statement we'll have an
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opportunity to put this in, and as I said last evening, one of the reasons that this was not
put in was because of the bonding issue with having so much in the bond fund. So I've
given my pitch. I can't do more than that. I just you know would ask for your humble
consideration of something that is gonna enable the preservation of this area. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Members, are there any questions to get clarification
of Ms. Johnson's proposal? Are there any comments that wish to be stated? Ms.
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I would like some clarification, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Please.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The parcels that you are referring to, Jo Anne, are the three
that are circled I'm assuming, correct?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON : Yes, that totals just roughly 33 acres.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And they're all contiguous?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: They're, they're not contiguous, but they are contiguous to
where the bike path and the multipurpose path would be, and they're needed in order to
actually complete that section of that Puamana to Pali Parkway.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the alignment of the highway has that been agreed to
by the State?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The State right now is they have actually allocated monies to
do yet another study. I believe though in this section there are constraints. So if
anything, this area would be constrain simply by the physical configuration. So I think
this is the least controversial part of the State's dis ... , you know agreement or
disagreement, but no matter what, we're going to need the corridor one way or the other,
and if nothing else even if they don't agree with the highway alignment, the contiguous
pathway will run on the mauka side or the makai side rather ofthe highway.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and this is all one ownership?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, currently it's under one ownership so we would be
dealing with eminent domain on one property owner rather than multiple property
owners.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could I ask a question, Mr. Chair. I'm not really certain
how this request for bond money is going to affect us. If someone could give me a ...
CHAIR KANE: Is there something specific you'd like-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, the balance of our budget.
CHAIR KANE: Well, right now as it stands our bond request totals ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thirty something if it comes revolving funds ...
CHAIR KANE: Staff, if you can provide us with the number where we currently stand for bond
just to help Ms. Anderson understand our position at this point.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, it's on Page 2 line 55. I don't believe we made any changes on bond
tonight. The new bond is 25,389,500.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Ms Anderson so that's the number.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. I'm hoping there's a way we can support this,
Mr. Chair. I agree with Ms. Johnson this is critical, and it seems to be right in the center
of this parkway which would kind of tie up the whole plan and force people on either side
I think to come on board at least give us a good reason for condemnation.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any additional comments, Members? Mr.
Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, you know, I'm, you know, while the bond number, you
know, is a major component, I would ask the Members do not forget we still pay interest
on State revolving loan funds, the Water CIP is still part of the overall County's debt
ceiling now that they're part of our department, and if you look at the total amount of CIP
and what we're gonna be borrowing, uh, for some of you, you may not, you may look at
it differently from my, but I'm already looking at $37 million which makes me nervous
knowing what is coming down in the next two to five, six years. So I am uncomfortable
with this request, Chairman, unless we are going to look at restructuring our, our
discipline on how we wanna do debt in the near future that's just my position, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, additional comments at this time before the Chair ask for
consensus? Members, there's a request on the floor for the 2.5 million and we would
make adjustments if it is approved to adjust the open space fund by an additional two
million that would be put aside for this. Members, the Chair is asking for consensus on
the request. Do we have consensus?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, urn, for record sake because we're asking for we have those
who support say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, we have two ayes. The rest of the Members, unless you state are saying
no. Okay, Ms. Johnson, thank you for your request.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we continue with bond that was under West Maui. We're on
line 1126 Molokai. Any adjustments? We have government facilities, roads, and
sanitation. No adjustments. Moving on Bond Fund Countywide--govemment facilities,
road improvements, and sewer on Page 25. Members, without objections, on line 1147
for the Old Wailuku Post Office acquisition and design, the Chair will ask for a deferral
and we will come back because I have asked our Managing Director with the First
Assistant as well as our Finance Director to come forward to provide us some comment
on the handout that you got earlier, and this will help us have a better understanding of
leasing space at One Main Plaza as far as our plan B to move forward. Since the option
to purchase was not asked by this body we need to address the issues of taking care of the
needs. So I have them here so without objections we'll defer because it will tie on the
discussion here on what needs will be, uh, to move forward. I can make a comment here
though, Members, on this item here the Chair is gonua ask for an additional 500,000 here
so that we can have, uh, the appropriate dollar amounts to move with the plan and design,
our first phase of plan and design for a new structure in this Old Wailuku Post Office site.
So, Members, I'm just giving you that heads up now that that's what the Chair's intent is
to ask for your consideration.
Members, we'll come back to that. Page 26, please. We are under other. We've made
adjustments including the pool heaters, which Ms. Tavares we have approved the
mechanic, I believe the pump mechanic-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: -- 'cause that ties in with this action that we took last night.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I would recommend deleting that 300,000 at this time until
we have a better assessment of the pools unless I lapse maybe somewhere and can't
remember what this was for.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, so line 1168, Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, the pool heaters.
CHAIR KANE: So you're asking for a deletion.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: A deletion.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members ... Ms. Johnson, for questions or clarification?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It was just a clarification because I thought when we did the
pool heaters there was suppose to be a proviso attached to it that the money would only
be expended after the pool heater study had been done so that was what I recalled that
those monies would, urn, only ... and I don't know if it was bond or what but anyway-CHAIR KANE: We are under bond, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: This is bond.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, but that we wouldn't go and issue any bond. It would
be like ... how do I wanna say this ... it wouldn't be acted on.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Reservation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It wouldn't be encumbered.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, anyway, that's just the way I recall it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Ms. Tavares, comment.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, and I think, you know, I believe that you
know it's good for us to get the idea across that we wanna do certain things, but I think
given the point that we're trying to get our funds or our expenditures or appropriations as
lean as possible, urn, I don't think we need this right now. We did not get a request from
the Department to replace any pool heaters, and I would give a chance for the mechanic,
the division, and this pool helper when he comes on board to do a correct assessment and
that will take about a year. So I think we could hold off on putting this in and let's not
inflate our figure if we don't have to and, you know, I think it's gonna come back to us at
a point where we have to replace them. If you recall some years back--I mean it seems
like, uh, many years in a row we replace systematically the pool heaters at Cooke Pool on
Molokai, we did the ones at War Memorial Pool not ... you know some time ago, so it
comes in, in, uh ... in little ... I mean it's not all the pools heaters at one time, but I
would intend to, to wait. I think that would be the prudent thing at this point in time and
let them do an assessment with the, with the technicians to see what it is they really need.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Additional questions, Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If I recall, Mr. Chair, this request was not coming from the
Department. It was coming from the constituents-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --because they were so upset and the pools were just not
heated, and particularly Upcountry. So, anyway, that's where it was coming from. It was
not to my recollection coming from the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we have the request for deletion on the table. Members, do
we have concurrence? Okay, Members, are there any objections? Okay, thank you, Ms.
Johnson. Members, we have one objection, the rest we have concurrence, and the Chair
will also object for the record. So we have two objections and seven concurrence, uh,
seven votes to support the deletion. Okay, thank you. Ms. Tavares, thank you for your
request.
We're moving on. Are there any additional adjustments there? Okay, Members, we're
moving into the Wailuku-Kahului District Lapse Bond Proceeds. Government facilities,
parks rec., sanitation. Adjustments? Lanai? Makawao-Pukalani-Kula? Okay, under
Makawao-Pukalani-Kula this is park assessment funds. Members, we've made our
adjustments. Page 27 moving on which includes-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh ... Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: --under Wailuku-Kahului ... on 26 I'm sorry. Twenty-six Wailuku-Kahului
Park Assessment Funds. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I'm sorry. The parks assessments funds have
been a little confusing 'cause we have to go back and forth, and the, the Pukalani Park
jogging paths ... oh, no, that's right. You have it in there. Sorry. It's in there.
CHAIR KANE: Yep, it's here. Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, we're moving on to Page 27, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You're speeding up faster than my mind. Never mind.
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CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, I had one. That's right I'm in the right place. Sorry.
Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan District we eliminated the Velma Santos Community
Center improvements 'cause none of those improvements are for something new.
They're all like repainting, urn ... putting in acoustical tile, all this kind of stuff.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: What I would like to put out for the Members is that the
balance in the parks assessment fund for Wailuku is $107,000. I would ask the
consideration of $100,000 to be used for the lao Park, urn ... the one on Market, Market
Street, and I can start some improvements and maybe some design with that money and
we wouldn't have to put the 300,000 or consider the 300,000 for that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, the Chair believes that would qualify, it's a new park, part of a
plan to move forward in the Wailuku area. You've heard the request. Are there any
questions for clarification? Are there any comments in this area? Only question is I
know there was a comment brought up about having the MRA deal with, within the MRA
designated areas that they would be taking care of things like that, and I don't know if
that's relevant to what is the request here this evening. So I just wanted to point that out
as a recollection of a discussion from last night. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, that is, uh, my comments regarding that specific topic last
time was my hopes as part of the long term growth of the agency within the
redevelopment areas boundaries, uh, statute, State statute allows them some funding
options to address the needs of infrastructure and other types of improvements which
may reduce the normal general fund requirements that we currently place in, within the
boundaries. So it may take a few years to get them to be able to exercise those type of
fiscal options, but I mentioned it last night as part of my hope of their long range ability
to finance things within the boundary areas within their own, uh, financial means.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Arty additional questions? We have a request on the floor
100,000 park assessment monies for the lao Park between the restroom and police
substation and the lao Theatre. Okay, Members, consensus.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much and, uh, Staff, note that Member Carroll is excused for
the moment. Okay, Members, we're moving on. We'll tum to Page 27.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, I'm following you now right in there.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, Kihei-Makena Community Plan Park Assessment Funds so I made the
adjustments, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: For the one remaining project in, out of park assessment
comes under the Kalama Park Improvements and I would like it to be specific for design
for walking paths. That is the only new thing that was listed on all of the Kalama Park
improvements.
CHAIR KANE: So we have a proviso-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Proviso, uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --design for ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Kalama Park improvements design for walking paths the
$100,000.
CHAIR KANE: And that was provisoing a 100 ... , of the $100,000 that is left from that?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much.
comments? Support?

Members, any questions for clarification?

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. We have unanimous. Member Carroll excused. Any other
requests? Members, we're moving. Park Assessment West Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, and this is where I thought canoe hale at Kamehameha
Iki Park for, uh ... was it $75,000 that could qualify?
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and we can make that adjustment here. Ms. Koller, were you able to
verify that? Okay, so Members, Staff has incorporated it in to this area so we will have
an adjusted working number.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And Mr. Chair, as a note-- 160-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 27, 2005

CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --I hope to find out the actual name of that park before we
start it. It has three names.
CHAIR KANE: Armory Park, Pakala Park.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, and which, which one is the correct name or the one
we should refer it to 'cause I noticed that every time we put a name in here that's the
name that sort of sticks, but that's not necessarily the name that it should be called so if
we could, urn ... or maybe I can talk to or you can talk to the people in Lah ... , West
Maui and find out what their ... why they started calling it this Palaka Park.
CHAIR KANE: Pakala.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's Pakala.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Pakala. Pakala Park. There's too many P's in there for one.
CHAIR KANE: The "la" is a long "a". Pakala.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And it comes from the use many years ago by the alii of that
area. In fact the surfacing grounds in front it are really historic. They have a separate
name of-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So maybe we have to send this to the Cultural Resources
Commission to determine which of the Hawaiian name should be used for that park.
CHAIR KANE: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I will be happy to.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Good, we'll follow-up with that. Members, the adjustment has been made in
this area for West Maui. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, I just have a quick question.
CHAIR KANE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ms. Tavares has kept such good totals on the park
assessment, and I'm just wondering is she could give me a total for Kihei-Makena.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: What you have left in park assessment?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh ... almost a million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The balance I had earlier, Mr. Chair, was 1,019,067 and of
that we're using only 100,000 for those paths.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we're moving through Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'd say on behalf of my colleague from Lanai, under park
assessment I believe the new community center, uh, the new youth center would fall
under a park assessment. Lanai has $113 ... $113,000; the Lanai Gym improvements,
should not, should actually be in general fund 'cause all of those are similar to the
improvements for Lahaina Civic Center and the Velma Santos Community Center.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. That was one we missed on one of our spreadsheets.
We have made that change. So the 113,000 will go to the general fund and then we've
added the Lanai Youth Center for a 100 and that leaves a balance of 13,000 in park
assessment for Lanai.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we've made the adjustment. We're moving on. Wastewater
Funds for Wailuku-Kahului, West Maui, and Countywide. Any additional requests for
adjustments?
Hearing none, Page 28, State Revolving Loan Funds. Hana, Wailuku-Kahului, West
Maui, Molokai. Members, any additional adjustments in these areas? Hearing none.
Members, for Water Supply Funds, restricted funds we have on Page 28 and on 29 no
adjustments. On Page 29 Water Supply Unrestricted Revised, and stated last night we
have made the necessary adjustments as proposed by the latest figures provided to us by
on behalf of, from the Water Department Ms. Morrison.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oops.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, Page 31 we have arrived. Before we start getting into the
totals, I don't know if Staff has some numbers, but again, I have Managing Director as
well as Finance Director here to discuss two items that are related ... Staff, do you need
a recess before we get into that? Okay, Members, we're gonna take our evening break.
It's 8:45. The Chair's gonna recess until nine o'clock. Okay, we are in recess
... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

8:44 p.m.

RECONVENE:

9:09 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Members, we are reconvened. Thank you very much. I'd like,
Members, without objections to ask Mr. Keith Regan, our Managing Director, to come
down. You have received at an earlier point in this meeting a document that looks like
this, and it is titled "Estimated Cost to Lease Space at One Main Plaza", and I'm gonna
ask Mr. Regan, if you can please, Mr. Regan, take a seat right up here, please, thank you.
I'm gonna ask him to provide some comments on the figures that is being reflected, and
then the Chair is gonna make a proposal for your consideration (end of tape . .. space at
One Main Plaza. Mr. Regan, good evening, and thank you for joining us this evening,
and we realize the time so we, uh, thank your wife as well and your newborn yet to come
and on her way. Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair. Good evening, Chair and Members. I wanna first of all thank
you for this opportunity to be here this evening with you to go over these estimated costs
that we were able to put together this afternoon based on a request that came up to our
office for an estimate of what it would cost to lease space at One Main Plaza to be able to
accommodate our current needs for the County of Maui operations, and we put this
together. And, Chair, I'm not sure if you'd like me to just go over the numbers and
summary and then open up for questions, or I'm not sure what you, you would like me to
do.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Mr. Regan, what you can do is you can identify the chart that
you provide describing the suite numbers, rentable square footage, uh, with that being
relevant to the needs that you folks have identified, and then below that if you can walk
through the estimated cost, including the upfront construction cost to make the suites
available for, for it to be functional, and then just move right down the line until the
bottom line figure that you represent under annual debt service, principal and interest,
and what the number represents.
MR. REGAN: Okay, thank you, Chair. I'd like to start by going over the spreadsheet which you
see at the top of this piece of this document that's entitled "Estimate Cost to Lease Space
at One Main Plaza", and you can see that the first three suites, which should be somewhat
shaded in gray, identified as Suites 101, 175, and 150. These suites are raw space located
at One Main Plaza, and you can see as you look at the rentable square footage, the
useable square footage, the estimated lease rate per square foot, uh, the monthly lease
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cost, and the annual lease cost that, uh, these, this is the, this is the large contiguous space
that you've heard being discussed in prior discussions here on the Council floor. You can
see that we have the other ... the next three suites--205, 219, and 225--they are not
shaded because they're not considered raw space. They're not concrete floors with no
improvements. These have some minor improvements contained with them, but these
minor improvements are just flooring essentially with the air conditioning available as
well so we are estimating that there would be some cost to do improvements contained
within those particular suites to make them useable for County operations and you'll see,
and I don't wanna skip down, but I will for just one, one brief moment, that we've
estimated the construction cost per square foot for the raw space at $200 per square foot
which came from information that we were able to gamer from a number of people in the
industry such as architects, contractors, County construction managers, County plans
viewers, they were the experts who assisted us in being able to put these numbers
together. You can see that the next item below that, uh, other locations, construction cost
estimated at $50 per square foot, these are the, uh, these are not the raw spaces. These
are the other spaces that I'm talking about. Suite 301 is another raw space, uh, of
approximately 935 square foot, feet of available useable space. The other, the next three
suites are, um, also the, the other spaces which are not raw. I'm not sure if you want me
to go down line item by line item on this, Chair, or if you would just like me to skip down
to the next set of costs?
CHAIR KANE: I'd like you to skip down, please.
MR. REGAN: Okay, certainly. So you can see that we've totaled up the annual leases or the
annual lease payments, and we've come to the figure of 1.142 million and some change,
and in Fiscal Year 2006 we're estimating that there's gonna be some costs involved in
being able to move to One Main Plaza to lease space there, and some of those costs
involved telecommunications, uh, equipment, as well as networking equipment to allow
these County facilities to connect to our network. We're really fortunate in the fact that
prior maybe many years ago, couple years ago, uh, the Planning Department was forced
to move over there and there was a lot of, not a lot, but there was infrastructure that was
put in place in there. Fiber, uh, cable was run to the building so that was one major
hurdle that we were able to get over, but we're still gonna need the switches and the
equipment within the facilities to be able to accommodate our County operations, and we
estimated that at about $200,000. We're, unfortunately, uh, you know, we wanted to get
a little bit closer figure, but this is our best estimate guess for what it would cost for that
type of equipment. It is expensive, it is a onetime cost, but it does last, you know, for
some time so our estimate on that was 200,000. Our total estimated construction cost,
which are improvements in some cases, and in other cases they're actually, there actually
would be building out the facility estimated at about 2.9 million, and you can see the
breakdown in that last column all the way to the right per suite, uh, for a total estimated
initial upfront cost in Fiscal Year 2006 of about 3.1 million. If you add that in to the total
lease cost for the first year, you come out to approximately 4.3 million in Fiscal Year
2006 which would be our estimated cost. Understand that these figures were based on
information that we had available to us this afternoon. We were able to put this together
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this afternoon. The lease rates we did confirm with A&B that they would be willing to,
uh, they would be willing to give us the space at these rates, urn ... there may be some
room for negotiation on, on the raw space. We're not certain what that would be because
we're just able to put this together this afternoon for this discussion this evening, but we
are confident that at the high range, $3 is the high range for the space. So to protect
ourselves that's essentially where we are with that figure. In Fiscal Year 2007 we
estimated that there's gonna be an approximate annual lease increase to the County
operations of about 2 percent, and we did that on an annual basis going forward and you
can see that the increases are reflected in the lease cost as presented in the chart so you
can see that it does go up incrementally about 2 percent per year. I think at the bottom of
the page, which is probably the most, uh, I don't wanna say glaring, but glaring number
that's on the sheet, is the annual debt service, and this annual debt service includes the
principal and interest on what it would cost us to purchase One Main Plaza which was in
our request of 4.25 million and, you know, this was, this is perhaps something that was
not presented to the Council in the past. I don't know that this number was brought
forward to you so that you could see it, and essentially what this is is how much it would
cost us, cost the County to purchase One Main Plaza on an annual basis, and you can see
that from that nurnber it is, uh, it shows that it is actually cheaper for us to purchase One
Main Plaza than it would be to, uh, to lease space. And essentially, Chair, the annual
interest rate that you see there at 5 percent is what we anticipate based on the current
financial markets here within the U.S. that they're estimating that there's gonna be about
100 basis points movements about 1 percent over the next year. Through now until the
end of the year we would estimate that we would go forward with the bond sale sometime
towards the end of the year so ... or around July, urn, and right now we just did, we just
did a bond sale earlier in the year actually and it was about 4 percent on average so we're
estimating it to be about 5 percent, that's where we came up with that number, Chair, and
that's essentially the worksheet that's in front of you and the Members. And I appreciate
you giving us this opportunity to be here this evening to kind of talk about this and, and
go forward from here.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much. Members, the Chair's intent to provide this
information was to let you know that this is what the projections are for us to move
forward with the leasing of space as well as for the movement of construction of a
building, whether it eventually ends up for planning and design on, on the post office side
or on our existing site at Kaohu Street where the existing parking lot is. This is the plan
B, and the Chair wants to be upfront, we put all the numbers in front of you, this is what
we're talking about, and to reiterate that that bottom line of 1,143,456 was the number
that was not included in the Fiscal Year '06 proposed budget. This would be a number
over and above what was presented to us in the purchase of One Main Plaza, and this
number was left out so again that's that part. The other side is what we have as far as
what is gonna cost us, I think Mr. Regan if you could just clarify, and I'll just make a
comment to it. What is represented as far as all the suites that are here in the spreadsheet
represent what the Administration is saying that they will need for, uh, for needed space.
Does it mean that all of these spaces are necessary to something, we're all gonna move
into immediately, but these are spaces that they would like to make sure that gets secured
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so in the event that in the future if the building is sold to somebody else or we change our
mind because the Administration comes back or tonight you wauna change your mind ...
And, again, Members, I'm just putting that on the table. I'm not trying to force anything,
just letting you know where you're at. Keep in mind that these are the numbers and this
spreadsheet represents securing of all the spaces that will eventually be needed in a
six-year time frame, uh, and I believe Mr. Regan has represented to me that the reason
they took it up for six years is because the intention was to have a build ... , a brand new
building up in six years, and so that we could make the necessary movement and that
building was, uh, an approximately square foot of a little over 30,000 feet. I believe
34,000 square feet approximately which is a little bit more than what the lease space is
represented here. So, Members, any questions in this area? For those of you who are
disappointed on what happened yesterday, I ask you to move on and let's get the
discussion here unless there's some ... five of you that wauna have a reconsideration I'm
putting it on the table, Members? But before I recognize you, Ms. Morrison you had
something before I open the floor to the Members?
MS. MORRISON: Yes, Mr. Chair, I just wanted to clarify, uh, the number at the bottom of the
page, the debt service, is included in the lump sum debt service that's, that was presented
in the original proposal, budget proposal. However, it was never broken out like this so
the Members could see what the specific dollar amount was associated with the One
Main Plaza purchase.
CHAIR KANE: So where is that number identified on this-MS. MORRISON: In the Countywide-CHAIR KANE: Under Countywide. Okay. Well, the Chair apologizes that's what wasn't
reflected or told to me earlier today. Is it represented in the number ... be clear on how
it, where it was ... it was represented, not represented in the 14.25 figure, uh, the
breakdown was the 10 point figure and then the 3.75 addition. Yes, please, if you can
clarify.
MR. REGAN: I know that the Budget Director will speak to the information contained within
the budget itself, but I just wanted to mention and clarify that you are correct in the fact
that when we came before you, before the Members to discuss this, you know, we did not
bring this number forward. We did not discuss this particular number in, in the
discussions on One Main Plaza so it may have been contained within the budget itself
that was presented by the Mayor, but in terms of our discussions, I don't know that this
particular number was ever, you know, fully understood or articulated by us, and I take
responsibility for that but I, I feel that this is something that needed to be clarified.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much. Members, the floor is open for questions. Mr.
Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chainnan, you know for me I, I did my long-range forecasting, and
even if we do amortize it out 20 years we're looking at about $22.8 million for the tenn
of the note versus the $10.4 million, uh, that I'm looking at under assumption of a--1, 2,
3--six-year lease program, Chainnan. You guys have a calculation on what you would go
on your conservative annual increase in value with the, if we purchase? You know I
mean-MR. REGAN: Urn ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --for bond raters would we use a 7 percent annual increase in value?
MR. REGAN: We're using about an 8 percent increase.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Eight percent increase.
MR. REGAN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Let me pass, Chainnan. I gotta do some calculation.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and before I move on, Mr. Hokama, I, your opening comment about 20
something million dollar note, what was that reference with respects to?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I'm looking at their numbers, Mr. Chainnan.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, amount ofloan 14.25, uh, how they, you know, they showing
how they calculate their annual debt service, okay. Fourteen point two five at a 6 percent
note over a 20 year span, uh, would come about 22.8 million which is about that 1.4
annual debt service costs to finance the borrowing.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So I'm looking at that versus the annual cost of the short tenn and
then I would try and calculate the increase in valuation per year on the property, base it
against also the long tenn projections of the Kaohu Street annex and the Wells Street
annex, and I'm just trying to calculate, you know, if we choose to reconsider purchasing
with the potential of liquidation down the road to recapture some cost if it made sense,
moving to two 80,000 square foot buildings with 400 parking stalls total ... I mean, I'm
just trying to explain how my brain is really functioning right now, Chainnan.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The advantages, the disadvantages versus the long tenn debt because
we are all aware that while the long tenn growth of the fiscal County needs are, as far as
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building and space, we are aware of the departmental needs whether it be fire stations,
police stations, sewer systems, roads, uh, and again, I'm looking at the program on long
term debt servicing and, you know, if we go with this, uh, in long term debt we're
looking at about 418 million and the conservative 6 percent interest, we're gonna have to
more than likely ante up another four million a year in annual debt service, uh, which
means, you know, for us that's for next year we're looking at $36 million of cash to go to
debt and not into programs and services. So I'm just, you know, I may sound like I'm
rambling, but for those who can follow my brain, I hope you can appreciate my
calculations that's going on right now and, uh, I'm happy to allow other Members to ask
questions on the consideration, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Any further questions, Members? Ms. Tavares followed by
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Yes, I had a question on the chart that was presented here.
Are all the suites that are listed, the ones that are unoccupied now, is that what that listing
is, or does it account for the ones that will become unoccupied in ... or we don't know
because it's a lease situation. Are these empty now I guess is what the question is?
MR. REGAN: Yes. These, these are ... oh, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, go ahead.
MR. REGAN Member Tavares, these are the available spaces that exist at One Main Plaza.
They may not be every single available space, but these are the spaces that we've
identified as being necessary for County operations, and our concern obviously is that if
we do not proceed with the purchase of One Main Plaza, that we secure these spaces for
our growth and we ... because ultimately what will end up happening is, uh, those spaces
may, may be leased by the general community, and we're trying to prevent that so that's
what you see here.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You know I appreciate that it's on that six-year time frame
'cause that's about what the length oftime would be by the time we do plans, design and
construction of any other additional or spaces for the County, for the County. Do you
have in mind of the suites which ones would be like, would be moved into the first ... I
mean is this by order of how you would move into them over the years?
MR. REGAN: Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: You know, I don't, this is, this is not broken out in that manner.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
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MR. REGAN: We could provide that for you but, I mean, at this point given the time frame that
we had to prepare it we did not have the ability to put that down.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, I mean, just from, uh, when Mr. Taylor presented the
scenario to us of the, the colored charts with what was available, I forget now, and I
didn't look it up, what was your initial move for a square footage need 'cause you were
talking about I thought one of ... couple of these big suites is one of the first moves is
that correct?
MR. REGAN: That is correct, yeah. I ... you know, some of the smaller spaces that you see
there, the 300 square foot spaces, those are ones that are virtually ready to be moved into
tomorrow essentially. These are the spaces that we're looking at for ... you've heard
discussion about treasury, urn, CDBG-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. REGAN: --these are the spaces that we were talking about. Those are probably the most
immediate spaces that are available to be able to move, uh, operations into. The raw
space is gonna take a little bit longer because there's obviously this construction that's
gonna have to take place, bids are gonna have to be put out, there's a process for that, but
in terms of immediacy those are probably the ones that the ... the ones that are not raw
are the ones that are essentially ready to be moved into with some minor improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Regan, when, you know when I'm looking at this I'm
also trying to not get people too lost in my brain thoughts, but when you're looking at,
you know, let's say the valuation of the building right now at what it is, and I'm weighing
all of the improvements that we're going to make, will they have any impact on the actual
increase in value once these spaces are improved? And if you could make some kind of
guess as to how much more the worth would be once these areas are improved?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: Chair, thank you. I think right off the bat, if you look at what we're spending on
the estimated construction cost of 2.9 million, I mean those are, those are actual
improvements that are going to be made to the facility, urn, and, and that's gonna
obviously bring up the value of the property based on that. So to answer your question,
yeah, there will be an increase in the assessed value for that particular property based on
our improvements. I couldn't tell you what that's gonna be.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
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MR. REGAN: I can tell you my best guess would be somewhere around $3 million given the
improvements that we're gonna make over there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Now, when I'm trying to think about the logic of ...
the building right now has a worth, from my understanding, that is based on occupancy
factors, uh, improvement factors, as this building is occupied, will that have an impact
also, you know, from the rental perspective would it increase the assessed value? Would
it increase the worth ifthere were a sale to take place, uh, you know, to another entity? I
guess what I'm trying to get at is, you know, if we all of a sudden go in there and we
spend all this money and we make all these improvements, uh . . . are we then setting
ourselves up for if we should choose to go ahead and purchase the building for doubling
what we're actually gonna have to pay then or, you know, looking at an increase
acquisition cost if we should decide to purchase later on?
MR. REGAN: Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: Thank you. If I understand your question correctly, you're asking what would
the value of the building be after we make these improvements in the general, in the
market place essentially?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
MR. REGAN: And I think, urn ... and I recall from this morning's testimony that, you know, a
realtor came in and I apologize I can't remember the name but, urn, and I believe he
stated somewhere ... it's worth now probably about 17 million especially once we start
moving in there because it provides for a revenue stream for whoever that new owners
gonna be. So does it add value to the fact that we're gonna be there? Absolutely. I don't
know what that is because that's up to the market to determine at this point, but I think
that, you know, given what we've heard, urn, and also given the replacement value, the
replacement value on that building is like $29 million so it's a valuable building, there's
value there. And the fact that we would be renting space there bring tremendous value to
that building because right now it stands at I think almost 40 something percent
unoccupied, and an investor looking at that would say that, hey, why would I wanna
invest in a building that's so unoccupied? But once we start acquiring the space, you
know, you start, you know, you start getting into only having, you know, 20 percent,
maybe even less, 15 percent available space in the building. So, yes, it does become a
value.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and that, that really factors in because some of
these things I had not thought of. One of the other things that I have been discussing, urn,
because I know there's a lot of condominiumzation. I know it's going on in different
segments of the community with regard to what A&B is doing like their Maui Market
Place. Have you done an analysis or have you considered the possibility that let's say we
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might not be able to find one single buyer that's willing to pay the price for that entire
building when at the point in time which we wanted to liquidate, have you considered
condominiumzation and then selling off portions of that building so that it would be like
almost like, uh, you know, they would own their space?
CHAIR KANE: Before you answer, Ms. Johnson, I know you're, you're moving into the realm
of if we own the building scenario.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: And that's not what this discussion is about right now, okay. Our discussion is
about the lease space, and you getting clarity to what we have before us and what was
presented. If there is five Members that want to reconsider the purchase, then we can
enter into that discussion, but for fairness to the body who yesterday made a decision, I
want you to please respect that decision and, and keep your questions focused on this area
of questioning here.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I understand that. What I'm trying to understand in my
own mind is that when I'm looking at these bottom line figures I need to understand, I
guess from my perspective, what are the situations that we're gonna be faced with
whichever way, and I mean I ... the majority won yesterday, and I just am trying to look
at the fiduciary responsibility and to make the best decision that I possibly can and, you
know, right now, I don't know, it just doesn't seem like a really good deal to me to lease
so that's just my opinion. Anyway, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and Member Johnson, my effort is not to stop you from asking questions.
I'm just asking you to stick in the line of what we're having presented to us this evening.
So if you have additional questions, please, move forward.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, that's fine.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Mr. Regan, for
being here. I, I need some clarification here. I'm a little confused because in the April
13 th communication, which is a response to questions that we had from your office ... , no,
sorry, from Mr. Young, he gave us a chart. If Members wanna follow, it's the April 13 th
communication and it has a chart that breaks down the, urn, the expected County
occupancy at One Main Plaza, and it's in reference to the parking question. And it shows
for the year 2006 that there will be 14,000 square feet occupied, available for occupancy
by the County, but yet here you're showing 26,882 feet, square feet. And I just, I do note
that, urn, you're using useable square footage in this estimate for lease, and in this chart
we were told that the numbers we were given, the square footage numbers we were given
were the total square footage in the building, and there's a difference between useable
space was ... we were told that total useable space of the building was 68,399 square
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feet. So if this chart you gave us that says in 2006 you will be occupying 14,100 square
feet, if that represents the total square footage of the building based on that, which is
86,000 square feet, then there's even a greater discrepancy between these two figures. So
if you could explain that and clarify it for me I'd appreciate that.
MR. REGAN: Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: Thank you. I think, uh ... thank you for your question, Member Anderson. The,
if I understand your question correctly, it's why are we renting so much space up front if
if, if I, just for clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, not necessarily, Mr. Regan. My question is, urn ...
why is there more space available for lease than there was space available if we had
purchased it?
(note: long pause)
MR. REGAN: Okay, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: Thank you. In the Finance Director's memo of April 15 th , 2005, and the chart
that you are referring to it shows that the square foot occupied by the County in 2006
would be approximately 14,100 square feet. If you look at 2007, it's 36,600 square feet,
and as I mentioned earlier, we need to make sure that we secure as much space as
possible in advance of it being leased out to other tenants, and we're trying to protect
those spaces which we feel would best suit County operations. And so the figure that you
see, the 26,882 square feet, were based on ... were based on our needs over the next few
years, and we're gonna have to shave it (end of tape . .. and we actually estimated
36,000 square feet we're only gonna be able to secure 26,000 guaranteed space. We may
have to come in and ask for more space. We would hope not to have to do that, but that
is essentially where we're coming up with that particular number the 26,882 square feet.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So if the space isn't currently available, you're projecting
that some ofthat space will become available between ... I mean, we're in '05 right now
so ... I mean I don't know how you can ... you're giving us all these figures. The
annual lease rent is based on this 26,882 square feet for the year 2006, and something
doesn't jive here because if the space ... if this chart says that there's only gonna be
14,000 square feet available for County use in 2006, then I don't know how you can
count leasing 26,882 square feet in 2006. And I understand your explanation that some
of this additional space between 2006 and 2007, uh, there's a lot more space that's gonna
be available according to this chart from 14,000 to 36,000, but what you're giving us here
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is for 2006. So I don't know how you can lease space that's not available unless one of
these charts isn't correct, or I'm misinterpreting it.
MR. REGAN: Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: Thank you. Actually, yeah, I think perhaps it's not being interpreted properly
because this chart does not show available space. This chart shows needed space.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Which chart are you speaking about?
MR. REGAN: The, the chart in the Finance Director's memo dated April 15, 2005, which we've
been referring to regarding the 14,100 square feet, and I'm sorry there's no page--oh,
Page 4 of the memo. If you look at that chart, which I think you're talking about, it's not,
it doesn't say this this is available space. This is just a plan of what we, what we would
like, what we were planning on occupying if we were to acquire and control the building
so that's what you see in this chart. So because we don't, we wouldn't control the
building because we would be leasing the building, we wanna protect as much space as
we can to be able to accommodate our anticipated growth. You see here this is the
anticipated occupancy by the County, uh, in the Finance Director's chart had we
occupied, uh, had we controlled and owned the building, urn . . . in the, and what was
handed out to you this evening, it shows what we would need to protect as a County at
One Main Plaza to ensure that we would be able to move operations over there. Based on
our projections of growth over the next six years we're gonna need the space. In fact, as I
explain we're gonna need more than 26,000 square feet. This chart identifies 47,000
square feet by 2011, but we're ... based on the approach that we're taking, we're gonna
have to constrain ourselves and limit growth as much as possible and that's gonna mean,
that's gonna mean ending up in the same type of situation that we're in now here with our
County facility where we have employees working in closets.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Regan, I think you answered my question, and I'd like
to get back to it because it's still not clear to me. It says current occupancy estimates for
County operations at One Main Plaza. Mr. Chair, I'm not gonna belabor the issue, but it
seems to me that there should be some correlation between this chart and this chart, and
there isn't. The other question I had was, urn, if we lease the building in your, urn,
estimates that you've given us for construction, have you included cost for ADA
compliance?
MR. REGAN: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
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MR. REGAN: Thank you. We had been instructed that if we were to lease the facility that we
would not have to make the ADA improvements in our spaces particularly. That would
be the responsibility of the landlord.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so if we lease these spaces then the landlord would
step up and do the ADA?
MR. REGAN: That's our anticipation, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: One point four million.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And the Chair has a question 'cause I believe Corp. Counsel if you can
help me. I believe the number that you folks used in your memo of $1.2 million and the
260,000 by moving in was that for lease space? I was under the impression that that $1.2
million to develop the raw space included ADA requirements. Can you clarify 'cause
I'm just trying to correlate with what Mr. Regan said that we do not have ADA
requirements, uh, so if you can provide clarity, please?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, urn ...
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Fujita Villarosa.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: ... just to clarify, the County tenants, if we were to lease space at
One Main Plaza, the County tenants would be responsible for ADA improvements to
their space. What Mr. Regan was referring to was that we wouldn't be responsible for
ADA improvements and the common areas of the parking, and that is what the landlord is
respon ... , is currently responsible for and has been making the improvements to. The
$1.2 million I don't believe includes any ADA improvement costs.
CHAIR KANE: For common areas or for within the office space?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I'm sorry. What was ...
CHAIR KANE: Your comment just now saying that the 1.2 million doesn't include ADA, uh,
improvements in common areas or in your office space?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Oh, no, I'm sorry. The, the office would be constructed to comply
with ADA standards, but it does not include any ADA improvements to common areas.
CHAIR KANE: Which will not be required if we lease space.

- 174-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 27, 2005

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: That's correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Any questions, Members, additional ques .. " Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I just wanna clarify that, uh, excuse me. You know
the raw space, the interior raw space that we would be constructing for our use, um, of
course we'd have to make that ADA, but my concern is that the obligation for ADA
compliance under the consent decree that's on the building right now, that remains with
the land, with the building owner not with the County whether it's the parking lot,
common areas or, or space that's already been constructed that is their obligation,
correct?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: From, from my review of the leases with A&B, the tenants are
responsible for ADA improvements to their office spaces. The landlord would be
responsible for any ADA improvements for common area and parking.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Let me ask the question again. There is currently a
consent decree for ADA compliance on the building. We were told that it would cost 1.4
million to fulfill that consent decree's requirement. So anything that's in that consent
decree remains the responsibility of the building owner not the lessee.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Additional questions, Members? One more time, Members, additional
questions? Okay, hearing none. Mr. Regan, thank you very much. We appreciate your
presence here this evening.
Okay, Members, the reason this information was provided, as I told you when we open
this meeting this afternoon after lunch, was to inform you that because of a decision that
was made yesterday that the Chair would make sure that we had the necessary funds to
accommodate the space needs that has been presented to us, uh, at some points, at some
times being related to a crisis situation. So the Chair is being upfront and letting you
know this is the plan to move forward, these are the numbers. If you do not agree with
the specific numbers or the numbers that are there, or if there's some adjustments that
needs to be made to make you feel comfortable whether it's approving and then putting
the ... , withholding the bond and having them come back once they solidify costs on the
lease space, the Chair will make a recommendation. Under the construction cost item,
the Chair's recommendation is that we do, since with the Maui Mall service center back
in 2000 for Fiscal Year 2001, we did move forward with $700,000 bond for lease
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improvements or improvements for lease space to that service center. And the Chair is
recommending the same approach here for leased, uh, improvements to the facility, and
the balance which is the lease cost of $1.142676 million there's currently 500,000 as in
place there would be an additional 642,000 and change, and that is if Members you agree
that is necessary for us to secure for the next six years this much space, and if those
numbers correlate to and are what the Administration intends to do for space
requirements. So we have it on the floor, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: No action would basically say we're not gonna do anything about the, the space
issues. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I think that we have some information here that
helps for me to solidify my position on this, and I don't know if other Members, who
perhaps did not support the purpose, if any of them have perhaps changed their mind or
are open at this time I'd like to hear that first before we waste a whole lot of time
discussing this issue when we don't have any possibility of a change. So, if you don't
mind, ifthe Members don't mind, could we get to that question first?
CHAIR KANE: That's fine. And the Members, uh, I'll be very frank I put that on the table
earlier.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yep.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, so let's not be, let's not, you know, distract what was put on this and let's
not mislead ourselves here. The Chair made it very clear that if there's five members
here tonight that wanna make a decision to reconsider their decision from last night, the
Chair made it very clear that it's on the table. So the Chair is waiting for this body's
response otherwise we need to move on and make the tough decisions, and they're tough
decisions, and the Chair recognizes that so ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. So, Mr. Chair, my I request that you ask the body if
there are five people who wish to reconsider this.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and before I do that, Mr. Hokama you have something?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Chairman, and again, my apologies. I was doing my own
calculations, and I just share this and if I have some, my, my basic calculation is wrong
then, please, you know, I'm not, I'm very infallible like everybody else, but if we go on
the basic assumption colleagues from what you heard from the Managing Director of 8
percent annual value increase, we use the standard 6 percent annual debt service of a 20
year note, and you look at their projections for six years of lease with the incremental
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2 percent increase, their number is about $10.4 million of investment that we would need
to put forward over the six year term. If you look at purchasing the building and I share
this. I just use the 10.5 purchase price. I didn't even assume improvements with the 8
percent increase, and if we chose to sell after six years, already we've been told we are
receiving a discounted price, uh, in round numbers, if the value continues to increase at 8
percent we would sell at about $15.4 million. So the difference between six years of
lease versus six years of purchase and then selling, we're looking at possibly a $5 million
profit to help pay for future, a long term physical needs of the County. Now if, now that
is if my assumption is correct, my math is correct, and I use the high of a $14.25 million
loan. I was only thinking of going forward with a $13.5 million loan so of course the
annual debt service would be last, and on a high we could maybe realize an $8 Y2 million
net profit on a six year ownership and then potential successful sale at an 8 percent
increase. So I just throw this out because nothing is easy for us. It wasn't easy when we
first came on board. The Chairman and I we were looking at 30 percent real property tax
increase from the first year when we sat on this committee so nothing is easy. Every year
there's a new challenge, but I can tell you the Chairman appreciates much. He has been
very open even with the decision made yesterday to allow this committee to continue to
review the situation, including the long term impacts which you know for me, Members,
a long term that I have a major problem when we over, we're gonna go over $418 million
with potential borrowing from just this year's program and only a 390 something million
dollar budget, but I share this, Members, again because I think the bigger picture the
better we understand it, the clearer we see the various impacts. Hopefully we will make
the better decision, and whatever the decision is made tonight, I will continue to abide by
what all of us choose, and the bottom line is I will support the final decision whatever
that may be, but I just toss out this general numbers to see if to you it make sense or not.
For me, I, I made my position clear yesterday and with all respect to the, to those that
may not agree I will still stand by my original position. So thank you, Chairman, for my
opportunity.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, any additional comments? And Member Tavares, the Chair will ask the
question once we get clear on where we're at. The Chair has some comments with
respect to Mr. Hokama's comments, but I'll yield until other, any other Member wants to
make comments. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, because, you know, I think in all fairness, some
times because this is such a weighty issue, it's really hard when you're not use to looking
at purchase, lease, and doing all these evaluations, it's not easy to come to this decision.
I don't, I'm not angry with people, you know, sometimes I get a little frustrated because,
you know, I see things in a certain way and I can't understand why other people can't see
it that way, but I think this information for me anyway helps to solidify even more my,
my position of why it would be more prudent to look at ... 'cause all I can do, Mr. Chair,
is look at the bottom line. I'm a, I have a fiduciary responsibility to the people of this
County because I have to make best and highest use of whatever capital they give us and
they're trusting us to expend their money in as prudent a way as possible. I could not, I
just couldn't justify it to them in changing my position to leasing and it makes me really
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nervous to improve in the general sense anyway somebody else's property and give them
the value. It's, it does not make sense to me and, Mr. Chair, I look at the mess that, you
know, we get into so many times with leases, things that we enter into as oppose to
buying, and had we bought the post office many years ago, would we be in the lease
situation that we're in right now? I don't know. But it's not real attractive and now
we're trying to figure a way out. So I just ask the Members to keep an open mind. My
position has not changed. I'm happy to revisit the issue and hopefully other Members
will ... you know whether they change their mind or not at least we're giving it one final
opportunity to allow those people to express their views. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just a matter of record, for
this matter to be reconsidered a motion and a second must be made by the prevailing side
for this matter and just for clarification as it relates to the Committee.
CHAIR KANE: Well, it's gonna take one ofthe Members who voted last night on the prevailing
side to have five Members-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: (inaudible)
CHAIR KANE: --however only four Members who voted to move for that, yeah, obviously four
Members who failed last night would wanna reconsider, and it's already become apparent
in the Chair's view.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, Members Tavares, just let me finish. And so an additional Member
from the side that prevailed last night, although it wasn't a formal vote, if one of the
Members who voted to move with a lease and with the long term buy of the One Main,
uh, excuse me, with the post office, you know, one of the people have to change their
mind, and if they are willing to stand up now and say that they'd like to reconsider the
vote that's what the Chair is gonna recognize and I star. .. , I said that from the beginning.
Okay, so it's ... that's what the Chair is gonna recognize. If there's gonna be a majority
of the Members that want it reconsidered let's, let's reconsider it. Again, as Mr. Hokama
said, my intent here is to put as much of the facts in front of you as possible, okay. Now,
I have specific questions or clarification on Mr. Hokama's numbers because I believe
they are numbers that are not being put there that should be identified, including the very
points that we made yesterday with respects to the maintenance and the needs, the
immediate needs that the building needs to have handled, okay, those numbers weren't
identified, which would eat into the net profit that is being, uh, and again, this word is not
meant in a bad way, but the net profit that are being assumed in the projections. And
what is that? Does that mean that if we switch to the purchase, are we gonna move
forward with building a new building? Because if we sell the building in six years, we're
gonna be back to square one, Members, because we won't be building a new building in
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the meantime otherwise we're gonna double whammy ourselves on the bond. So that's,
these are part of the arguments or the discussion yesterday that we need to have the full
scope and I'm asking all of you to keep all of these things in mind to help you make the
best decision, and that's what the Chair is putting forward. Ms. Tavares, thank you for
allowing me to finish my comments.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you. I was gonna ask for a clarification, uh,
correctly. I thought that when there was a motion, if the meeting's adjourned it starts
fresh so that anybody can make a motion after that, that only in the same session does a
Member of the prevailing side have to make the motion.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Member Tavares and I appreciate your comments. However, again, but
the Chair is recognizing and it's just ... and I'm trying to take it as logically as possible
that four Members wanted to change or wanted to keep the original proposal and five
Members said no. So I'm just letting you know that we have ... I'm just asking and this
what was described last night and so I'm not ... I'm asking you folks to not to change
the rules of the game for the sake of having somebody's upper hand recognized. All I
want if there's one of the five that wants to change that's what will make it happen
because I know the other four would love to have this discussion because of their
arguments. So that's, that's what we described last night. There was no objections to
how we moved so I want that to be respected tonight and that's all I'm asking. So ifthere
is any Member that would like to change now is your time to speak and that's all the
Chair is looking at it. Ms. Tavares, any further comments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: From the comment looks like it's not gonna go back to
discussion or anywhere to revote on this. So the facts haven't been glaring enough for
people to reconsider then so be it and I'm willing to go with the decision of the body, and
Mr. Chair at this time, uh, based on the handout that was given to us, urn, I can support us
going to One Main Plaza to rent or lease Suites 101 and 175 and that's it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That will cut our cost down considerably because when we
lease, like I pointed out, Members, our service center we are just throwing money you
know where at the rate of $275,000 a year. The end of the term, the end of this year we
will have spent $4,261,000 for which we have nothing to show. I mean, I don't mean
nothing to show. I mean nothing to show physically. We don't own the building, we can
take our desk with us, but I doubt if they'll let us take the ceiling and everything else that
we put in there. We did the improvements for somebody else and they will make a whole
lot more money out of that space when we leave. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me. Thank you, Ms. Tavares. I'm gonna ask the body, the Chair has
made it clear that I do not wanna get into a debate, but in this case I'm gonna ask Mr.
Hokama to come forward and take the place of the Chair because I'd like to dispute your
comments, Ms. Tavares, and I think it's appropriate that I step down from this seat and
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do it the right way because I think there are points that need to made that the public
should hear that would counter that because there are distinct differences between the
service center and what we are talking about tonight.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: There may not be a need for that. I'm merely pointing out
that when we look at leasing spaces versus buying spaces, we don't have anything to
show for the space we lease after we leave it, that's the only point I'm making, and that's
the only point I'm making about leasing, and it's the same thing with renting a house or
buying a house. It's the same sort of thing. It's a decision we have to make. The
decision has been made here, Mr. Chair, last night, and you wanna stay by that decision
that's fine. I think now we need to look, as you're saying, look at this lease operation
thing. I would rather see us, let's do what we can to get by and let's get cracking on the
Kaohu Street lot or ... and/or the Wailuku Post Office lot so that we can get some spaces
here for our present needs and our future needs that's all I'm saying.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. I still feel it's necessary to make comments 'cause there are differences
so ... is there any objections for me to just make my point, Members, because and again
I'm renting a house and I'm building a new house. In other words, it's necessary for me
to pay the rent knowing that it is a temporary move so I can get into the new house and
move on, same idea here. The difference is that the service center in Kahului there was
no action to build a new space. We've never taken that position. It was never presented
and we've never taken any action so now we're in a lease down there, which I agree the
money is being thrown away, and at the end of ten year we will not have anything to
move into that's new that's gonna function for this County, that's the difference, very
different, and that's what I'm trying to make as a point 'cause I'm living it myself on a
personal level versus renting and not looking to build and pay a mortgage in a different
manner, there is a difference, and I want the body and the public to understand that there
is a difference so ... I did have one other question for Mr. Regan that I think is important
and I think it's relevant to what you've requested, Ms. Tavares, about that's limiting of
the space lease, and the question, Members, was the point that I made last, which I
believe Mr. Hokama made a comment that that was a good point and I wanted to restate
it, is that if there are Federal-funded programs like CDBG or special-funded program
such as Liquor, Water, Solid Waste, Wastewater, that were included in the immediate
need to move, then that would make a difference on the adjustment of this chart. Because
if we want self-sufficiency, then have those programs, as were stated in earlier
arguments, let them pay for it with the people who utilize the program, and they pay the
administrative cost of facilities or locations. Mr... or Members, is there any objection to
having Mr. Regan respond to that question since I know they had . . . they must've
arrived at the needs based on who, what people had those needs.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No objections.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Regan. With the point being that the lease cost should not be
included in the general fund appropriations, Members. Thank you, Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair. I'll keep my comments brief. The only non-general funded
operation that will be going in this proposed plan is CDBG and they're the ones that are
using Federal funds. The others their leases don't expire for some time so they're not in
this, this estimate.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Thank you very much. Okay, Members-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, excuse me.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I don't think that question was answered completely.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think you asked also special funds.
special funds Solid Waste, Highways--

Did you mean by

CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --those types of special funds?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think that's what the Chairman was asking also.
MR. REGAN: Oh, my apology. I thought we were specifically talking about certain funds but-CHAIR KANE: Federal funds or special-funded programs which include like Liquor,
Department of Water Supply, Solid Waste in Public Works, Highways, Wastewater, all
the special-funded programs that charge rates and fees to pay for the programs, the golf
funds, you know, all these special funds.
MR. REGAN: Thank you. We would be looking at Solid Waste that would possibly be taking
up space at One Main Plaza so that would be one area where we could possibly have
monies from those particular types of funds, uh . . . I know that Department of Water
Supply has recently entered into a lease agreement with Hokama's, but that is a temporary
short-term lease agreement. I think it's only three years so that would be another area we
would look at if it was feasible to move them to this 26,000 square feet, urn ... obviously
the question would be whether or not the lease rate was less at Hokama's or less in the
fac ... , in the space that we're ... (end aftape . .. there's a number of ... and if you give
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me a moment, I'll just go ahead and pull up ... there's a number of operations that we're
looking at that would fit into this particular space, and I'm just really quickly looking at
Solid Waste as one of them, DSA, Housing and Human Concerns, Water Supply_ So a
number of operations that possibly could be funded from Special Funds.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Just a clarification on your Housing and Human Concerns,
are you referring to the Housing Program where they are administering Federal funds,
like HUD or the Section 8 ofHUD?
MR. REGAN: The intent was, oh, I'm sorry, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: No. Proceed.
MR. REGAN: The intent was to allow the departments to make that decision based on what they
felt was the most efficient use of space. But given the scenario we would ask them to
consider moving operations that have those particular funds.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Thank you. Thank you for the question, Mr. Chair. I think it
was very relevant to the discussion.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Any additional questions for Mr. Regan since he's
here? Okay, hearing none. Mr. Regan, thank you very much. Okay, Members, the
proposal again is ifthere's a dollar amount for revision, Member Tavares is recognizing
the primary spaces in Suite 101 and 175. Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: And that square footage would total approximately 6,000 square feet.
Corporation Counsel, your folks intent was for those two suites?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yes, that's correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and the Chair's aware of, Members, the discussion ... a side-bar
discussion regarding the movement of Corporation Counsel so I just wanted to again
reiterate that, that comment-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: --that was made earlier. Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, could we ask another question about what is the
space requirement for the Department of Planning?
CHAIR KANE: Is the First Assistant able to answer that question, Mr. Taylor? I know the
Director ... the Managing Director stepped out momentarily. So if you can, please.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: If you can identify yourself, please.
MR. TAYLOR: Oh. My name is Dave Taylor. I'm a First Assistant to the Managing Director.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TAYLOR: In response to Councilmember Tavares' questions about what is the need
requirement for the Planning Department. The Planning Department's intention was to
lease one suite in One Main Plaza on the third floor. I don't in front of me have the ...
which number it is. And they would continue to lease their space in the David Trask
Building and that would fulfill their needs. I think if you look on the list that the
Managing Director gave you it's the largest suite on the third floor. So it looks like it
was ... I believe it's Suite 335.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: And so Planning would occupy that as well as their current space in the Kalana
Pakui Building as well as the space they currently lease in the David Trask Building.
That's the intention.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So I don't recall the space that they needed 5,000 square feet,
Corp. Counsel.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, let me inteIject as I know there's the Needs Assessment sheet that
we were usmg.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, shows 5,000.
CHAIR KANE: It shows currently as 4,689 for current space County-owned for the Planning
Department.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Current space, County-owned?
CHAIR KANE: Yes. That the Planning Department is now utilizing.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 'Cause when I, I took to heart your comments, Mr. Chair,
about Corporation Counsel moving to One Main Plaza and its physical separation from
us. I would much rather see a department like the Planning Department perhaps or a
department that occupies a lot of space in this building where Corp. Counsel could move
and still be in this building or in Kalana Pakui so that they're in closer proximity to where
we are. So I'm just trying to balance out those square footage requirements and that's
why I took Suites 101 and 175 because I figure between the two of them they ought to be
able to fit either Corp. Counsel, Planning Department, and CDBG and some other ...
some other ones that are not so important to be connected to the rest of the department.
That was my thinking. So, Mr. Chair, I would still like to pursue doing, you know, Suites
101 and 175. Now, if the Planning Department is ready and willing to go to that suite
that doesn't seem to need a whole lot of improvement that 2,542 feet, Suite 335 on the
third floor. We need the space so I'm trying to think about let's get as much space as we
can to bring some relief to some of the employees here. Maybe not all but I think a
goodly amount. And if we have that much space that's ... what is one, one floor square
footage-CHAIR KANE: County Building?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --in this building? About what 8,000?
MR. TAYLOR: Councilmember Tavares, one floor in this building I believe is-CHAIR KANE: Nine?
MR. TAYLOR: --right around 9,500.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Ninety-five hundred usable space?
MR. TAYLOR: I think that's total space.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Total space, okay. Maybe it's a little bit less than that 'cause
you don't count the hallways and lobbies and stuff like that, which from what we
understand there isn't much of that around.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So I think it would be a big relief in the ... for this building
particularly and I personally do not want to see Corp. Counsel move out of this ... out of
this immediate area. So if we could find another department to move over there, then I
would support the lease ... the leasing of Suites 101, 175, and 335 if they can tell me that
Planning is ready to go to that space.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taylor, are you prepared to respond?
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MR. TAYLOR: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, Ms. Tavares, Planning is prepared to go to
that space. There's actually already a contract that's been prepared and is ready to be
returned to the building owner.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and just for clarification, that's all of the Planning Department or just a
part of the Planning Department?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, I would say all, but I don't know if the ones at Trask
can get out of their lease.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and my question would be the occupation of Kalana Pakui for the
Planning Department. Is their migration including all of their department into One Main?
Can you clarify, Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. The planned movement is only to lease this one
suite in One Main Plaza for the Long Range Division of Planning to move to One Main
Plaza. Current Planning and/or some of the Zoning Enforcement Division would move
into the space in the David Trask Building. So the only intended move to One Main
Plaza is the Long Range Planning Division at this time, and that's the lease that was
signed is just for them to move.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I see. Just Long Range Planning, that's the eight people
in Long Range Planning or nine or whatever?
MR. TAYLOR: I don't know the exact number but that sounds about right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's not enough room for Corp. Counsel to go over there.
Then we'd have to move everybody out of the building.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Do you know offhand or can you figure out how much space
would we need to move all of Planning out of that Kala ... Kalana Pakui?
MR. TAYLOR: According to our ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Or to get 5,000 square feet worth of space for Corp. Counsel
over there?
MR. TAYLOR: Ms. Tavares, according to our original assessment, the upstairs of the Kalana
Pakui where Planning occupies 4,689 square feet. So even if all of Planning moved out,
that's really ... that's not enough room for Corp. Counsel, Corporation Counsel's needs.
So ...
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. So we need the whole building, upstairs and
downstairs. So DSA would have to go out, too, if that's where they are. I think that's
where they are.
MR. TAYLOR:
And the bottom floor, Ms. Tavares, where Development Services
Administration is, is 8,300 square feet.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's how often I go down to that bottom floor. I thought
the top floor was bigger.
CHAIR KANE: But the down ... the bottom floor includes the conference room.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Conference room, right.
CHAIR KANE: Which is not a function ofDSA.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR KANE: So what is the use ... what does DSA require currently or immediate needs for
their expansion?
MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Chair, we don't have those numbers ... the exact numbers of exactly which
of these numbers include the conference room and the upstairs and downstairs and
exactly who has control of what. So the precision of that question we're not prepared to
answer.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I'm a little confused.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Suite 101 is 48 ... usable space is 4,809 and was this the
area where Corp. Counsel was gonna go, Suite 101?
MR. TAYLOR: Ms. Tavares, Corporation Counsel was set to move into Suite 101 and Suite 175
which was 4,809 plus 1,231.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay, the both of them. Okay. Thank you for that
clarification. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'll yield for now.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, any additional questions for Mr. Taylor? Hearing none.
Thank you very much, Mr. Taylor. Any adjustments to your request, Ms. Tavares? And
the Chair apologize that I threw out the Corp. Counsel issue but that was ... it seemed to
be a very relevant issue.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, it is a relevant issue and I think, you know, when
they did the migration plan for the County for this building, I believe that they were
looking at the premise of those people who access the building from the public should be
here. Where I happen to take the opposite stance, and if you believe that this building is
actually the Administration Building for the County of Maui, and those people that need
public access, those places should be outside of this building. This is an Administration
Building so all of those entities related to the administration of our County government
and our County services should be here. But those who have customers or not customers,
but taxpayers and community members and clients that come to see them on a regular
basis or pay their bills, those should not be here. Those should be in a different place and
that's why the Service Center was approved back when because we felt that was a more
appropriate use of County funds for the public to access more easily those services. So I
don't blame, you know, I don't blame the department, Managing Director's depart ... ,
office for looking at it that way because that's what they were trying to do. But now I
think we're looking at a different philosophy saying that we would like this building, if
we all agree, to be the Administration Building. So we would keep Corp. Counsel here
and move someone else out. And I guess that would be maybe the first thing we should
kind of decide as a group.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. Again, the Chair realizes the intent of the Managing
Director's proposal that all of these suites represents in their opinion what would be the
need over the next six years with the intention of a new building being built and moved
into at the end of that six years. And I'll just ask for a nod from the Managing Director if
that is what their intent was in this sheet to try and portray and it's up to us at this point
on whether or not we're willing to support all or part of that scenario that they're
proposing to us. And Ms. Tavares, in concept I agree that securing at least the major
components of this proposal is something that we may need to consider in light of the
dollar amounts that are being proposed. And Members, the Chair is open for any
additional comments along these lines if there are any additional suggestions keeping in
mind the shaded areas are the raw areas and they're $200 construction estimates per I
believe square foot whereas the white areas or the lighted areas have a different
construction cost estimate. Keeping in mind too that a lot of this is non-contiguous
spaces and I believe Ms. Fujita Villarosa maybe you can verify on behalf of Corporation
Counsel for the intent to move. One note, Suite 101 and 175 are contiguous. Are they
next to each other?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: No, Mr. Chair. Suite 101 was planned for the main office and
Suite 175, which is right across the hallway, would be storage, library, and conference
room.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chainnan?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I appreciate the discussion and the responses. Would you consider a
five minute recess?
CHAIR KANE: Absolutely. Members, we'll take a recess 'till 10:40. Recess. . .. (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

10:28 p.m.

RECONVENE:

10:55 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Members, the Chair is gonna ask that you provide us with some
additional time. We're trying to again finalize the numbers. We have reached the end.
We are having this discussion. We're going to provide a proposal on the space
requirements for your consideration. So we're gonna ask you for another 15 minutes, and
you know what? We'll just make it a nice, safe 11:15 for 20 minutes ... 11:15 we will
reconvene. We are in recess until 11 :15. . .. (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

10:55 p.m.

RECONVENE:

11:17 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Members, thank you very much. We are back in session. At this
time I would like to recognize Council Chair Hokama. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you for that recess. Obviously, now we ... I will
be asking the Members to consider a proposal that is, I will admit, is not the perfect
proposal, but I think it will allow us to address some immediate needs and allow us to at
least move in the direction we'd like to which is, you know, Council has always intended
that this building would remain the Administrative headquarters of the County of Maui.
Saying that, Mr. Chairman, using the handout from Managing Director Regan and his
office, we're using their numbers and their assumptions, I would ask the Members to
consider, if you have your worksheets, Members, that my proposal to you at this time is
to look at Floors 2, 3, and 6.
On the second floor I would ask you to look at Suite 205 and 225 which is approximately
3,600 square feet. If you look at their annual lease and estimated construction, it comes
to approximately $349,000. If you look at the third floor, Suites 305 and 335, that's
approximately 3,800 square feet, and if you use the numbers presented to us for lease and
estimated construction, we're looking at about $368,000. I will note that Suite 335 from
information from our Managing Director's Department is what was once used by the
Long Range Division of Planning and that is where this Division is being planned to
relocate in the near future. If you look at the six floors . . . sixth floor, Members, and
look at Suites 610 and 625, it's approximately 4,800 square feet and using the estimated
numbers of cost for lease and construction, we're looking at approximately $451,000. So
if we add up the three floors, the second, the third, and the sixth, we are looking at
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approximately 12,200 square feet of usable space and with the estimated construction for
renovations, we are looking at approximately $1.17 million.
Of course, one of the concerns we have heard, Mr. Chairman, is the needs of Corporation
Counsel, and if I recall the numbers correctly, they are currently in 2,500 square feet on
the ninth floor. I would say one option that may be viable that I would like to ask the
Managing Director to consider along with our Mayor is to relocate the whole top floor of
Kalana Pakui, which is approximately 4,700 square feet, and relocate them to the sixth
floor of One Main Plaza, which is 4,800 square feet, and of course, you know, they need
their space too. So you give them that additional suite on the third floor of that additional
1,300 plus square feet and Long Range will also be there. That is already planned.
Corporation Counsel, we can help provide funding for some renovation and Corporation
Counsel can go from 2,500 square feet, Mr. Chairman, to approximately 4,700 square
feet. In the meantime, we will have the 3,600 on the second floor to assist relocation and
movement temporarily of other considerations whether it be CDBG which will help to
pay for the lease rent and cost of improvements.
But I believe this is a workable short-term space that can be addressed within our limited
funding. So for 12,200 square feet and approximately, if you add some money for
Corporation Counsel, maybe $1.5 million total. I present that to the Members as an
option. We currently have $500,000 in the budget, Members, and as we heard from
Managing Director's office, one floor of this building is approximately 9,000 square feet.
So I offer that as a possible short-term option for the Members to consider and I would
ask your consideration, Members, this evening if we can move this forward as the next
best option B. And I'm happy to entertain ... and I have some of the floor plans that
Managing Director's office did provide. Suites 610 and 625 are right across each other
on the sixth floor. That's the 4,800 square feet. Second floor, Suite 205 and Suite 225, it
would be close to each other. They'd be book ending the FBI so I'm sure they can feel
secured. And on the third floor while it will be across the hallways and diagonally, that
3,800 square feet since, you know, the divisions of Planning are not necessarily needing
to be next to each other as they currently are. I think this may be a workable short-term
solution. So I offer this to the Committee, Mr. Chairman, as one possible way to address
the current needs of some of our departments.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
clarification? Ms. Johnson.

Any additional comments or questions for

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If Corporation Counsel moves out from the ninth floor of this
building, then what would occupy the space there now?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My opinion, Mr. Chairman, is that is something I would ask the
Mayor and the Managing Director to continue discussions with the Council so we can be
as supportive as possible with whatever funding adjustments need to be made. But I
believe that unless you make space available it's hard to do movement, and you know,
this is one way that we'll have some extra space in this building to consider other
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department needs whether it be DPS or another agency. There will be some empty space
in One Main Plaza to do additional shifting, and again, if we can continue the level of
communication we have had with Administration the last few days, I'm sure we can find
a workable arrangement, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional questions or comments? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair, I really want to thank Mr. Hokama for
putting in the time to try to figure out, I think this is Plan Cor D,-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .{laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --but figure out how we could get some immediate relief for
our employees. I would just ask if somehow we can, I know these are ideas that have
come out, if we can just specify the amount of square footage or the amount of money
and then work within the square footage. Because sometimes maybe there won't be a
need for renovations ifthere are maybe two smaller spaces that they could just move into
rather than taking a bigger space and putting whatever they need to put in. So if we could
control it by a combination maybe of the square footage and the amount of money for the
rent and renovation, that gives them the flexibility to figure out the best way to utilize
that space and who should move over there. I mean I think they've heard us pretty loud
and clear about how we love Corp. Counsel and we just can't stand the thought of being
parted from them. So, you know, I think Corp. Counsel is more interested in space than
they are a place. Oh gee, I made a rhyme .... {laughter} . .. Anyway, if we could do
that, Mr. Chair and Mr. Hokama would, would be amenable to that, I certainly could
support this plan and I really do thank you for putting in that effort to identify spaces in
the One Main Plaza.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further comments or questions, Members? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd like to thank the Chair for doing the impossible at the
11 th hour and for also finding a way to use space in this building that is not raw because I
think that saves us money. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions or comments, Members? And as was noted by
Mr. Hokama, out of the $1.168 million for the total for the six units, we already have
500,000. We would have a difference if we plug in these numbers. Staff will take a few
minutes to give us a balance on where we're at, and hopefully we will be close enough to
wrap it up. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I would ask the Members to allow some additional
funding to allow some construction/renovation work for the Kalana Pakui if it is possible
with the help of the Managing Director and Mayor that the Corp. Counsel would then
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move from the current 2,500 square feet to the 4,700 square feet of the top floor of
Kalana Pakui. I would estimate they would need some financial resources to make those
renovations possible.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Is there a dollar amount, Mr. Hokama, that you wanted to
propose to include into the 1.168500 number?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, Mr. Chairman, because it is a historical building and the
former headquarters of the Board of Supervisors in the old County government, I would
say that we would look at a ceiling of no more than 1.5 million for the total work between
Kalana Pakui and One Main Plaza for space and construction.
CHAIR KANE: So we're at 1.168 and you're looking at a number of 1.5?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: As a ceiling, Mr. Chairman, at this time.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we have the number of 1.5. So we're looking for ... because
we have five of that already included in the budget proposal, we're looking at $1 million.
Ifwe move this forward without objections, we can have Staff provide us of where we're
at and we can deal with the difference hopefully in short order. Question, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Depending on where we come up with the money, my
suggestion would be on ... I don't have it right in front of me, but the monies that we
were going to move into ... the additional money we're going to move into the rainy day
fund, I would ask that rather than bonding or borrowing, if there's any way that we could
actually look at maybe this as a source. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any additional comments/questions? Hearing none.
Members, do we have consensus on moving the $1.5 million figure forward?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. The final consideration, Members, before we match those numbers is
back to the $3 million figure that is for the old Wailuku Post Office. That number
includes two million plus another million. After having discussions with the Managing
Director and the First Assistant, their recommendation for consideration to move forward
with the consideration of a new building either on that site or if it does not work to
consider some initial work to look at the Kaohu site. The request was additional 500,000
for a total working number of $3.5 million. So there would be an addition of $500,000.
Members, ... (cough) . .. excuse me, the Chair puts it on the table if we can make some
adjustments to that and make it an additional 300,000 or so. I'm sure we can have
something to work with to provide adequate dollars for the first phase of our ... of our
movement towards a new structure in the campus area. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, I'm sorry. What line are you on?
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CHAIR KANE: I'm trying to locate ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Twenty-five.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Page 25.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Page 25, line number, Mr.?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Eleven forty-seven.
CHAIR KANE: Eleven forty-seven.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Okay, Members, is there any request for an adjustment
from the $500,000 figure? You know what, I'll put forward 300,000 and then we'll just
work with that number for now and if there needs to be an adjustment, then we can talk
story. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Could you go over again what was that based on? ... (end of
tape ...
CHAIR KANE: The three million and we have that under number five on number 1147 ... Page
25, Line 1147. We provided in writing old Wailuku Post Office acquisition and design
for Kalana 0 Maui Wells Annex and Kalana 0 Maui Kaohu Annex. So we'd .. . (cough)
... excuse me, the additional 300,000 would allow us or allow the Administration to
move forward with potential acquisition of the old Wailuku Post Office and consideration
of design for either that site or if it's deemed unfeasible or whatever reason, we also can
look at the Kaohu Annex site.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And to that we would add 300,000?
CHAIR KANE: Yes. So the three million that is there now, the Chair's request is for additional
300,000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, any questions for clarification? Any comments? Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. Staff, how much time do you need?
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MS. KOLLER: We need to know whether you want the ... want this in bond or whether you
want to keep it in cash?
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, is there a preference? I know Member Johnson has made the
comments. Can you tell us where we're ... if we were to do it in cash, where would we
be if all of this was cash? What would we need to balance?
MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chair, I need a minute to do that, but I also wanted to point out that my
lines are going to be different because I've made the adjustments on my worksheet. But
under General Fund: Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan, Government Facilities, the
Council agreed to add a number 11, Kalana 0 MauilKalana Pakui improvements,
$300,000 also there. I don't know if that would be related to this item.
CHAIR KANE: What line approximately?
MS. KAWASAKI: On my spreadsheet it's 949, but yours would probably be 20 lines above that
or so.
CHAIR KANE: Nine twenty.
MS. KAWASAKI: It's the General Fund: Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, 921, Line 11. This is under General Fund. This was an
addition that was made as well by your Chair. So this is something that we can utilize,
Members, without objections. That way we need to just identify the additional $1
million. Okay. So, Staff, you need a minute or so to ... if we were to do it with cash?
MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chair, does that mean that you would like us to move because initially
from what you were saying we had the ... we had just added the dollars in the line under
old Wailuku Post Office acquisition and design and that was in bond. So we had upped
that to 3.3 million.
CHAIR KANE: Take that 300,000 back out and we will already recognized that under the
General Fund on line or the Kalana 0 MauilKalana Pakui improvements.
(note: pause)
MS. KAWASAKI: So the remaining three million, Mr. Chair, would remain in bond?
CHAIR KANE: At this time, yes.
MS. KAWASAKI: Then your amount is $464,003.
CHAIR KANE: And that is we're in the negative?
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MS. KAWASAKI: Positive.
CHAIR KANE: We're in the positive?
MS. KAWASAKI: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: And that's including the additional $1 million?
MS. KAWASAKI: No, because I don't know where you would like us to put that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So if it were in General Fund cash, we're looking at a balance of 500
and some change?
MS. KAWASAKI: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, right now if we were to put in General Fund cash we about
little ... a little over 500,000. The Chair will also note that there's approximately
60,000 in the Managing Director's office for some work with the Post Office. That's
another small little pot of money to just bring to the table.
MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MS. KAWASAKI: There's also the 500,000 lease cost that appears in the Department of
Finance which is also General Fund.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and I think we're identifying that already. That number is being
recognized in the total 1.5. We minus out that five. So with the one million and we're
460 over, then we have about 540 we need to balance, Members. And we could ... we
could look at because the Chair did add 1.5 additional in the ... we can subtract five
from the Emergency Fund and include an additional million instead of an additional 1.5
million which would make the balance six million instead of the five million proposal
and that would bring us close to balance. Members, any objections to removing five
from the Emergency Fund proposal?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we're about 40,000 off I believe or 30 something thousand
off, and because we're gonna be making adjustments until Monday morning, Members.
Any comments from Staff at this point with those numbers incorporated?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, can we give them some time to just ...
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller,-MS. KOLLER: Question?
CHAIR KANE: --you need additional time?
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, can you just run through the numbers again and then we'll want to
take a recess and make sure we have them all in the right category.
CHAIR KANE: No problem. What, what ... how much time do you need?
MS. KOLLER: Let's just run through the numbers again so we know ... so everyone's clear
what you want for lease cost and what you want for ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We can do that. Mr. Hokama, you have it broken down between the
construction cost and the lease cost?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, I do, Chairman. Hold on.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. Chairman.

I'm looking at approximately $546,000 for annual lease cost,

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. So we can incorporate that additional 46,000, Members, on Line
166. Staff, under lease cost we'll increase that by $46,000. Construction estimate,
Mr. Hokama, would be ... if we're going from 1.5 we just go 954?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Chairman. I would say that would be ... 954 would be a good
working number.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So 954,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be the ceiling, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: And to achieve that would be your balance that you had a 540 ... 560 or 460
and the removal from the Emergency Fund of 500.
(note: pause)
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
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MS. KOLLER: I'm sorry. It must be late at night, but we're just having trouble following
through this.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MS. KOLLER: 'Cause that last number of945 that you want added to ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine fifty-four.
CHAIR KANE: Nine five four zero zero zero and that would be achieved by removing 500 from
the Emergency Fund plus what you had existing as a balance in the positive.
(note: pause.)
CHAIR KANE: Comments, Ms. Koller? Okay, let's get to it, Staff. What numbers do we
have?
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, we need to have about a 15 minute break.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we'll reconvene at midnight.
. . .(gavel) . ..
RECESS:

11:42 p.m.

RECONVENE:

12:04 a.m.

Okay, we are

III

recess .

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay, Members, we are reconvened. Thank you very much for
the recess. After checking with Staff and making the necessary adjustments that
Members have approved by consensus, we have reached balance.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yea!
CHAIR KANE: So the Chair will ask at this time that if you will allow Staff the flexibility of
dealing with the fringe adjustments for the additions that we've made for the additional
personnel that was included into our numbers. Members, any objections to allowing the
Staff to work with those numbers?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. We can exhale. Thank you very much, Members. And
the Chair wants to thank each and everyone of you for your incredible tenacity
throughout these past several days and not only you folks, but I want to thank Staff. I
want to thank Ms. Morrison, our Budget Director, and of course, Ms. Tracy Fujita
Villarosa from Corporation Counsel for sticking with us through the whole odyssey that
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we've gone through, Members. With that, Members, the Chair is going to ask that we
recess this meeting until Monday morning, 10:30, at which time we will be informed of
the adjustments and we will walk through those numbers and take care of the business at
that point in time. Any final comments before we recess, Members, until Monday
morning? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just want to thank the Managing Director and the
Administration and all of their hard work that they had done in to producing these
figures, too, that helped us make these decisions. So I really appreciate all of the
teamwork. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional comments? Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I would just like to thank you on behalf
of I think of all of us for your tenacity and keeping us in line and making sure that even
though it is six minutes after twelve, it could be three o'clock in the morning. So thank
you and we're looking forward to next year's budget.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Any additional comments? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Has anybody been keeping a chart as to whether or not
we have set a record tonight because we're out so early?
CHAIR KANE: Not to mention that this is only the second night of this whole process-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --that we've had night meetings.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I mean last year didn't we go 'till after one?
CHAIR KANE: Not to take away from the previous work of all the previous meetings, but no,
this is a good thing. So, Members, thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm just joshing. Thanks .... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Any additional comments? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I have a last minute addition. Nah,
Ijust kidding ... . (laughter). .. No, Ijust want to ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Actually, he does.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Well, yeah, Member Tavares is right, but it's a proviso but it
can wait 'till Monday. I just want to thank you for keeping us in line. Just wanted to
wake everybody up a little bit. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Members. With no other comments ... oh, I'm sorry,
any additional comments, Members? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I just wanted to thank you, Mr. Chairman, for running a
really good Budget Session, my first Budget Session as a Council member, and it's been
a real learning experience and gratifying and I appreciate the leadership you showed us.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. I appreciate the comments. Okay, Members, with
that being said, we will recess until Monday. The date on Monday I believe is May 1st, if
I'm not mistaken, 2nd , excuse me, Monday, May 2, 2005 at 10:30 a.m. This meeting is
adjourned. Good morning, everybody. Oh, recessed. Good morning, everybody.
Recessed. '" (gavel) . ..

RECESSED: 12:08 a.m. on Thursday, April 28, 2005
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